CITY OF , City of Vermillion Council Agenda

® . )
ﬁ,Vermllllon 700 pm Regl Mecting

10.

City Council Chambers
SOUTH DAKOTA 25 Center Street

Vermillion, South Dakota 57069

. Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Minutes

a.

June 17, 2013 Special Session; June 17, 2013 Regular Session; June 24, 2013 Special Session.

Adoption of the Agenda

Visitors To Be Heard

a.

Park and Recreation Month proclamation.

Appointment of Administrative Officers

a. Finance Officer.

b. City Attorney.

Other Appointments and Designations.
a. Official Newspaper.

b. Official Depositories

c. Consolidated Board of Equalization.

d.

Determination of Rules of Order.

Public Hearings

Old Business

New Business

a.

@ o o

Request to close Main Street from Bank of the West entrance to Prospect Street, one-half block south on
Court Street, and one-half block north on Center Street from 3:00 pm to 7:30 pm on Wednesday, July
17, 2013 for the Tri-State Cruisers/Dakota Classic Cruisers.

Final Plat of Lots 3-4 in Block 1, Lots 2-7 in Block 2, Lots 1-5 in Block 3, Lots 1-2 in Block 4, and
Outlots A and B of French East Addition (south of E. Main Street and north of Lewis Street on either
side of S. Mickelson Street).

Agreement and Covenants for Lots 3 and 4 in Block 1, Lots 1 and 2 in Block 4, and Outlots A and B of
French East Addition with French Investments, L.L.C.

First Reading of Ordinance No. 1301 — Amending Chapter 152, Signs.

Work Order for West Main Street Mill and Overlay Project.

2012 Audited Comprehensive Annual Report.

Agreement between City of Vermillion and Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development
Company to allocate TIF 5 revenues for improvements.



h. Resolution Dissolving Tax Incremental District Number One.

11. Bid Openings
a. Fuel Quotes.

12. City Manager’s Report

13. Invoices Payable

14. Consensus Agenda
a. Set a public hearing date of July 15, 2013 for a retail on-off sale malt beverage license for BBQ Blues,
LLC for BBQ Blues Smoke House at 5 Market Street.

15. Adjourn

Access the City Council Agenda on the web — www.vermillion.us

Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall use the microphone at the podium. Please raise your hand to be
recognized, go to the podium and state your name and address.

a. Items Not on the Agenda Members of the public may speak under Visitors to Be Heard on any topic NOT on the agenda.
Remarks are limited to 5 minutes and no decision will be made at this time.

b. Agenda Items: Public testimony will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has been announced by the
Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen who wishes may speak one time for 5 minutes on each agenda item. Public testimony will
then be closed and the topic will be given to the governing body for possible action. At this point, only City Council members and
staff may discuss the current agenda item unless a Council member moves to allow another person to speak and there is unanimous
consent from the Council. Questions from Council members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the
presiding officer at any time.

Meeting Assistance: The City of Vermillion fully subscribes to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. If you
desire to attend this public meeting and are in need of special accommodations, please notify the City Manager's Office at 677-7050 at
least 3 working days prior to the meeting so appropriate auxiliary aids and services can be made available.

Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday.

Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3.

As a courtesy to others, we ask that cellular phones and pagers be turned off during the meeting.

Vermillion City Council’s Values and Vision
This community values its people, its services, its vitality and growth, and its quality of life and sees itself reinforcing
and promoting these ideals to a consistently increasing populace.



Special Meeting Agenda
CITY OF,

° City Council
ﬁvermllllon 12:00 p.m. (noon) Special Meeting
Monday, July 1, 2013

SOUTH DAKOTA City Hall-Large Conference Room

Vermillion, South Dakota 57069

1. Roll Call

2. Informational Session- National Music Museum- Cleveland Johnson

3. Informational Session- New Wastewater Treatment Backup Boiler- Paul Brunick

4. Informational Session- New Water Tower Construction Photos- Randy Isaacson

5. Briefing on the July 1, 2013 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda- Briefings are intended to be
informational only and no deliberation or decision will occur on this item.

6. Adjourn

Access the City Council Agenda on the web — www.vermillion.us

Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall use the microphone at the podium. Please state your name and address.
Presentations are limited to 5 minutes. For those who do not appear on the agenda, no decision is to be expected at this time.

Meeting Assistance: If you require assistance, alternative formats and/or accessible locations consistent with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 677-7050 at least 3 working days prior to the meeting.

Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p-m. If a meeting falls on
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday.

Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings On Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3.

As a courtesy to others, we ask that cellular phones and pagers be turned off during the meeting,



Unapproved Minutes
Council Special Session
June 17, 2013

Monday 12:00 noon

The special session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South
Dakota was held on Monday, June 17, 2013 at 12:00 noon in the City Hall
large conference room.

1. Roll Call

Present: Collier-Wise, Davies, Meins, Osborne, Willson, Zimmerman,
Mayor Powell

Absent: Grayson, Ward

2. Informational Session -Vermillion Hike/Bike path repair options -
Jim Goblirsch

Jim Goblirsch, Director of Parks & Recreation, wanted to thank the
members that toured the hike/bike trail two weeks ago. Jim stated that
hike/bike trails are a valuable asset to a community while at the same
time it is hard to quantify the use of the trails. Jim stated that
there are different options to repairing the hike/bike trails and
stated that Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, would review the options.

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reviewed a map of the hike/bike path
including pictures of the river bank along the path. The pictures were
of the areas that have eroded that Jose stated is a continual process.
Jose reported that he contacted Tim Cowman about his experience of
erosion along the river. Jose provided his opinion on the possible
cause of the erosion but noted that a geotechnical study would be
required to know for sure. Jose stated that he has developed cost
estimates for options to repair the existing trail, protect and repair
the trail and an option of relocating a portion of the trail.

Jose noted that, to just repair the three damaged areas, his estimate
for hauling fill and the rebuilding of the trail were $21,000, $34,000
and $38,000, going from west to east. Jose stated that the two west
areas would stay within the current easement but the east damaged area
would be relocated on City property away from the river. Jose noted
that he did not know how long the west two areas would last as this
depends upon the river.

Jose reported that, to protect and repair the trail, he developed an
estimate for installing rip-rap along this portion of the river then
relocate the trail a safe distance from the repaired river at an



estimated cost of $2,150,000 not including the cost of trail easements
or construction easements. The second protection option is to install
sheet piling along this portion of riverbank to restrict erosion to
keep the path in the current location. The estimated cost for this is
$3,325,000. Jose noted that both of these options will require a 404
permit and geotechnical study. As there is a protected minnow in this
portion of the river, the permit might not be granted. Jose was also
concerned that the protection of the north side of the river might
cause more erosion on the south side.

Jose reported that another option would be tc abandon the west most
portion of the path and route the path up to Broadway along street and
alley easements. This would abandon 1,600 feet of trail along the west.
Jose noted that the trail from the parking lot could be developed as an
overlock. The estimated cost of this is $84,000 for the relocated bike
path and $20,000 for the overlook.

Jose and Jim answered questions of the City Council on the options,
noting the need to look for possible grant funding. The consensus was
to bring forward a resolution for the option of relocation of the path
along the east most damaged area that would open up a portion of the
trail and the west end overlook with the relocation of the west section
to be considered during the budget hearings.

3. Briefing on the June 17, 2013 City Council Regular Meeting

Council reviewed items on the agenda with City staff. No action was
taken.

4. Adjourn

167-13

Alderman Osborne moved to adjourn the Council special session at 1:04
p.m. Alderman Meins seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 17" day of June, 2013.

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

BY

John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer




Unapproved Minutes

City Council Regular Session
June 17, 2013

Monday 7:00 p.m.

The regular session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South
Dakota was called to order on June 17, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor
Powell.

1. Roll Call

Present: Collier-Wise, Davies, Meins, Osborne, Willson, Zimmerman,
Mayor Powell

Absent: Grayson, Ward
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Minutes

A. Minutes of June 3, 2013 Special Session; June 3, 2013 Regular
Session

168-13

Alderman Osborne moved approval of the June 3, 2013 Special Session and
June 3, 2013 Regular Session minutes. Alderman Meins seconded the
motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion
adopted.

4. Adoption of Agenda

Mayor Powell stated that an executive session for personnel matters is
being requested as an addition to the agenda.

169-13
Alderman Osborne moved approval of the agenda with the amendment to add
an executive session for SDCL 1-25-2(1) for personnel matters prior to

adjourn. Alderman Davies seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0.
Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.

5. Visitors to be Heard - None

6. Public Hearings



A. Special daily malt beverage and wine license for the Clay County
Agricultural Fair Association, Inc. on or about August 9 and 10, 2013
at the Clay County Fairgrounds.

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer, reported that an application was
received from the Clay County Agricultural Fair Association for a
special daily malt beverage and wine license on or about August 9 and
10™ for the demolition derby and illusionist during the Clay County
Fair. Mike noted that this is different from prior years where another
agency obtained the license and was responsible for the sale of
beverages. The notice of hearing and Police Chief’s report are included
in the packet. Mike stated that Jessica Kennedy, representing the Fair
Board, 1is present to answer questions. Jessica stated that the Fair
Board is working with Blaine Schoellerman to have TAM certified
individuals available to check ID’s and sell.

170-13

Alderman Zimmerman moved approval of the special daily malt beverage
and wine license for the Clay County Agricultural Fair Association,
Inc. on or about August 9 and 10, 2013 at the Clay County Fairgrounds.
Alderman Meins seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell
declared the motion adopted.

7. Old Business - None
8. New Business
A. Library Board appointments

Mayor Powell reported that two terms are expiring on the Library Board
and that interested individuals have completed the expression of
interest forms that were included in the Council packet. Mayor Powell
stated that he had requested Council members to provide him with their
choices for these vacancies. Mayor Powell stated that from the Council
members choices the individuals were Jon Flanagin and Carl Gutzman for
a three year term each. Mayor Powell wanted to thank all that had
expressed interest in the positions.

171-13

Alderman Willson moved approval of the appointment of Jon Flanagin and
Carl Gutzman to three year terms on the Library Board. Alderman Meins
seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the
motion adopted.

A. Vermillion Housing Authority Board appointments



Mayor Powell reported that there is one five year term expiring on the
Vermillion Housing Authority Board and that Elizabeth Abbott who
currently is serving on the Board has expressed interest in continuing.
Mayor Powell requested action to appoint Elizabeth to another five year
term.

172-13

Alderman Zimmerman moved approval of the appointment of Elizabeth
Abbott to a five year term on the Vermillion Housing Authority Board.
Alderman Willson seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.

A. Library Change Order #7

John Prescott, City Manager, reported that the library project is near
completion and that this most likely will be the last change order.
The change order is a deduct of $386 based upon the signage allowance
of $5,000 and the signage cost was $4,614. John recommended approval of
change order #7 with Welfl Construction for the library project.

173-13

Alderman Willson moved approval of change order #7 with Welfl
Construction on the library project for a deduct of $386. Alderman
Zimmerman seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell
declared the motion adopted.

A. Developer’s Agreement with Richard G. Duman and Sheryl A. Duman,
owners of Lot 1, Block 2, French East Addition (101 S Mickelson)

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that Richard and Sheryl Duman
have recently purchased Lot 1, Block 2, French East Addition. The
owners are planning on constructing a single family home facing South
Mickelson Street. The City Council approved the final plat of this lot
at the January 21, 2013 meeting.

Jose stated that City ordinance requires that the property owner
construct sidewalks, grading, curb and gutter, street surfacing, street
lights, water and sewer improvements on all streets abutting the
property to be developed. The lot in question is a corner lot that will
front South Mickelson Avenue and abut Foss Court. The agreement will
require that the sidewalk, grading, curb and gutter and paving
improvements along South Mickelson be completed when at least 300-feet
of addition South Mickelson is paved. The work on Foss Court will be
delayed until such a date that additional development to the west
requires the access. The sanitary sewer and water main improvements
will need to be completed prior to the house being occupied. The
sanitary sewer will be constructed along Foss Court, while the water



will be along South Mickelson Avenue. Jose recommended approval of the
developer’s agreement.

174-13

Alderman Davies moved approval of the developer’s agreement as
presented with Richard and Sheryl Duman for Lot 1, Block 2, French East
Addition. Alderman Meins seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0.
Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.

A. Resolution to declare support for and adopt the 2013 Clay County
multi-hazard pre-disaster mitigation plan update

John Prescott, City Manager, reported that SECOG has coordinated an
effort over the last year to update the hazard mitigation pre-disaster
plan for Clay County. The last plan was completed in 2003 and approved
by FEMA in January 2004. To develop an update to the plan, a series of
five meetings were held in Vermillion between May 2012 and March 2013.
Elected officials, City and County staff members, and private utilities
in Clay County were invited to participate.

John stated that the purpose of the plan is to guide efforts in Clay
County both in Vermillion and rural areas to reduce the impacts of
significant hazards as well as to reduce the effects of these hazards.
The plan is also designed to help prevent and mitigate costs due to
post hazard events. The plan identified hazards and assessed the risks
historically faced by Clay County. The plan incorporates a mitigation
strategy that encompassed a set of goals, objectives, and action steps
to help mitigate and minimize damages imposed by hazards. John stated
that the complete plan is available for review at City Hall.

John stated that SECOG received a grant to cover their staff time spent
developing the plan update. He noted that having a current plan which
identifies potential hazards may enable the County and jurisdictions
within the County to receive grant funding to address items related to
disasters. John recommended approval of the resolution to adopt the
Clay County multi-hazard pre-disaster mitigation plan update.

175-13
After reading the same once, Alderman Zimmerman moved adoption of the
following:

RESOLUTION BY VERMILLION CITY COUNCIL, DECLARING CITY SUPPORT FOR
THE ADOPTION OF THE CLAY COUNTY
MULTI-HAZARD PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION PLAN 2012 UPDATE



WHEREAS, the Vermillion City Council supports the contents of the Clay
County Multi-Hazard Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan 2012 Update; and

WHEREAS, the Clay County Multi-Hazard Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan 2012
Update will be utilized as a guide for planning as related to FEMA Pre-
Disaster Mitigation, and other purposes as deemed appropriate by the
Vermillion City Council.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Vermillion City Council does
hereby adopt, support, and will facilitate the Clay County Multi-Hazard
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan 2012 Update implementation.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 17th day of June, 2013.

FOR THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

By

John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
By

Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

The motion was seconded by Alderman Willson. Discussion followed and
the question of the adoption of the Resolution was presented for a vote
of the Governing Body. 7 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted
in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell declared that the
Resolution was adopted.

A. Request to close portions of High Street for Clay County Fair August
8-11, 2013

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer, reported that a request was received
from the Clay County Fair Association to close High Street through the
Fairgrounds from 7:00 a.m., Thursday, August 8% through 5:00 p.m.,
Sunday, August 11* for the Clay County Fair. Mike noted that the
request is similar to previous years and that Jessica Kennedy
representing the Fair Board was present to answer questions.

176-13

Alderman Willson moved approval of the closing of High Street through
the Fairgrounds from 7:00 a.m. August 8™ through 5:00 p.m. August 11%°
for the Clay County Fair. Alderman Zimmerman seconded the motion.
Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.

A. Temporary Construction Easement for Shared Used Path along SD
Highway 19 as it abuts the Polaris property



Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that, during the construction
of the shared use path along SD Highway 50 from Stanford Street to
Dakota Street, the DOT expressed concerns about the pedestrian traffic
utilizing SD Highway 19 for travel. He stated that, in order to improve
safety for the wusers, the pedestrians and bicycle traffic will be
removed from the highway onto an adjacent path.

Jose reported that, due to the characteristics of the users, the DOT
has requested that the City utilize the remainder of the Federal grant
to construct a shared used path along SD Highway 19 between West Cherry
Street and SD Highway 50. The path would be constructed within the
DOT’s right-of-way on the east side of the road. The path would be
eight feet wide and be approximately four feet of the curb line.

Jose stated that the City will need to acquire temporary construction
easements from the adjacent property owners (Polaris and East River
Properties). The temporary easements will be valid through construction
and an additional vyear after construction is completed. Jose stated
that the three easements are required for the project to proceed to the
bidding process. Jose answered questions on the project and recommended
approval of the easements.

177-13

Alderman Willson moved approval of the temporary and permanent
easements with Polaris and East River Properties for the shared used
path along the east side of SD Highway 19 between West Cherry and SD
Highway 50. Alderman Collier-Wise seconded the motion. Motion carried 7
to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.

9. Bid Openings
A, Landfill Leachate System

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that in 2011 the City applied
for grant/loan funding for the leachate pond and collection system and
for the construction of cell 5. The funding for the project was a
$1,639,000 SRF loan, a grant of $522,210 and 35200,000 of local Joint
Powers funds. The project is being divided into two contracts, the
first being the leachate pond and collection system that will serve
some of the existing cells and future cells and then cell 5
construction that will be awarded later this year or next spring. This
project was bid with a base bid and two alternates for moving of
additional material for part of cell 5. The City’s consulting engineer
is recommending the selection of the low base bid from RS Halstead Corp
of $887,200.78 contingent wupon approval by the DENR. Discussion
followed with Jose answering questions on the project.



Belair Sitework Services: Base Bid $1,315,694, Alternate #1 $405,172,
Alternate #2 $620,538; RS Halstead Corp: Base Bid $887,200.78,
Alternate #1 $163,746.38, Alternate #2 $251,105.44; Veit Company: Base
Bid $1,092,500, Alternate #1 $273,800, Alternate  #2 $457,700;
Frattalone Companies: Base Bid $961,711.95, Alternate #1 $207,518,
Alternate #2 $298,781; J.J. Westhoff Construction: Base Bid
$946,936.50, Alternate #1 $183,307, Alternate #2 $266,943

178-13

Alderman Davies moved approval of the low base bid of RS Halstead Corp
of $887,200.78 for the Joint Powers landfill 1leachate pond and
collection system contingent upon DENR approval. Alderman Willson
seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the
motion adopted.

A. National Guard Building Boiler Replacement

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that in recent years several
emergency repairs have been performed on the armory boilers and, due to
additional problems because of their age, the armory boilers were bid
for replacement. The boilers have been in use since the armory was
built in 1986. Jose stated that the bid packets were sent to three
companies with two bids received. One bid was not read as the bid
proposal was not signed. The only bid received was from Marty
Gilbertson in the amount of $36,195.00. Jose recommended accepting the
only bid to replace the boilers in the armory.

179-13

Alderman Willson moved approval of the only bid received of Marty
Gilbertson of $36,195 for the boiler replacement in the armory.
Alderman Davies seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.

10. City Manager's Report

A. John reported that mosquito fogging will begin on Tuesday, June 18°%
in zones 1 & 2, which is north of Clark Street followed on June 19t
and 20" in zones 3 & 4 south of Clark Street. John noted that fogging
will begin at 8:30 p.m. and continue until 1:00 a.m. weather
permitting. For residents who would not like to have the fogging take
place as the equipment passes their property, they need to contact City
Hall to be included on the no fog list.

B. John reported that the dedication of the skatepark will be Tuesday,
June 18" at 1:30 p.m. Wellmark Blue Cross/Blue Shield, the major donor
through the 3 Point Program, will have a representative present.



C. John reported that Benjamin Moore has a program call Main Street
Matters where two to three communities from each state are included on
the website for voting. The top 20 communities will receive paint and
guidance in repainting their Main Street. To vote for Vermillion, go to
paintwhatmatters.com select South Dakota and then Vermillion.

D. John reported that the City Engineer approved a plat of Lots 3, 4, 5

& 6, Block 1 French’s Addition. This is the property east of the high

school on Norbeck Street.

PAYROLL ADDITIONS AND CHANGES

Library: Bobbi Greenfield $7.45/hr;

11. Invoices Payable

180-13

Alderman Davies moved approval of the following invoices:

Light Dept: Austin Anderson $28.83/hr

ADVANCED PRODUCTS POLICE SHOOTING RANGE 9,295.00
BILLION SOUTHTOWN INC 2013 POLICE CAR 28,372.00
BROADCASTER PRESS ADVERTISING 1,158.57
BUREAU OF ADMINISTRATION TELEPHONE 293.31
BUTLER MACHINERY CO. CROSS SLOPE ATTACHMENT 9,070.00
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES COPIER LEASE 196.27
CENTURYLINK TELEPHONE 1,485.99
CITY OF VERMILLION LANDFILL VOUCHERS 528.00
CLAY-UNION ELECTRIC CORP ELECTRICITY 408.95
DAVID HALVERSON UNDERGROUND REIMBURSEMENT 425.00
DEPT. ENVIRONMENT NATL RES LANDFILL OPERATIONS FEE 3,397.63
DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS TRAFFIC PAINT 5,000.30
DIVISION OF MOTOR VEHICLE TITLE/PLATES 10.00
DUST TEX SUPPLIES 24.80
GERSTNER OIL CO AIRPORT JET FUEL 4,203.50
GREGG PETERS MANAGERS FEE 5,375.00
KNOLOGY DIAL UP SERVICE 49.95
LOREN FISCHER DISPOSAL HAUL CARDBOARD 140.00
MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC SUPPLIES 529.41
MIDAMERICAN GAS USAGE 2,795.93
MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATION CABLE/INTERNET SERVICE 118.55
POLARIS EASEMENT 2.00
PRESSING MATTERS SUPPLIES 436.00
REGISTER OF DEEDS FILING FEE 60.00
RESERVE ACCOUNT POSTAGE FOR METER 950.00
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SPRINT CELL PHONES 1,280.68

STERN OIL CO. FUEL 20,003.21
STURDEVANTS AUTO PARTS PARTS 470.62
THE EQUALTIZER ADVERTISING 850.50
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE SHIPPING 22.32
US POSTMASTER POSTAGE UTILITY BILLS 1,100.00
VERMILLION ACE HARDWARE SUPPLIES 499.03
VERMILLTION CHAMBER OF COMM 4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION 3,500.00
VERMILLION FORD 2013 FORD F250 PICKUP 24,615.00
VISA/FIRST BANK & TRUST FUEL/SUPPLIES 265.59
PAUL HAGENBUCH BRIGHT ENERGY REBATE 50.00

Alderman Zimmerman seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.

12. Consensus Agenda - None

13. Executive Session

181-13
Alderman Osborne moved to go into executive session at 7:32 p.m. for
personnel matters as outlined in SDCL 1-25-2(1). Alderman Willson

seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the
council in executive session.

Mayor Powell declared the Council out of executive session at 8:00 p.m.
14. Adjourn

182-13

Alderman Osborne moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 8:01 p.m.
Alderman Zimmerman seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 17“‘day of June, 2013.

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

Published once at the approximate cost of
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Unapproved Minutes
Council Special Session
June 24, 2013

Monday 5:30 p.m.

The special meeting of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South
Dakota was called to order on Monday, June 24, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. in the
City Hall large conference room.

1. Roll Call

Present: Collier-Wise (arrived at 5:32 p.m.), Davies, Grayson, Meins,
Osborne, Ward, Willson, Zimmerman, Mayor Powell

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Adoption of Agenda

183-13

Alderman Osborne moved approval of the agenda. Alderman Davies
seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the
motion adopted.

Collier-Wise arrived at 5:32 p.m.
4. Bid Openings
A. Surplus Wheel Loader

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer, reported that bids were opened on June
18" for the sale of the surplus 2007 Caterpillar 906 wheel loader used
at the landfill. Two bids were received with the high bid from Dennis
Rumohr of $26,676.50, the second bid was $22,050.00. The amount was in
excess of the appraised value of 24,500 and it is recommended to
accept the high bid.

184-13

Alderman Willson moved approval of the high bid of Dennis Rumohr of
$26,676.50 for the sale of the surplus 2007 Caterpillar 906 wheel
loader. Alderman Meins seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to O.
Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.

5. Executive Session

185-13
Alderman Davies moved to go into executive session at 5:34 p.m. for
perscnnel matters as outlined in SDCL 1-25-2(1). Alderman Zimmerman



seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the
council in executive session.

Mayor Powell declared the Council out of executive session at 6:23 p.m.
6. Adjourn

186-13

Alderman Willson moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 6:24 p.m.
Alderman Meins seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 1. Mayor Powell
declared the motion adopted.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 24 day of June, 2013.

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

ATTEST:
BY
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

Published once at the approximate cost of




Proclamation

To designate the month of July, 2013 as Park and Recreation Month

WHEREAS, parks and recreation programs are an integral part of communities throughout this
country, including Vermillion; and

WHEREAS, our parks and recreation are vitally important to establishing and maintaining the
quality of life in our communities, ensuring the health of all citizens, and contributing to the
economic and environmental well-being of a community and region; and

WHEREAS, parks and recreation programs build healthy, active communities that aid in the
prevention of chronic disease, provide therapeutic recreation services for those who are mentally
or physically disabled, and also improve the mental and emotional health of all citizens; and

WHEREAS, parks and recreation programs increase a community’s economic prosperity
through increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, the
attraction and retention of businesses, and crime reduction; and

WHEREAS, parks and recreation areas are fundamental to the environmental well-being of our
community; and

WHEREAS, parks and natural recreation areas improve water quality, protect groundwater,
prevent flooding, improve the quality of the air we breathe, provide vegetative buffers to
development, and produce habitat for wildlife; and

WHEREAS, our parks and natural recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty of our
community and provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature and recreate
outdoors; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. House of Representatives has designated July as Parks and Recreation
Month; and

WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion recognizes the benefits derived from parks and recreation
resources.

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, do hereby proclaim
the month of July to be recognized as Park and Recreation Month in Vermillion, South Dakota.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 1* day of July, 2013.

FOR THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

By

John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:

By
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer
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&Vermllllon 6. Appointment of Administrative Officers; a & b

SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: John Prescott, City Manager
Meeting:  July 1, 2013
Subject: Appointment of Administrative Officers

Presenter: Mayor Jack Powell

Background: Under state statute, the City Finance Officer and City Attorney are
appointed by the Governing Body as follows:

9-10-9. Officers and employees appointed by governing body--Others appointed by city manager.
The auditor, attorney, library board of trustees, and the treasurer shall be appointed by the governing
body and may be removed at any time by such governing body. The auditor and the treasurer shall
each appoint all deputies and employees in his office. All other officers and employees, including all
members of boards and commissions, except as otherwise provided by law, shall be appointed by the
manager and may be removed by him.

Discussion: Mike Carlson and Jim McCulloch have served as City Finance Officer and
City Attorney, respectively, and are interested in continuing their service.

Financial Consideration: The salary of the City Finance Officer is set by the payroll
resolution each January. The City Attorney is paid an hourly rate for his services. The
May hourly rate for the City Attorney was $84.

Conclusion/Recommendations: A separate motion should be made for the appointment
of the City Finance Officer and City Attorney.
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer
Meeting:  July 1, 2013
Subject: Official Newspaper

Presenter: Mike Carlson

Background: State statute requires the designation of an official newspaper as follows:

9-12-6. Designation of official newspapers. Every municipality shall designate at a meeting of its
governing body an official newspaper or newspapers for the ensuing year. The newspaper shall be
published in the municipality. However, if there is no newspaper published in such municipality,
then a newspaper published outside of such municipality may be used if such newspaper serves such
municipality.

Discussion: The Vermillion Plain Talk has previously been designated as the official
newspaper. As the Plain Talk is the only local newspaper, City Council must designate it
as the official newspaper.

Financial Consideration: It is a requirement of state law to publish public notices,
minutes, etc. in the official newspaper. The publication of the minutes and notices for the
finance office, alone, cost $13,587 last year.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends adoption of a motion to
designate the Vermillion Plain Talk as the official newspaper.
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&Vermllllon 7. Other Appointments and Designations; item b

SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer
Meeting:  July 1, 2013
Subject: Designation of Official Depositories

Presenter: Mike Carlson

Background: State statute requires the City Council to designate the official depositories
of city funds:

9-22-6. Designation of depositories for municipal funds. The governing body shall designate the
depository or depositories in which the funds belonging to the municipality shall be deposited. Such
depository or depositories shall be a bank or banks within the State of South Dakota, unless
otherwise specifically provided by law.

Discussion: The City Council has designated the following as official depositories:

CorTrust Bank

First Bank & Trust

First Dakota National Bank

Bank of the West

South Dakota Public Funds Investment Trust

Wells Fargo

First National Bank in Sioux Falls (Trustee on City Hall and Transmission line bonds)

Financial Consideration: None

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council
designate the above listed financial institutions as official depositories for city funds next
year.
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer
Meeting:  July 1,2013
Subject: Consolidated Board of Equalization

Presenter: Mike Carlson

Background: The County, City, and School have adopted a resolution that provides for
the consolidated board of equalization under the following statute:

10-11-66. Consolidated board of equalization authorized--Membership. In lieu of the local board of
equalization and county board of equalization established and governed pursuant to §§10- 11-13 to
10-11-31, inclusive, the governing boards of any county, municipality, school, and township may
agree by resolution to consolidate the local board of equalization with the county board of
equalization no later than the second Tuesday of November. The resolution shall state the number of
members from each governing board that will sit as a consolidated board of equalization.
Membership of the consolidated board of equalization shall include members of school and
municipal governing boards and the county commission. Membership of the consolidated board may
also include members of township governing boards. All governmental responsibilities and expenses
associated with equalization of property under the provisions of chapters 10-3 and 10-11 shall be
shared as mutually agreed upon by the governing bodies. Governing bodies not exercising this
option shall continue to hear appeals as prescribed in §§10-11-13 to 10-11-31, inclusive.

Discussion: While the three entities have adopted a resolution, the county has asked that
the City reaffirm its intent to continue the consolidated board annually. If we did not have
a consolidated board, the city board would need to meet on all appeals within the city. If
the citizen or the county assessor did not like the local board decision, the citizen would
need to attend the county board meeting.

Financial Consideration: There are none to the City.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council continue
the consolidated board of equalization through passage of a motion indicating this desire.
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: John Prescott, City Manager

Meeting:  July 1,2013

Subject: Determination of Rules of Order

Presenter:  John Prescott

Background: The City Council is obligated to identify “commonly accepted rules of
procedure” for the conduct of its meetings. Robert’s Rules of Order is identified in the
City Council’s “Rules and Procedures” manual as the proper guide for the conduct of

meetings. The 9™ Edition of Robert’s Rules of Order has been the version used in the
past.

Discussion: The 9™ Edition of Robert’s Rules of Order appears to work well. The City
Council has some familiarity with this version, which makes its continuation seem
reasonable.

Financial Consideration: None

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council identify
the 9" Edition of Robert’s Rules of Order as its commonly accepted rules of procedure
for the conduct of meetings.

Administration also recommends the City Council re-affirm the “Rules and Procedures”
manual drafted in March 2006 and update to reflect new City Code numbering in 2008 as
the primary policy manual. A copy of the Rules and Procedures document was included
in notebook provided to all City Council members when service began or when
orientation sessions were held.
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer
Meeting:  July 1,2013

Subject: Street Closure Request — Portions of Main, Court, and Center Streets for
Tri-State Drive-In Cruisers.

Presenter: Mike Carlson

Background: The Tri-State Drive-in Cruisers are hosting their annual car show on
Wednesday, July 17, 2013. The group is requesting the temporary closure of portions of
West Main Street, Court Street, and Center Street. A copy of the application from the
organization is attached.

Discussion: The Tri-State Drive-in Cruisers are requesting the closure of the following
streets:

- Main Street, from Prospect Street to the Bank of the West Drive-thru
. /2 of Court Street from Main Street to the alley
. Center Street from Main Street to National Street

The group requests the streets to be closed from 3:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m.

The Police, Fire, and EMS Departments have been notified of the closure request and
have found no safety concerns. The applicant indicated they will take care of any clean-
up and have notified property owners adjacent to the proposed closure area.

Financial Consideration: None

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends allowing the closure on
July 17, 2013 from 3:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. to facilitate the success of the Tri-State
Cruisers event.

e



Request to Close Public Street

Requests to close a public street for an event or activity are taken to the City Council for
approval. The following application is requested to be submitted to the City Managers office for
a street closing one week prior to the Council Meeting.

REQUEST TO CLOSE CITY STREET
CITY OF VERMILLION

This application shall be completed in time to be submitted to the City Council for consideration.
City Council meetings are the first and third Mondays of each month. Requests are to be
submitted to the City Managers office one week prior to the meeting to be included on the
meeting agenda. The proposal shall contain all applicable information relative to the nature and
purpose of the event the street closing is requested for, if additional space is needed please attach
additional sheets or application letter with the required information.

Organization Requesting ¢ Yoz (*lssic (opuiscs o) SODACS

Contact Person {3 4 G//k}/&'o/i/ Phone 465- 659 ~/23¢

- : /
Contact Person Address XY Gocﬁﬁ? Ave. VzRmllivw, S5
Event /RZ STp7e (fuisEns ( Chuise ?@Date(S) of Event M( 7

Street(s) Requesting to be closed (Include a map if needed.)

street Mam/ Sz from [ DosPeeT to %&MMUML

Street Closing Times ,7," (30 to 2. 3%

If the street closing requested would affect other residents or businesses have they been notified
of the request. Yes  No & @qu.)

Have arrangements been made for clean up after the event and other facilities? Please describe:

Ves  whk will otk Theouge v Check [T 0eT
CLupn ep

[f approved the contact person will need to make arrangements with the Street Departr;eﬁt for
barricades to properly deno}g the street closing.
A

Signature of applicant /{({/

date z
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ANTIQUES, CLASSICS, CUSTOMS, STREETRODS, CORVETTES,
RATRODS, STREET MACHINES, MUSCLE CARS, SHOEBOXES, LOW-RIDERS,
PRO-STREETS, HOPPERS, TUNERS, TRUCKS
IF IT'S A CLASSIC TO YOU, IT'S A CLASSIC TO US’
Wed April 3  Langers, Sheldon, IA (Formerly -Family Table)
Wed April 10 Wendy'’s, South Sioux By-Pass, South Sioux City, NE
Wed April 17 Godfathers / Dairy Queen, Hwy 59, Cherokee, I1A
Wed April 24 Bronson, A (Sponsors — Nick's Garage, Bronson Grille & Bar)
Wed May 1 Ireton Downtown, Ireton, 1A
Wed May 8 Western lowa Tech, Auto Plant Bldg., Sioux City, I1A
Wed May 15 Brunsville ( Sponsor: American Legion) Brunsville, IA
Extra Sat May 18 Speedway Museum Tour, Lincoln, NE
Extra Sun May 19 Cruise-Fly In Breakfast, Airport, All Vehicles welcome, Cherokee, |1A 7 am -
Wed May22 Kingsley Downtown, (Sponsor — Affordable Cars), Kingsley, |1A
Wed May?29 Ver Hoef Chevrolet, Sioux Center, IA
Wed Juneb5  Marcus Downtown, Marcus, IA (Sponsor- Pizza Ranch)
Extra SatJune 8 Lewis & Clark Interpretive Center, Larson Park Road, Sioux City, IA (p.m.)
Wed June 12 Ice Cream Days, Bob’s Drive Inn, Le Mars, IA
Extra — Sat June 15 Graffiti Night, Michaels Drive In, Onawa, IA 4-10 p.m. Cruise at 8.
Wed June 19 Fremont Tire, (Hwy 77 By-pass near Walmart) South Sioux City, NE
Wed June 26 Arnold Motors, Business Hwy 75 N, Le Mars, |A
Extra Sat June 22 American Cancer Society Cruise, Ickey Nickel, Sioux City, 1A
Wed July3 Chick-Fil-A, (Southern Hills Parking Lot), Sioux City, IA
Wed July 10 Remsen, Downtown, Remsen, 1A (Sponsor — Remsen Union High School)
Wed July 17 Vermillion Downtown, Vermillion, SD (Dakota Classic Cruisers & SODAC'S)

Extra Fri-Sun July 19-21 Rock’n Rods, Sioux City Downtown Partners, Sioux City, 1A
Extra Sun July 21 Cruise In - Dakota County Fair, So Sioux City, NE

Wed July 24 Merrill, IA Downtown (Larry’s Automotive, Perera’s, Emma Rae’s)
Wed July 31 Four Corners A & W, Moville, 1A

Extra — Sun Aug 4 34th Sumrfest Car Cruise, Dakota City, NE 11- 3, no fee, prizes
Wed Aug7 Total Sales & Service, Business Hwy 75, Le Mars, |A

Wed Aug 14 McDonalds, I-29 & Singing Hills Blvd., Sioux City, 1A

Wed Aug 21 Scoop Da Loop, 6p.m. Convention Center to Downtown, Le Mars, IA
Wed Aug 28 Elk Point Downtown, Elk Point, SD (Sponsor — Edgars Soda Fountain)
Extra Sat Aug 31 Hawarden Rib Fest, Hawarden, IA (Cruise In 4:30- Rumbles 7:30-11)
Wed Sept4  Akron Downtown, Akron, IA

Wed Sept 11 Correctionville High School, Correctionville, 1A

Wed Sept 18 Alton Downtown (Sponsors TAG'S & Double D) Alton, IA

Wed Sept25 McDonald’s, I-29, North Sioux City, SD

Mick Even Terry Gries Dar Huls
712-540-3464 712-938-2471 712-546-7325
micks1@premieronline.net wnnova67@gmail.com dhuls35@hotmail.com

22nd Season " SUMMER 2013
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Jose Dominguez, City Engineer
Meeting:  July 1, 2013

Subject: Final Plat of Lots 3-4 in Block 1, Lots 2-7 in Block 2, Lots 1-5 in Block 3,
Lots 1-2 in Block 4, and Outlots A and B of French East Addition to the
City of Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota

Presenter: Jose Dominguez

Background: Banner Associates has submitted a final plat for a portion of French East
Addition. The land to be final platted is roughly 18-acres in area, with 5.45-acres being
platted into developable lots. The majority of the lots to be platted will be fronting South
Mickelson Street. A drainage pond will be platted into a lot, which will front Foss Court.
There will be additional easements platted within the outlots. The outlots will be used for
drainage purposes. This Final Plat will open 14 single-family lots for development.
Additional single-family lots will open when the balance of the 18-acre tract is final
platted in the future.

The final plat was reviewed by the Planning Commission at their June 24™ meeting. At
that meeting the Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the Council
approve the plat.

Discussion: Staff reviewed the final plat and find that it complies with all code
provisions. The applicant will also be dedicating all of the required utility easements
around the lots. In addition, the developer will also be platting the required drainage
easements. In conjunction with the plat, the developer is being asked to sign an
agreement/covenant that will run with the land. This document will further detail the
property owner’s responsibilities over the drainage easements. The agreement/covenant
will also delineate what the owner may do over the easement.

Financial Considerations: All associated platting fees have been paid by the applicant.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Staff finds that the final plat meets all of the ordinance
requirements and recommends approval of the final plat contingent on the approval of the
agreement and covenants for French East Addition being approved.
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PLAT OF
LOTS 3-4 IN BLOCK 1, LOTS 2-7 IN BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-5 IN BLOCK 3, AND LOTS
1-2 IN BLOCK 4, OUTLOTS A & B OF FRENCH EAST ADDITION TO THE CITY

OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

1, Mathin W. Nielson, Registered Land Surveyor In the Stale of South Diaketa, do hereby cerify that at the direction of FRENGH INVESTMENTS, LL.C.. have surveyed and re-platted a tract of land in:
ERENCH EAST ADDITION EXCEPT LOT 1, BLOCK 1, FRENCH EAST ADDITION ALL IN THE CITY OF VERMILLION, LAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAXOTA.

This tract of land shall heraafter be Known a5 LOTS 3-4 IN BLOCK 1, LOTS 2.7 IN BLOCGK 2, LOTS 1-5 IN BLOCK 3, AND LOTS 1-2 IN BLOCK 4, OUTLOTS A & B OF FRENGH EAST ADDITION TO
THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKDTA.

I certify thal the locations and dimensions as shown on the plat are lrue and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and bellef and that monuments were set al the corners so indicaled. Said
survey was surveyed and platled by me or under my direct personal supervision, following generally accepted Professional Standards for Surveying and Platting in the State of South Dakota.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set my hand and seal the DAY OF .20
Nathan W. Nielson Banner Associales, Inc.
Registered Land Surveyor 14 W, Main SL., Suite A
Regislration No, 9924 Vermillion, South Dakota 57069
Tel. (Toll Free): 1-855-323-6342
CERTIFICATE OF OWNER

We, FRENCH INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., do hereby cerlify that we are the owners of all land included in the above plal and that the plat has been made al my request and in accordance wilh my
Instructions for the purposes Indlcated hereln,

We, FRENCH INVESTMENTS, L L.C,, certlfy that said plat was made at our request and direction for the purpose of localing, marking, and platting lhe same, and thal said property is free of all
encumberances, We also certlfy that development of Lhis land shall conform lo all exlsting applicable zonlng, subdlvision, and eroslon and sediment control regulations. Ills further provided that any
streets, roads, alleys, and/or olher easements shown on this plat are hereby, or have been prevlously, dedicated for the purpose indicated thereon.

We, FRENCH INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., certify thal this replat will not place any existing lot or building In violation of any applicable ordinance, code, regulation, law including but not llmited to zoning,
bullding, subdlvislon, and flood prevenlion.

Wo, FRENCH INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., our successors and/or asslgns, or other entity other than the Clty of Vermillllon are responslble for malntenance and upkeep of dralnage easements and facilltles,
are responslble for he conslruction of sidewalks and for their maintenance along drainage easements fronting public right-of ways, and shall not erect any structures, fences, or aller the elevations
within the drainage easements wilhoul prior approval from the City of Vermillion. This addition to owner's cerlificale is binding upon subdivision owners, successors and assigns, and is intended as a
covenant lo run with the land,

Pursuant o SOCL 11-3-20,1, | further cartify thal thls platiing of sald Ibod LOTS 3.4 IN BLOCK 4, LOTS 2-7 IN BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-5 IN BLOCK 3, AND LOTS 1-2 IN BLOCK 4, OUTLOTS AS B
OF FRENCH EAST ADDITION TO THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SCUTH DAKOTA does hérebly vacale a portion of the Tollowing platling:

PBLAT OF FRENCH EAST ADDITION TO THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA on file at the Register of Deeds office in Piat Bogk 7 Page 80, sald plat or part thereol,
hareby vicatod, being siuated within described LOTS 3-4 IN BLOCK 1, LOTS 2.7 IN BLOCK 2, LOTS 1.5 IN BLOCK 3, AND LOTS 1-2 IN BLOCK 4, QUTLOTS A 7 B OF FRENCH EAST ADDITION
1O THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAXOTA as surveyed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have set my hand the DAY OF .20 =
ROLLIE W, FRENCH, AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY
SUSAN M. FRENCH, AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY
STATE OF
COUNTY OF { 88
On the day of .20 . before the underslgned officer, personally appeared ROLLIE W. FRENCH & SUSAN M, FRENGH, AUTHORIZED

SIGNATORIES OF FRENCH INVESTMENTS, L.L.C.. knewh to me or salisfactorily proven to be the person(s) whose name are subscribed to the within Instrument and acknowledged that he
executed the same for the purposes herein contalned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF | have hereunto set my hand and official seal this day ol 20

Notary Public My Commission Expires

VERMILLION CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, it appears that the owner(s) thereof has/have caused a plat to be made of the follawing described real property: Plat of LOTS 34 IN BLOCK 1, LOTS 2-7 INBLOCK 2, LOTS 1-5IN
BLOCK 3, ANDLOTS 1.2 IN BLOCK 4, OUTLOTS A & B OF FRENCH EAST ADDITION TO THE CITY OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA.

BE IT RESOLVED, that the attached and foregoing plat has been submitted to and a report and recommendalion hereon, made by the Vermillion Planning Commission lo the Vermilfion Cily Council
and has recommended approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attached and foregolng plat has been submitted to the Goveining Body of the City of Vermilllion, which has examined the same; that it appears the system of
streels and alleys set lorth therein conforms to the system of streets and alleys of Vermilllon; that all taxes and special assessmenls, if any, upon (he tract or subdivislen have been fully pald; that such
plat and survey thereof have been executed according to law; lhe same is hereby accordingly approved. Dated this day of .20 .

Mayor, City of Vermillion, South Dakota

I, he undersigned Finance OFficer of the Clty of Vermiliion, South Dakota, do hereby certify thal the within and foregolng Is a true copy of the resolution passed by the City Council of the City of
Vermillion, South Dakola on this day of 20__ . Finance Offlcer, Clly of Vermllllon, South Dakota

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY TREASURER

The undersigned, County Treasurer of Clay County, South Dakota, hereby cerlifies lhat all taxes that are liens upon the land included in the above plat, as shown by the records of this office, have been
fully paid. Daled this day of

Treasurer, Clay County, South Dakota

CERTIFICATE OF DIRECTOR OF EQUALIZATION

The undersigned, Direclor or Equalization of Clay County, South Dakaota, hereby certifies lhat [ have received a copy of the foregolng plat. Dated lhis day of
20 .

Director of Equalizalion, Clay County, South Dakola

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTER OF DEEDS
Filed for record lhis day of .20

R a'clock M, and recorded In Book of Plats, on page

PREPARED BY:

BANNER ASSOCIATES, ING. Reglsler of Deeds, Clay County, SD
VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

(855) 323-6342

JUNE 2013

SHEET 2 OF 2
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GRID BEARING
SCALE: 1" = 100"

PLAT OF
LOTS 3-4 INBLOCK 1, LOTS 2-7 IN BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-5 IN BLOCK 3, AND LOTS
1-2 IN BLOCK 4, OUTLOTS A & B OF FRENCH EAST ADDITION TO THE CITY

OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA
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VACATION NOTICE

THIS PLAT SHALL VACATE A PORTION OF
FRENCH EAST ADDITION TO THE CITY OF
VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA
PLAT BOOK 7 PAGE 80

PREPARED BY:
BANNER ASSOCIATES, INC.
VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
(855) 323-6342

JUNE 2013

LEGEND

® MONUMENT SET THIS SURVEY 5/8" REBAR
WITH STAMPED PLASTIC CAP #9924

O  MONUMENT FOUND

/)] STORM SEWER DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

T
i

I

|

1 AND UTILITY EASEMENT
I

I

|

I

|

)

SURVEYORS NOTES

NOTE 1 -
NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

ALL LOTS CONTAIN AN 8' PERIMETER UTILITY EASEMENT.
ADDITIONAL WIDTH STORM SEWER DRAINAGE EASEMENT
AS SHOWN ABOVE.

THE WEST 6 RODS OF THE NE1/4 OF THE NE1/4 AND THE
EAST 26 RODS OF THE NW1/4 OF THE NE1/4 EXCEPT 33' OF
SECTION LINE ROW ON THE NORTH THEREOF, AND
EXCEPT FRENCH'S TRACT 1 AND FRENCH'S TRACT 2
THEREOF, IN SECTION 19, T92N, R51W OF THE 5TH P.M.,
CITY OF VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SD,

SHEET 10F 2




@Véi'wlﬁillion 10. New Business; item ¢

SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Jose Dominguez, City Engineer
Meeting: July 1, 2013

Subject: Agreement and Covenants for Lots 3 and 4 in Block 1, Lots 1 and 2 in
Block 4 and Outlot A and B of French East Addition with French
Investments, L.L.C.

Presenter: Jose Dominguez

Background: The owner of French East Addition is planning on ultimately developing
18-acres of farmland into 53 single-family lots. The development, although beneficial to
the City, will also generate a considerable amount of storm drainage runoff.
Additionally, part of the land to be developed is currently being drained on by the
neighboring land. The proposed development will address all of the drainage issues being
generated by the development and also allow for the drainage from neighboring
properties to be conveyed through the land. The agreement on hand will set forth
parameters that the property owner will have to abide by.

Discussion: The plat previously approved showed several drainage easements around the
property. These easements will be used either to convey storm water or to detain it. The
agreement states that the owner of the land will be responsible for mowing, weeding and
landscaping. All other maintenance issues associated with the drainage easements will be
the responsibility of the City (e.g. mucking of silt in the pond, fixing a broken pipe, etc.).
In addition, the agreement prohibits the owner of the lot from erecting any structures,
building a fence or changing the elevations within the easements. This is due to the fact
that the easements are meant to convey storm water and we do not want a structure built
within the easement to dam the water. The drainage easements will also convey water
from a couple of low spots along the perimeter of the property into the pond or pipe.
This will improve the area by removing existing low spots and will also allow the
developer to built the land without negatively impacting the neighbors

Financial Considerations: The City will incur the $30.00 filing fee.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends signing the agreement and
covenants with French Investments, L.L.C.




Prepared by: The City of Vermillion
25 Center Street
Vermillion, SD 57069
605-677-7050

AGREEMENT AND COVENANTS

The City of Vermillion, South Dakota, and French Investments, L.L.C., owners, witnesseth:

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and the benefits to be derived therefrom, the parties agree
as follows:

The property owners, their successors or assigns, intend to develop the land presently described as:

Lots 3 and 4 in Block 1, Lots 1 and 2 in Block 4, and Outlots A and B of French East Addition to the City of
Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota.

STORM SEWER DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT:

The owners of this subdivision, their successors and/or assigns, or other entity other than the City of Vermillion are
responsible for maintenance and upkeep of drainage easements and facilities. The owners, their successors and/or
assigns shall also be responsible for the construction of sidewalks and for their maintenance along drainage
easements fronting public right-of ways.

The property owner shall be responsible for mowing, weeding and landscaping within the drainage casements. The
City of Vermillion shall have the right to enter the drainage easements to inspect said drainage facilities at any time.
If these easements are not properly designed, constructed, installed or maintained, the City of Vermillion shall notify
the property owner in writing and shall inform the owner that corrective action by the owner shall be required.

The owners of this subdivision, their successors and/or assigns, may not erect any structures, or fences, or alter the
elevations within the drainage easements without prior approval from the City of Vermillion.

The City of Vermillion does not assume any liability for drainage facilities designed, constructed, installed, or
maintained within this subdivision. The City of Vermillion reviews drainage plans, but cannot, and does not, on
behalf of the applicant, owner or developer, become the guarantor or insurer for proper drainage design, which is the
responsibility of the applicant’s, owner’s, or developer’s design personnel or entity. Proposed drainage design
approval by the City of Vermillion will not relieve said applicant, owner, successors and assigns or developers from
liability to third parties due to improper design or maintenance, and City of Vermillion approval of final plat does
not warrant the drainage design within that plat.

This is binding upon subdivision owners, successors and assigns, and is intended as a covenant to run with the land.

Dated this ~__dayof -
OWNER: FRENCH INVESTMENT, L.L.C. FOR THE CITY OF VERMILLION
]
& 2 Al 4
By:_'_L_z_‘Mé(g‘é /_5’ ﬁd <. By: o
" Rollie W. French John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA )
/ :SS
COUNTY OF &/ t_ly )

\Qn dlﬂ{égf day ot'J;(ﬁ € 2013 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared Rollie W. French
¥ . kridwn to ﬁié"qr satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
& a%kp\owle‘dgc ahat he executed the same for the purposes therein contained.

o . y .
- - é;_wm&gh,ereof I hereunto set my hand and official scal.
y - -‘ 3 / \' : {

RN AN _@M/M

Ry 5

SR O Notary Public /
D1 TH OF % /
My Commission Expires: L 7
¥ rd
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA )
:SS

COUNTY OF f/% )

On th isg’ 7 %day of :-_/ dft € 2013 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared Susan M. French
) kQEX/ to me or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
Y \:jac uo%:@@l\ﬁcdl that he executed the same for the purposes therein contained.
B

A2 v
& D s
I 01uhvﬁ1_¢ss, wﬁ’ereofl hereunto sct my hand and official seak—
I R4 .
RN~ (7 3
oi'a--:p-"jx,v: L MM
A

‘:v Notary Public TP
Bl ’\
o130 N My Commission Expires: 7%/ 77
M OF souTH DAKOTA ) 77
:SS
COUNTY OF )

On the day of , before me, the undersigned Officer, personaily appeared John E.
(Jack) Powell, who acknowledged himself as Mayor of the City of Vermillion, and that he as Mayor being
authorized so to do executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing the name of the
corporation by himself as Mayor.

[n witness whereot I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

ﬁotary Public

My Commission Expires:

Page 2 of 2



CITY OF g g4 o
@Vermllllon 10. New Business; item d

SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Jose Dominguez, City Engineer
Meeting:  July 1, 2013
Subject: First Reading of Ordinance No. 1301 - Amending Chapter 152 Signs

Presenter: Jose Dominguez

Background: In 2010 the City was approached by USD to add signs along certain City
streets to help visitors find USD buildings. The signs that were proposed were not
allowed to be installed since they did not meet the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices. This manual sets all of the federally mandated standards for signs, striping,
traffic control, traffic signals, etc. Additionally, the signs could not be installed along
Cherry Street since this is controlled by the State. Since 2010 the State has adopted a
policy which allows municipalities to install wayfinding signs along the DOT routes. The
DOT, however, requires that the municipalities first adopt an ordinance for the
wayfinding signs.

Discussion: The proposed ordinance will be amending the existing sign ordinance by
including a section for wayfinding sings. Wayfinding signs will be defined as a sign used
to direct tourists, visitors and other road users to key civic, cultural and visitor attractions
within the City. The ordinance will also have criteria for locations to meet in order for
them to be considered a civic, cultural or visitor destination. As required by the State, the
ordinance will also have the specifications for what the signs will look like (black text on
white background with red arrows, and a double border of red and black). The City logo
will be located on the top portion of the sign.

The DOT has reviewed the proposed ordinance. All of the comments made by the DOT
have been incorporated into the ordinance.

Financial Consideration: At this point the only cost will be for the publication of the
ordinance. Once the ordinance has been adopted, the City will purchase the proposed
signs and posts for installation. It is estimated that the signs will cost $20,000. The
acquisition and installation of the signs was budgeted for in the 2013 BBB budget.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends adoption of first reading of
ordinance number 1301.




ORDINANCE NO. 1301

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 152, SIGNS, SECTION 152.02 DEFINITIONS, AND
ADDING SECTION 152.14 WAYFINDING SIGNS, OF THE 2008 REVISED ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA, REGARDING REGULATIONS FOR SIGNS WITHIN
THE CITY OF VERMILLION AND THE JOINT JURISDICTIONAL ZONING AREA OF CLAY
COUNTY.

BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH
DAKOTA:

That Sections 152.02 be amended to read as follows and the additional new Section 152.14 read as
Jollows:

152.02 DEFINITIONS

WAYFINDING SIGN. A sign used to direct tourists, visitors, and other road users to key civic,
cultural and visitor attractions within the City.

152.14 WAYFINDING SIGNS

(A) Criteria
a. Wayfinding signs will be allowed for locations meeting the following criteria:
i. Civic Destinations:
1. City administrative facilities
2. County administrative facilities
3. States administrative facilities
4. University of South Dakota administrative facilities
ii. Cultural Destinations:
City and County parks
Public libraries
Public museums
4-H Grounds
Vermillion High School athletic and cultural facilities
University of South Dakota athletic and cultural facilities
iii. Visitor Destinations:
1. Business areas (e.g. downtown) directly associated, and impacted, by
tourists. A business within a business area will not be allowed to
have a separate place within a wayfinding guide sign.

Sinh o= SFED =

(B) Design
a. Number of destinations:
i. Only three destinations will be allowed on a sign within the State’s right-
of-way.
ii. Only four destinations will be allowed on a sign within the City’s right-of-
way.
b. Size:
i. Signs within the State’s right-of-way shall be no more than 48-inces wide
and 56-inches tall.
ii. Signs within the City’s right-of-way will be the same width, but shall be
64-inches tall.



iii. The height of either sign includes the space for the City logo.
Text:
i. The text shall be, at a minimum, 6-inches for the uppercase letters and 4 Y-
inches for the lowercase letters.
ii. The text shall comply with the latest version of the Manual on Uniform
Traffic Control Devices.

Colors:
i. Background: White
i. Text: Black
iii. Arrows: Red

iv. Outside Border: Black
v. Inside Border:  Red
Retroreflectivity:

i. Retroreflectivity shall comply with the latest version of the Manual on

Uniform Traffic Control Devices.
Sign Layout:

i. All signs shall be laid out as follows:

1. Directional arrows shall be placed on the left hand side of the sign
for destinations requiring motorists to turn left or continue straight.
Destinations requiring motorist to turn right shall require directional
arrows on the right hand side of the sign.

2. If multiline of text is required, the text will be center on the
directional arrow.

3. The city logo shall be prominently displayed at the top of the sign.

Installation:

i. Signs shall be installed by City crews, or under the City supervision. The
height and lateral location of the sign shall comply with the latest version
of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

General Provisions and Assurances:

i. Wayfinding signs shall comply with the following:

1. South Dakota Department of Transportation Policy No. DOT-OS-
0T-9.0
2. Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 1* day of July, 2013

ATTEST:

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

By

John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

First Reading:
Second Reading:
Publication:
Effective Date:

July 1, 2013
July 15, 2013
July 26, 2013
August 15, 2013
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Jose Dominguez, City Engineer
Meeting:  July 1, 2013
Subject: Work Order for West Main Street Mill and Overlay Project

Presenter: Jose Dominguez

Background: Currently, West Main Street from High Street to Stanford Street is
scheduled to be milled and overlaid during the 2015 construction season. In order to have
the construction documents ready by that time, we need to contract with a consultant now
for the survey and design work of the new street.

Discussion: A work order for the project will allow Sayre Associates to complete the
construction documents and topographical work required for the construction of the
improvements along West Main Street. The work to be covered by the work order is
described, in detail, in the attached scope of services provided by the DOT. Within the
scope of services, the DOT also outlines deadlines that will have to be met for the project.
For example, the preliminary plans will have to be delivered to the DOT for review no
later than November 15, 2013, while the final plans will be submitted around July 1%,
2014. The scope of services also requires that the project be completed by May 1%, 2015.

Financial Consideration: The cost associated with the design and topographical work
will be paid directly by the DOT out of the City’s allocated STIP funds. The DOT has set
a price not to exceed $43,540.91 for the work order.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council
approve and sign the Work Order for the West Main Street Mill and Overlay project.




WORK ORDER FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
GENERAL

Work Order No.._LGA-20-13 Agreement No.;__ 410509 Date: May 30, 2013
Consultant: Sayre Associates, Inc.

PROJECT INFORMATION

Project No.._P 5708(05) PCN:__04AF County OR City: City of Vermillion
Project Type/Description: _Survey & Design

Project Location VWest Main St. from High St. to Stanford St. in Vermillion
Scope of Work: - See Attachment |

SERVICES REQUIRED
Estimated Hours  Total Hourly Rate Estimaied Cost
See Attachment Il

REIMBURSEMENT FOR TRAVEL
Same as above

MAXIMUM LIMITING AMOUNT

$43,540.91 (Fixed Fee $ 4,658.46)

COMPLETION DATE

work order shall be May 1, 2015.

CONTACT PERSONS

SDDOT._Laurie Schultz, Program Manager
CONSULTANT:_Jeff Boldt, P.E.
CITY: City of Vermillion, Official

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Types of Insurance Expiration Date
General Liability 11/01/2013
Automobile Liability 11/01/2013
Worker's Compensation 11/01/2013
Errors and Omissions 11/01/2013
APPROVAL BY.

DOT:

L 7 DATE

. -—
CONSULTANT:____ < o 31 )13
DATE
CITY: _ .
CONCURRENCE DATE
Distribution:
(?) Originals - 1 Consultant, 1 Initiating Agency
MCITY

)
(1) Division of Finance
- (1) Internal Audits

See Attachment | (Scope of Services) for interim dates and deliverables. The overall completion date of this

On File
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes




Department of Transportation
= EATE Division of Planning and Engineering

Office of Administration

700 East Broadway Avenue

Picrre, South Dakota 57501-2586

OFFICE: 605/773-3574
FAX: 605/773-4870

Cununecting South Dakota and the Nation

MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 29,2013
TO: Sayre Associates — Sioux Falls

FROM: Wade Dahl, Urban Systems Engineer
Local Government Assistance

SUBJECT: Survey and Plans Preparation for P 5708(05), PCN 04AF — West Main Street from
High Street to Stanford Street in Vermillion, SD,

The City of Vermillion has requested that your firm be employed to complete the work as defined in
the following scope of services. Please prepare a breakdown of the estimated costs required to
accomplish this work and submit it to Local Government Assistance in care of Jennie Weingart,
Consultant Services Specialist, for preparation of the work order under the State’s retainer contract.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Survey:

* [dentify project limits and scoping details as established through consultation
with the City Engineer or Public Works Director.

= Perform field survey as necessary to establish project stationing, control data,
and horizontal alignment data.

* Perform legal survey as required to establish easements and generate right-of-
way plats (if necessary) for use by the city.

= Complete right-of-way documentation and exhibits, and assist or acquire
easements and agreements for the project if requested by the City.

* Provide staking for right-of-way acquisition as necessary.

" Survey notes are to be retained on file with the Consultant for subsequent use in
the preparation of construction plans and are to be available to the City and DOT
upon request.



2, Prepare Preliminary Plans:

Prepare preliminary plans which include begin and end of project limits,
stationing, horizontal and vertical alignments, work limits, and existing and
proposed ROW drawn and dimensioned. The preliminary plans should also
include cross sections, location of intersecting streets and access points, utilities,
size and location of any pipes or structures, typical sections, and any items that
could affect the environmental process (such as wetlands, park propertics,
ete...).

Preliminary plans are to be submitted in PDF format with one hard copy to this
office no later than November 15, 2013.

Once the preliminary plans are submitted, your firm will schedule an on-site
inspection with this office, the City Engineer or Public Works Director, the DOT
Area Office, and your firm, Within two weeks of the inspection, your firm will
send a summary of the on-site inspection to those who attended.

Organize, attend, and provide services for public meetings as required by the
City Engineer.

3. Prepare and Submit Encroachment Survey:

Prepare and submit one hard copy and an electronic version of the encroachment
survey to this office once all permanent ROW boundaries have been determined.
The survey must be presented in the proper format according to the DOT’s
Encroachment Survey Guide. The encroachment survey will be submitted to
this office no later than May 1, 2014.

4, Prepare and Submit Review Plans:

Prepare and submit review plans as a PDF file (along with one hard copy) to the
Local Government Assistance office for review and comments. Plans should be
prepared according to the DOT Road Design Manual with DOT bid item
numbers & descriptions, and DOT standard plates and notes. Review plans are
to be submitted no later than May 1, 2014. The review plans must be as close to
100% as possible and should include all details and information necessary to let
the project. Project design must be in accordance with the South Dakota
Department of Transportation (SDDOT) Local Roads Plan, SDDOT
specifications, and must be compliant with AASHTO, MUTCD, and ADA
standards (please be advised the SDDOT utilizes PROWAG as the
appropriate ADA guidelines). Plans must include standard beginning and end
stations, control data, and horizontal alignment data.

Prepare and provide an electronic estimate for the project when requested by the
City or SDDOT.

Provide support and information, and answer questions as requested by City
during landowner meetings.



5.

Prepare and Submit Final Plans:

Revise plans in accordance with review letters and comments provided by the
SDDOT and other appropriate entities.

Provide a written response addressing each individual comment as to whether or
not the comment was addressed (including a justification for any changes that
are not made).

Provide final plans (PDF file and one stamped and signed hard copy) to LGA
within three (3) weeks of the date of the last review letter.

Attend final project meeting and plans inspection prior to construction.

Answer questions regarding the final plans that may come up during the bid
letting process or construction.

Review shop fabrication drawings as may be required and submit the approved
shop drawings to the DOT for subsequent review and approval. This task is to
be completed within two (2) weeks of receipt of the shop or fabrication drawings
from the contractor.

6. Construction Miscellaneous: (Maximum of 20 hours)

It may be necessary for the designer to review/address issues that occur during construction of
highway projects. These issues may. occur as a result of general construction engineering
problems. Services requested will be on an as needed basis and consultant is required to respond in
a timely manner based on the urgency of the request. This does not include revision of plan sheets
and redesign.

If no design issues arise, the Funds for this scope item will not be paid to the consultant and the
fixed fee will not be paid.

A notice to proceed for this item will be required, and an email chain will be required to verify

the date. The notice to proceed needs to be prior to or the day of the work being done. It will
be the responsibility of the consultant to supply the email chain along with the billing
information.,

The overall completion date for this work order will be May 1, 2015.

All information and data shall be submitted, and all questions and requests shall be directed to the
Local Government Assistance office.

CC:

Jennie Weingart

File



Remit to:

Client:

Project:

Services:

ame
Jeff Boldt
Thad Roberts
Heidi Austin
Jim Cordell
Perry George
Carrie Jaeger

Sayre Associates, Inc.
216 S. Duluth Avenue
Sioux Falls, SD 57104

Date: 5/17/2013

SDDOT-LGA [ QA -Q0-13 Pen OYAF P‘SWO&(OS)

West Main Street from High Street to Stanford Street
Vermillion, SD - Miscellaneous \.\:j of Neconillion

Title
Engr. V
Engr. vV
Tech V
Surv V
Tech Vi

Admin Il

Total Hours

Direct Labor Total

Overhead

Direct Lahor and Overhead

Fixed Fee

Facilities Cost of Money

Total:

Hours
2,00
18.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

20.00

B P P BB @

151.980%

12.00%
0.402%

P H H OB

5 &

& 3

Amount
92.70
742.50

835.20
1,269.34

2,104.54
252.54
3.36

2,360.44

RECEIVED
MAY 20 2013

SDDOT-LGA
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer
Meeting:  July 1,2013
Subject: 2012 Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Presenter: Mike Carlson

Background: The 2012 unaudited annual report was presented to the City Council in
March of 2013. Williams & Company P.C. has completed and submitted the final audit,
which is included in the packet. As the Department of Legislative Audit has oversight
over all City audits, a copy of the report has been submitted to their office as well.

Discussion: The completed audit has been submitted and accepted by the South Dakota
Department of Legislative Audit. The Department of Legislative Audit letter of
acceptance is attached. Williams & Company, P.C. has also included a letter to the Mayor
and City Council regarding the audited financial statements. The letter includes two
journal entries that were made at the auditor’s recommendation. In addition to the printed
copies of the annual report, an electronic copy will be placed on the city web site under
Finance Department.

For those who receive the council packet electronically if you would like a hard copy of
the report please let Mike know and one will be provided.

Financial Consideration: An annual audit is a requirement based upon the amount of
grants the City receives and is a requirement of bond resolutions. The audit fee was
included in a three year contract with the last year being 2012 at an annual fee of
$21,600, plus $2,500 for each major federal grant. There was one major federal grant
during 2012.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council accept the
audited comprehensive annual report.




427 SOUTH CHAPELLE
C/0 500 EAST CAPITOL
PIERRE SD 57501-5070

(605)773-3595
FAX(605)773-6454

MARTIN L. GUINDON, CPA
AUDITOR GENERAL

June 18, 2013

Michael Carlson, Finance Officer
City of Vermillion

25 Center Street

Vermillion, SD 57069

We have reviewed and accepted your audit report on the:

City of Vermillion
(For the Year Ended December 31, 2012)

Our review was limited to the report and did not include a review of the working papers.
It is our understanding that the Plain Talk is the official newspaper for the City of
Vermillion. If this is not the case, please inform me of the name of the current official

newspaper.

Please present a copy of this letter to the governing board to indicate our acceptance of
the audit report.

Yours very trul

Martin L. Guindon, CPA
Auditor General

MLG:sld

cc: Williams & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
PO Box 1010
Le Mars, IA 51031



| \x] ‘ 21 Ist Avenue NW
‘ ILLIAIVIS PO. Box 1010
Le Mars, [A 51031

& COMPANY®c Phone (712) 546-7801

Certified Public Accountants Fax (712) 546-6543
www.williamscpas.com

May 20, 2013

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Vermillion, South Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Vermillion
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Governmental
Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information to you in our planning
meetings leading up to the engagement. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the City of Vermillion are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the City adopted the provisions
of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported
as Assets and Liabifities. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements was the estimation of the receivable due from the insurance
company as a result of the fire at the landfill, useful life for capital assets, unbilled usage in the
enterprise funds, the closure post-closure liability in the joint powers enterprise fund, the
allowance for doubtful accounts, and the unemployment liability in the unemployment internal
service fund. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and
determined that they are reasonabie in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of
the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken
as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated May 20, 2013.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, inciuding the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the

FFFFFF

financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of
Vermillion and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

QM*M,‘O.C~

Williams & Company, CPA, PC
Le Mars, lowa



City of Vermillion
Journal Entries - Attachment

12/31/2012
Account # Description DR
1
631-242001 Labor Expenditure Adjustment 7.560.00
631-162001 Building

To adjust for overstatment of building labor costs capitalized in the water fund.

2
631-171501 CIP - Water Tower 10,000.00
631-43340-3800 Other Capital Expenditures

To adjust for understatement of construction in progress for the water tower project.

CR

7,560.00

10,000.00



Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

CITY OF

& Vermillion

SOUTH DAKOTA
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May 20, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Vermillion
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069

I am pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of
Vermillion, South Dakota, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

The report was prepared by the City Finance Office in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) applicable to government as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data
and the completeness and fairness of presentations, including all disclosures, rests with the City.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and
is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable readers to gain an understanding
of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an accounting and
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss,
theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of
Vermillion’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. We believe that the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard
assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Williams & Company, P.C. a firm of
certified public accounts authorized by the State of South Dakota Department of Legislative
Audit to conduct the audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Vermillion for the year ended December 31,
2012, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor’s conclude, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of
Vermillion’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.

i
Sister City to Ratingen, Germany « Home of the University of South Dakota
www.vermillion.us



The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Vermillion was part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government’s internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal
awards. The Single Audit reports are included in this report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Vermillion’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City of Vermillion

The City of Vermillion was founded in 1859, located in the southeastern corner of South Dakota,
6 miles west of 1-29 between Sioux Falls, SD and Sioux City, IA. Vermillion is situated atop a
bluff of the Vermillion River and also overlooks the mighty, natural Missouri River, which
contains the red clay that prompted our county name of Clay County. Vermillion is home to the
University of South Dakota with enrollment of 10,284, offering majors in 132 undergraduate
programs and 65 graduate programs, and Division I athletics. The 2010 census had the city
population increasing 3% over 2000 to 10,571.

The city operates under the Council-Manager form of government and is aldermanic in form.
The City Council consists of a part-time Mayor and 8 part-time aldermen who hire a City
Manager as the chief executive officer. The City is divided into four wards with representation
on the City Council by two members from each ward. The Mayor is elected at large. The terms
of the Mayor and Alderman are four years with elections held in each even-numbered year. The
City Council meets the first and third Monday of the month in regular session and in addition,
special meetings and work sessions throughout the year.

The City provides the full range of basic services normally associated with a municipality.
These basic services include police, emergency communications, fire, emergency medical
services, building inspection, street construction and maintenance, planning and zoning, airport,
recreation and parks, golf course, liquor store, general administration services and utility services
including water, electric, wastewater, landfill/recycling and curbside recycling. For financial
reporting purposes, all funds involved in providing these services are included based on financial
accountability. Financial accountability is determined by several inherent factors, including
fiscal dependence, ability to impose will upon the entity’s governing body, provision of specific
financial burdens or benefits and separate legal entity status. The Housing and Redevelopment
commission is a legally separate authority whose board is appointed by the City Council and
reported separately as a component unit within the City of Vermillion financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the basis for the City of Vermillion’s financial planning,
development and control. The budget ordinance must be adopted by a majority of the Council
members no later than September 30 of each year. Once the budget is approved, the
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expenditures incorporated within the budget become legally binding and the actual expenditures
cannot exceed the budgeted amounts unless amended through a supplemental appropriation
ordinance or other permitted means. Even though it is not necessary to make formal
appropriations for proprietary funds, an annual budget is developed and published with the
annual budget ordinance. Because enterprise fund revenues and expenses fluctuate with changing
services and delivery levels, flexible budgets are used for planning, control and evaluation
purposes. All appropriations shall lapse at the close of the fiscal year.

Budgetary control is monitored at the function level. All funds budgeted in accordance with
state statute are included in the budget-to-actual comparisons, presented on pages 61-65 as part
of the required supplemental information and supplementary information.

Factor Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statement is perhaps best understood when it is
considered for a broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of
Vermillion operates. '

Local economy.

The economy in the Vermillion as reflected in the sales tax collections saw an increase in 2012.
The total City sales tax revenues increased $80,337 or 2.46% over 2011. This would include the
first cent used for general fund, the second penny sales tax used for capital projects increasing
$77,638 while the BBB sales tax used for advertising and promotion of the City increased $2,699
or .91% over 2011. As the South Dakota Department of Revenue collects the sales tax on behalf
of the City information as to the individual areas of the increase are not available. For the first
quarter of 2013 total City sales tax revenue is up 2.2%, $12,031 over 2012. The sales tax receipts
will be monitored and the budget will be reviewed in August 2013 to determine if adjustments
are needed.

In March 2012 The Governor’s Office of Economic Development announced that Navigant
Consulting, Inc., a Chicago-based global consulting firm with locations in Mitchell and
Plankinton, will be expanding its presence in South Dakota with a new location in Vermillion
called Alleviant. At yearend Alleviant had 10 employees with a goal of 100 by June 2013.

In March 2013 Eagle Creek Software Service announced a partnership with the State of South
Dakota and the Vermillion Area Chamber of Commerce and Development Company (VCDC) to
bring 200 jobs to the community. The rural high-tech jobs will be phased in over the 2-4 years.
A new $4 million technology center will be built by the VCDC to house the new business. To
assist with the financing a tax increment district has been created for the building site.
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The unemployment rate for the City of Vermillion increased slightly during 2012 from 3.9% to
4.0% while the state unemployment rate decreased from 4.8% to 4.4%. The unemployment rate
for the City of Vermillion saw a high in July 2012 of 4.7% but decreased the rest of the year to
4.0% at year end. The state unemployment rate was as high as 5.1% early in the year but
continued to decrease the rest of the year. With the higher state rate than city rate it appears that
individuals are attracted to the community for the job availability.

The City of Vermillion is home to the University of South Dakota that has been ranked among

the top doctorial institutions in the country. It is the home to South Dakota’s only School of

Medicine, Law, College of Fine Arts and internationally accredited Business School. The
v



University is the City’s largest employer and saw an increase in enrollment of 3.15% to 10,284
for the fall of 2012.

The University moved to Division I for all athletics in 2008 increasing the athletic scholarships
offered along with additional fundraising to support programs at that level. Construction started
in 2012 for a 30,000 square foot addition to the University Center. The project will expand
seating to 1,200 and provide additional dining options and is scheduled for completion in 2014
There are a number of projects in the planning and design phase on the campus that consist of an
athletic arena that will be connected to the Dakota Dome to support basketball, volleyball and
related programs and a outdoor track and soccer facility along with smaller improvement
projects.

Sanford Vermillion operates a 25-bed hospital constructed in 1993, medical clinic, 66 bed care
center and Dakota Gardens senior living. The Sanford Vermillion Clinic contracted with the
University of South Dakota to provide student health services starting in the fall of 2002. The
Sanford Vermillion Clinic, Vermillion Medical Clinic, and Olson Medical Clinic have been
instrumental in increasing the availability of medical care in the community. In addition, all
clinics are providing outreach programs bringing specialists into the community.

The 18-hole golf course and residential development project, which was undertaken by the City
after significant review by citizen committees, will provide for the orderly growth of the City
with all the development being served by City utility services. All developed housing sites have
been sold resulting in eighty-two single family, four-twin homes, fifteen town home units, and
one multi unit with a taxable value of over twenty-two million dollars. An area on the south side
of the course remains to be developed due to lack of infrastructure. Marketing of this area will
begin when infrastructure is extended, which will open up approximately 17 housing sites.

The value of building permits issued in 2012 totaled $3,771,388 down from $5,786,357 in 2011.
The number of single family dwellings constructed totaled fifteen in 2012, an increase of six,
with two new multi-family units and three commercial permits. It should be noted that
construction by the State of South Dakota on the University property are not required to obtain
building permits thus these building values are not reported in any of the building permit
numbers.
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Major initiatives.

A solid waste master planning process was started in 2011 in planning for the construction of the
next landfill cell and leachate collection system and to review the current recycling system
operation. Following a request for proposal process the firm of HDR was contracted to complete
the master plan. The process included public outreach meetings starting in June with the draft
report presented to the Joint Powers Board in November. The final report was presented to the
City Council in April 2012. The report recommended to continue the landfill operations and to
maximize the existing landfill capacity by re-permitting it to allow for higher waste placement
and steeper sideslopes. The South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources
has approved the steeper sideslopes and the application is currently under consideration for the
vertical expansion of the existing cells and future cells. As the current cells are reaching their
capacity, grant/loan applications were submitted in December, 2011 for the funding of cell 5 and
related leachate collection system. On March 30, 2012 the South Dakota Board of Water and
Natural Resources approved a $1,639,000 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan and a
$522,210 Regional Landfill Assistance grant. The resolution approving the State Revolving
Loan was adopted by the City Council on April 1, 2013 in anticipation of bidding the leachate
collection system in June of 2013 and the cell 5 in late 2013 or early 2014.

In June 2011 the City received a gift of over $800,000 from Edith Siegrist for the library
expansion project. Following the receipt of the gift and the funding commitments from the
Library Board and Library Foundation, the city moved forward with the development of plans
and specifications and awarded a bid to Welfl Construction on February 6, 2012 for $2,375,700.
The project consists of an expansion to the existing library building and renovation of the
existing building. The project was substantially complete in March 2013 and the library has
expanded into the completed and renovated space in April 2013.
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On March 25, 2011 the South Dakota Board of Water and Natural Resources approved a
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan in the amount of $1,532,000 for construction of a new
water tower that includes 10% principal forgiveness as a grant from the State. The City Council
adopted the resolution approving the State Revolving Loan on March 19, 2012 and hired an
engineering firm to complete the plans for bidding of the water tower. A bid was awarded on
August 20, 2012 for the construction of a new 500,000 water tower for $1,258,700. The
completion date of the project is set for 2014.

The equipment replacement fund added the following equipment during 2012 a police vehicle,
and four utility vehicles totaling $109,383.

Long-term financial planning.

The City has made and will continue to make investments in infrastructure improvements in
streets, parks and buildings. The City utilities have made significant improvements to continue
to provide the quality of service that the citizens have come to expect and have planned for
future needs.

In 2005 the city was awarded a $750,000 grant with 20% local matching for bike path
improvements. The first phase of the bike path extension along the Vermillion River started in
2009 with completion in 2010. The bike path extension along SD Hwy 50 was completed in
2012. Planning is in process for a bike path along Stanford Street between Cherry Street and SD
Hwy 50.

The reconstruction of Stanford Street from Main Street to Cherry Street was completed in 2012
as a Federal Aid Urban street project. The project bid by the state is $1,255,000 is to be funded
from the State allocated Federal Aid Urban funds estimated at $985,000, special assessments to
adjoining property owners estimated at $96,000 and $174,000 from second penny sales tax. The
water and wastewater utility portion of the project was $220,000 paid by the respective utilities.
Based upon the use of Federal Aid Urban funding, the State Department of Transportation
administered this project.

The landfill building that housed the solid waste baler and considerable equipment was destroyed
by fire on October 22, 2012. Insurance coverage will provide for the replacement of the
building, contents and equipment. The landfill has continued to operate as an area fill until such
time as the building and baler can be replaced. A consulting engineer is developing the building
and baler specifications for bidding in May or June 2013 anticipating completion in November
2013. '

As the existing swimming pool is reaching the end of its useful life, a committee was appointed
charged with providing the City Council information as to what type of swimming pool would
best fit the community’s needs going forward. The city contracted with a pool consultant to
work with the committee in developing designs for the new pool. The committee held public
meetings to review the project designs to refine the project. From the project design, an
estimated cost of $5,000,000 was developed. At the current time there is not a funding source
identified for this project.
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The 2013 budget included $1,064,700 for equipment replacement in the equipment replacement
fund, $27,945 for airport improvement, $620,000 for the library renovation, $75,000 for
miscellaneous concrete projects including city sidewalks, and $50,000 for replacement of the
boiler in the National Guard Armory. The City will continue to provide the same quality
services to the citizens during the next budget year.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Vermillion for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the year ended December
31, 2011. This was the sixth consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government had to publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Finance Office. We should like to express our appreciation to
all members of the Departments who assisted and contributed to its presentation. Without the
leadership and support of the City Council, preparation of this report would not have been
possible.

Sincerely,

Nbaf sl
Michael D. Carlson
Finance Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Mayor and Members of the
City Council
City of Vermillion, South Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively .
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

~ Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment Commission (a
discretely presented component unit), which statements reflect total assets of $139,997 and total
revenues of $921,165 as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment Commission, is
based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of



significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota as of December 31,
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 13 to the financial statements, in 2012, the City adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 85, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. OQur opinion
is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 6 through 18 and 61 through 65 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’'s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audif of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary compliance schedules, and statistical section, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, lLocal
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements.



The combining nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary compliance schedules, and the
schedule of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used.to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the combining
nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary compliance schedules, and the schedule of federal
awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued .a report dated
May 20, 2013, on our consideration of the City of Vermillion’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City of Vermillion’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

L) oillomar ¢ CemM;P-C"

Certified Public Accountants

Le Mars, lowa
May 20, 2013
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Management’'s Discussion and Analysis
December, 31, 2012

As management of the City of Vermillion, we offer readers of the City of Vermillion's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the year
ended December 31, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our transmittal letter, which can
be found on pages i-ix of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s« The net position of the City increased by $4,489,885 as a result of the current year's
operations. The net position of our governmental activities increased by $2,446,782 or
7.97% and the net position of our business-type activities also increased by $2,043,103
or 6.24%.

e Total revenues from all sources increased in 2012 by $2,134,685 to $23,353,124. In
2012, charges for services increased $281,080, operating grants & contributions
increased $32,575, capital grants & contributions increased $1,148,542, property taxes
increased $80,657, sales tax increased $75,266, other general revenues decreased by
$91,644 and the City had a insurance recovery of $608,209.

e Total cost of all programs was $18,863,239 for 2012. This is an increase of $353,732 or
1.91% over 2011.

e The Cily’s long-term debticapital leases decreased $1,700,136 over 2011 from
repayment of existing bond issues, a drawdown of $45,030 on the City’'s State Revolving
Fund Loan for the wastewater treatment plant and two capital leases for equipment
totaling $260,348. During 2012 the City retired $2,005,514 of existing debt.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Vermillion's
basic financial statements. The comprehensive annual financial report presents the following
three components of the financial statement:

1. Government-wide financial statements provide information of the City as a whole.

2. Fund financial statements provide detailed information for the City’s significant funds.

3. Notes to the financial statements provide additional information essential to
understanding the government-wide and fund statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City of Vermillion’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector businesses.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’'s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
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position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. This statement is presented using the accrual basis
of accounting, which means that all changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present information as follows:

e Governmental activities — This includes general government, public safety, public works,
health and welfare, economic development and culture and recreation, which are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

o Business-type activities — This includes the Electric, Water, Sewer, Liquor Store, Golf
Course, Solid Waste System, and Curbside Recycling that are intended to recover all or
a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Vermillion itself (known as
the primary government) but also a legally separate entity for which the City of Vermillion is
financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from
the financial information presented for the primary government itself. Separately issued financial
statements of the Vermillion Housing and Redevelopment Commission are available and may be
obtained from the Commission at PO Box 362, Vermillion, SD 57068.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21-23 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Vermillion, like other state and local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City’s significant funds and
not the City as a whole. The City’s funds can be divided into two categories-governmental and
proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used {o account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the governments operations
and the basic services it provides, and are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting
with focuses on available spendable resources. This allows the reader to evaluate the City's
short term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower then that of the government-wide financial
statement, it is useful o compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate the comparison between the governmental funds and the government-wide financial
statements. '
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The City maintains seventeen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General fund, Sales tax fund, Stanford Street
fund and Library Renovation fund which are considered to be major funds. Data for the other
thirteen governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in the report.

The City adopted an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget on
page 61.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-27 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used fo report activities that charge for services provided to outside customers. The
Enterprise funds are presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric utility, water utility, wastewater utility,
liquor store, golf course, Joint Powers landfill operations, and curbside recycling. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s
various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles; self
funded unemployment insurance, custodial services and copier-fax-postage activities. Because
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information on the Electric Utility, Water Utility, Wastewater Utility, Liquor Store, Golf course, Joint
Powers Landfill operations, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City, and
Curbside Recycling which is considered a non-major fund. Conversely, all the internal service
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 28-30 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
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The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 31-57 on this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the general fund and
sales tax fund schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance budget and
actual. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 61-65 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information on general fund and major special revenue funds budget and actual revenues and
expenditures. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages
72-79 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following two tables present condensed information on the City of Vermillion’s Net Position
(Exhibit 1) and Changes in Net Position (Exhibit 2) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
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with comparative data for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. Assets exceeded liabilities

by $87,717,423 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Cument and Other Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Total deferred outfiows
of resources

Long-term Liabilities Outstanding
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Rewenues:

Program Rewenues:
Charges for Senvces
Operating Grants &

Contributions
Capital Grants &
Contributions

General Rewenues!
Property Taxes
Cther Taxes
Cther

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Heaith & Welfare
Cuilture & Recreation
Consernvation &
Dewsiopment
interest on Long-term Debt
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Liquor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfili
Curbside Recycling
Total Expenses
increase(Decrease) in Net
Position before Transfers &
Extraordinary ftem
Insurance Recovery
Transfers
Increase in Net Position
Net Position January 1
Prior period adjustment
Adjusted net position-beginning
Net Position December 31

City of Vemniilion
Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Acthvities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
7,881,687 % 8,092,458 % 14,460,050 $ 12,732,608 § 22,441,747 $ 20,825,066
30,374,723 27,432,845 41,027,877 41,858,060 71,402,600 69,291,005
38,356,420 35,525,403 55,487,927 54,580,668 93,844,347 90,116,071
- - 9,038 - 9,039 -
3,974,478 4,223,008 18,029,681 19,629,220 22,004,159 23,852,228
1,332,171 593,690 2,799,633 2,193,688 4,131,804 2,787,376
5,306,848 4,816,688 20,829,314 21,822,906 26,135,983 26,639,604
26,379,227 23,217,945 22,036,403 21,411,403 48,415,630 44,629,348
2,082,991 1,683,874 1,701,970 1,740,975 3,784,981 3,434,849
4,587,553 5,796,886 10,829,279 9,615,384 15,516,832 15,412,270
33,049,771 3 30,708,705 § 34,667,652 $ 32,767,762 8 67,717,423 8 63,476,467
City of Vemmnillion
Changes in Net Position
Govemmentai Business-Type
Activties Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
1,248,784 $ 1,317,755 $ 12,831,237 & 12,482,186 $ 14,081,021 & 18,799,041
104,314 71,739 100 100 104,414 71,839
1,988,284 944,238 118,970 14,473 2,107,254 958,712
1,879,186 1,893,823 501,007 505,713 2,480,193 2,398,536
3,407,050 3,331,784 - - 3,407,080 3,331,784
245,056 345,475 319,927 311,152 564,983 658,627
8,973,674 7,904,815 13,771,241 13,313,624 22,744,815 21,218,439
1,325,411 1,324,803 - - 1,325,411 1,324,803
2,211,445 2,028,921 - - 2,211,445 2,028,921
4,830,835 1,714,248 - - 1,630,835 1,714,248
443,581 424,263 - - 443,581 424,263
1,148,227 1,161,245 - - 1,146,227 1,161,245
498,825 397,228 - - 498,825 397,229
202,154 241,802 - - 202,154 241,902
- - 5,051,041 4,995,547 5,051,041 4,985,547
- - 1,435,808 1,389,184 1,435,808 1,389,184
- - 1,894,154 1,608,314 1,694,154 1,605,314
- - 1,043,401 1,018,600 1,043,401 1,018,600
- - 838,399 841,741 838,399 841,741
- - 1,242,481 1,273,463 1,242,491 1,273,463
- - 99,467 93,047 99,467 93,047
7,458,478 7,292,611 11,404,761 11,216,896 18,863,239 18,509,507
1,515,196 612,204 2,366,480 2,096,728 3,881,676 2,708,932
- - 608,208 - 608,209 -
931,586 937,412 {931,586) (937,412) - -
2,446,782 1,549,616 2,043,103 1,159,316 4,489,885 2,708,932
30,708,705 29,346,833 32,767,762 31,420,702 63,476,467 80,767,535
(105,716} {(187,744) (143,213) 187,744 {248,929) -
30,802,988 29,159,088 32,624,548 31,608,448 63,227,538 60,767,535
33,049,771 & 30,708,705 $ 34,667,652 8 32,767,762 % 67,717,423 %

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (71.5%) reflects its investment in capital assets
{e.g. land, building, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment

9
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in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position $3,784,961 (5.6%) represents resources that are
subject to external restriction on how they may be used. Resiricted net position includes the
amounts restricted for debt service of $2,415,695 (an increase of $275,730), Stormwater
construction of $823,145 (an increase of $164,123), Landfill Closure/Postclosure of $186,161 (a
.decrease of $10,201), Cumulative reserve of $158,060, Library $21,397 (a decrease of $84,735
and cther restrictions of $180,503 (an increase of $5,195), The remaining balance of unrestricted
net position of $15,516,832 may be used to meet the government’s ongcing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal, the City of Vermillion is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the City’'s net position by
$2,446,782, thereby accounting for 54.5% of the total growth in the net position of the City
Vermillion. Elements of this increase are as follows:

s Charges for goods & services decreased $67,971 in 2012. Public Works increased
$19,342 which is attributable to the increase of county motor vehicle of $8,995, increase
in county highway and bridge of $30,185, increase in storm water fees $6,171, decrease
in street repairs charges 34,236 and a decrease in special assessment collections of
$21,773. General Government decreased $48,890 with the major factor being a
decrease in the sale of fuel at the airport of $45,444. Health and Welfare decreased
$39,492 with ambulance revenues decreasing $47,785 and rental registration increasing
$14,014.

e QOperating Grants and contributions increased $32,575 in 2012. 2012 culture and
recreation operating grants consisted of a work study grant of $7,534 and contributions of
$7,144. Public safety operating grants consisted of police vests grant of $1,513 and a
COPS grant for one officers wages and benefits of $53,273. Public works operating

* grant consists of $10,000 for a storm drainage study.

e Capital grants and contributions increased by $1,044,045 in 2012, 2012 capital grants
and contributions consist of public safety contributions of fire and communication radios
and radar units $27,980, public works had contributions of $984,482 for Stanford Street

paving and a grant of $455508 for the airport project;  heslth and welfare had a
contribution for new radios of $7,6840; culture and recreation received $150,000 in
donations from the Library Foundation for the library renovation project, grants for the
bike path project of $142,764, a CDBG grant for library renovation for $200,000,
contributions for improvements to ball fields of $3,812, for the planting of trees of $2,310
and $13,780 for the skate park.

s Property taxes increased by $85,363 or 4.51% during the year. This increase is the
product of the tax revenue for general purposes that increased $65,353 and an increase
in the tax revenue for the tax increment district of $20,010. State law limits the property
tax increase to the lesser of inflation or 3% plus new property additions less any
reduction in valuation.

e QOther Taxes increased by $75,266 or 2.26%. This would include the first cent used for
general fund, the second penny sales tax used for capital projects, and BBB used for
advertising and promotion of the City. The first cent used for the general fund and the
second cent used for capital projects increased $68,068 while the BBB used for
advertising and promotion increased by $7,198. As the South Dakota Department of
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Revenue collects the sales tax on behalf of the City, information as to the individual area

of the increase/decrease is not available.

s Other General Revenues decreased $100,419 or 298.07%. Contributing to this decrease
is a decrease in investment earnings of $47,792, an increase in other revenue of $1,734,
an increase in confributions and donations of $12,093, and a decrease in the sale of
assets of $61,218.

e General government expenses remained relatively stable in 2012 increasing only $608.
Public Safety expenses increased by $182,524 or 9.00%. The police administration,
patrol and communication wages increased $170,054. This increase is from several
positions being filled in 2012 that were vacant during the prior year. Fire and rescue
wages decreased $15,809 due to the position of fire chief being vacant for part of the
year.

e Public works expenses decreased $83,413 or 4.87% with the majority $45,046 being for
an decrease in fuel purchased for the airport. Snow removal decreased $16,067 due to
the mild winter.

e Health and Welfare expenses increased $19,318 or 4.55% with the majority of the
increase due to an increase in wages in the ambulance service. The new director was
selected in 2011, 2012 was a full year of wages and benefits.

e Culture and Recreation expenses decreased $15,018 or 1.29% with the majority $9,603
coming from a decrease in operating expenses in the parks capital fund.

e Conservation and development expenses increased $101,596 from increased support of
various programs. The largest ones being the VCDC Job Training Program pass through
grant of $24,850, Vermillion NOW of 365,947 and a Housing study for $34,180.

11
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Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Vermillion’s net
position by $2,043,103, accounting for 45.5% of the total growth in the government's net
position. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e Charges for services increased by 2.80% or $349,051. The Electric Fund charges for
services increased 1.81% or $109,877. Electric kwh sales increased 1.0% during 2012
which was the first year of seasonal rates. As our supplemental power supplier has
adopted seasonal power supply rates, the city also adopted seasonal utility rates that
went into effect with billing in December 2011. The Water Fund charges for services
increased 11.57% or $183,744. Water rates increased 2% in December 2012 and sales
of water increased by 8,373,262 cubic feet over 2011 due to the hot dry summer and fall.
Wastewater Fund rates increased 3% or $89,924 in April 2012 to support the funds debt
service. The Liquor Fund sales increased $31,370 over 2011 even though there was
increased competition for wine sales due to the increased number of locations selling
wine. The Joint Powers-Landfill revenue decreased $89,857 over 2011. The landfili
revenues decreased $4,645 while the sale of recycling materials revenues portion of the
Joint Powers decreased $85,212 due to decreased market rates for materials being sold.
The Golf Fund revenues increased $30,503, green fees were increased 3% while season
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pass sales increased $10,392 or 8.3% and cart rentals of $12,343 or 15.58% attributed to
early spring weather, dry summer and fall. An decrease in the Curbside Recycling
program of $6,510 resulted from an decrease in market values of the items collected.

e Operating grants and contributions were unchanged in 2012. There were no grants
received and contributions totaled $100.

e Capital grants and contributions increased $104,497 in 2012. As construction started on
the new water tower in 2012, a grant of $44,114 was received, none were received in
2011. Contributions totaling $66,785 were received for developer installed utilities on
Commerce Drive and $3,455 was received at the golf course for new hitting mats.

e Tax incremental properly taxes decreased $4,706 in 2012. This is attributed to
decreased values of industrial properties located in the districts.

¢ An extraordinary item was reported of $608,209 which is the insurance recovery for the
fire loss of landfill building, baler and contents.

13
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Financial analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Vermillion uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’'s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Vermillion’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $6,142,429, as shown on Exhibit 3, which is an decrease of $861,775 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 32.11% of this total amount $1,972,588
constitutes wunassigned fund balance which is available for spending at the governments
discretion. The remainder of fund balance is either 1) nonspendable $200,626, $42,566 for
inventory and $158,060 in cumulative reserve 2) restricted $1,646,030 consisting of $166,623 in
liguor, lodging and dining, $821,349 in storm water, $21,397 library and $636,661 for debt service
3) committed $2,099,534 with $2,099,170 in sales tax and $364 for capital projects or 4)
assigned $223,651 for parks capital $8,255 and $215,396 for the 2013 budget.
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The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Vermillion. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $2,451,984, as shown in Exhibit 3,
while total fund balance reached $2,868,008. As a measure of the general fund’s fiquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 47% of total general fund expenditures, while
total fund balance represents 55% of the same amount.

The fund balance of the City’s general fund increased $158,032 during the current fiscal year, as
shown in Exhibit 4. Factors in this increase are as follows:

e An increase in property taxes of $67,272 or 4.0% and a increase sales tax collection of
$38,707 or 2.6%.

e Intergovernmental revenues decreased $141,347 due to emergency communications
being removed to become a E911 special revenue fund. This decreased revenues by
$225,917 in the general fund offset by an increase in revenues in the E911 fund. State
and federal grants increased by $35,883 and state and county taxes increased by
$40,915.

e Charges for goods and services decreased $98,774 or 20.8%. The sale of fuel at the
airport decreased $45,444 the majority due to a major user switching planes during the
year and housing the new plane elsewhere until a hanger can be built which is scheduled
for mid 2013. Ambulance collections decreased $47,785 or 16.6% due {0 a reduction in
billing, an increase in billing adjustments, and an increase in estimated uncollectable
amounts. o

e Other revenue. decreased- $13,998 or 24.8% due to an decrease in miscellaneous
property sales of $6,928 and a decrease in work study support of $7,643.

e Expenditures in the General Fund decreased $324,100 or 5.90%. Public Safety
decreased $267,690 due to emergency communications being removed to become a
E911 special revenue fund. This decreased expenditures by $436,294 in the general
fund offset by an increase in transfer out to the E911 fund of $225,917. Police patrol
increased $173,933 of which the majority is from a increase in police patrol and
administrative personnel service costs due to vacancies in 2011 that were filled in 2012.
Public Works decreased $61,929 with the largest single factor being a decrease of
$45,046 in the sale of fuel at the airport. Culture and recreation decreased $5,397 the
major factor being a decrease in wages and employee benefits for operating the different
programs due to the retirement of several long term employees. Conservation and
Development increased $10,216 with the major increase being for the VCDC Job
Training Grant of $24,850.

The sales tax fund has a total fund balance $2,099,170, all of which is committed for capital
outlay and debt service. The net decrease in fund balance during the current year is $299,477.
Revenues during this period increased by $29,440 compared to the prior year. This is due fo a
increase in sales tax revenue of $38,931 and a decrease in investment eamings of $9,491.
Expenditures increased during this period by $111,029, which is largely due fo the increase in
capital outlay. Transfers out increased by $948,237 to $1,501,562. Of this amount $338,479 was
for support of city hall debt service, $6,475 the City’s matching for airport projects, $31,445 for
bike path construction, $200,000 to support of debt service at the golf course,$175,046 for
construction of Stanford street and $750,117 to support the library renovation project. Transfers
in increased $25,640 from parks capital to support the construction of the new skate park.

The library renovation capital projects fund was a major fund for the addition and renovation of

the public library building. Total expenditures for this project at year end totaled $2,329,215 with
the projected budgeted for $2,819,284. The project is being financed through private donations

15



City of Vermillion
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
December 31, 2012

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of $1,104,772, a CDBG grant of $200,000 and a transfer from the Library special revenue fund of
$120,000 with the balance from the Sales Tax Fund. it will be completed in 2013.

The Stanford Street reconstructions capital project fund was a major fund for widening and
improvements on Stanford street. Expenditures for the project at year end totaled $1,159,528
with the project budgeted for $1,159,980. The project is being financed through a state grant of
$984,482, a city match of $175,046 from sales tax funds. The project will be completed in 2013.

Proprietary funds. The City of Vermillion’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statement, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds are as follows, Electric $5,682,226, Water
$699,428, Wastewater $1,150,777, Liquor $311,223, Golf Course $405,070, Joint Powers-Landfill
$2,574,659 and Curbside Recycling $64,637. The total growth in net assets for all funds in the
current year was $2,023,198. Other factors conceming the finances of these funds have already
been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City of Vermilion adopted a revised budget in September of 2012 to refine the budget
numbers adopted a year earlier. The revenue was decreased by $276,674 (5.75% of the original
budget). Expenditures were decreased by $471,474 (7.69% of the original budget) with public
safety decreasing $482,547. The original and final budgets are reported on Exhibit 8 on page 61.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Vermillion’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of December 31, 2012 amount to $71,402,600 (net of accumulated
depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and structures,
improvements other than buildings, furniture and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in
progress. During 2012 there was $4,523,209 of additions to the governmental capital assets
while the depreciation for the year was $1,548,680 and $170,449 of capital assets were disposed.
The total increase in the City’'s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
$2,111,585 or 3.0% (a 10.7%, $2,941,778 increase for governmental activities and a 1.9%,
$830,183 decrease for business-type activities).

Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The library expansion and renovation project continued in 2012 totaling $2,329,215 of
construction in progress. Construction will be completed in 2013.

s Stanford street reconstruction project began in 2012 totaling $1,256,203 of construction
in progress and $228,617 in improvements, this was a SD DOT project that will have final
close out in 2013. As part of this project water and sanitary sewer lines were replaced
totaling $228,617 paid by the respective utilities.

e The parallel taxiway extension project began at the airport totaling $471,699 of the
construction in progress in 2012 it should be compieted in 2013.

e Construction began in a new water tower for the City accounting for $490, 207 of
construction in progress in business activities with completion slated for 2014.

e The electric relay upgrade and SCADA addition construction started in 2012 with
$181,462 of construction in progress expenditures.
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e Utility extensions were added to Commerce Court by the developer totaling $68,906 for

future development.
City of Vermillion's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 20114
tand $ 1,564,503 $ 1,564,503 $ 2,457 547 $ 2,457,547 $ 4,022,056 $ 4,022,050
Building & Structure 11,824,070 12,132,038 22,135,748 23,466,813 33,959,818 35,598,851
improvements other
then buildings - - 13,494,680 13,642,470 13,494,660 13,642,470
Fumiture & Equipment 3,138,948 3,407,338 2,076,125 2,101,440 5,216,073 5,508,779
. Infrastructure 9,594,396 10,173,714 - - 9,564,396 10,173,714
Construction in Progress 4,251,806 155,351 863,787 189,780 5,115,603 345,141
Total $ 30,374,723 $ 27,432,845 $ 41,027,877 § 41,858,080 $ 71,402,600 $ 69,291,005
Additional information on the City of Vermillion’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages
45-48 of this report. ,
Long-term debt. Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the City of Vermillion had a total long-term
debt outstanding of $22,996,008. Total note and bonded debt outstanding totaled $19,125,843
with the remainder being capital leases of $3,870,166.
The City’s total outstanding debt decreased by $1,665,648 or 6.51% during the current fiscal
year. The City retired $2,005,514, of outstanding debt while starling two capital leases of
$260,348 and receiving the last drawdown on wastewater State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) for
which $45,030 was drawn down in the current year.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 48-52 of this
report.
City of Vermillion's Qutstanding Debt
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenue Bonds  § 355,000 $ 390,000 $ 18,200,435 $ 19,794,142 § 18,555,435 § 20,184,142
Notes Payable - - 570,408 687,003 570,408 687,003
Capital Lease 3,640,496 3,825,000 229,670 - 3,870,166 3,825,000
Total $ 3995496 § 4,215,000 $ 19,000,513 § 20,481,145 § 22,996,008 $ 24,696,145

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance in the general fund increased by $1568,032 to
$2,868,006. The final budget for 2012 had projected the fund balance to decrease by
$228,514. The City has appropriated $215,396 of the. general fund reserve for spending in
the 2013 fiscal year.

Utility rates were increased in 2012 for wastewater, the electric rates were adjusted to

seasonal rates with higher rates in the summer and lower in the winter. During the 2012
budget process wastewater utility rate increases were also proposed for the debt service on
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the Phase I improvements, the water rates were increased for 2013, 2014 and 2015 for the
debt service on the water tower and an increase was made in the storm water drainage fee.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Vermiliion's
finances for all those with the interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning

any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed the City Finance Office, 25 Center, Vermillion, SD 57069.
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ASSETS
Cash & cash equivalents
investments

Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowance

for uncollectibles)
Taxes receivables
Accounts receivable
Unbilled accounts receivable

Special assessments receivable

interest receivable
Due from insurance company
Due from other govermnments
internal balances
inventories
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Restricted assets:
Cash
Investments
Interest receivable
Capital assets:

L.and and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding

Total deferred outflows or resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Revenue collected in advance
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds payabie
Notes payable
Capital lease
Accrued leave payable
Due in more than one year:
Bonds payable
Notes payable
Capital lease
Closure - postclosure liability
Accrued leave payable
Total ligbilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
BBB tax
Debt service
Stormwater
Library
Landfill closure postciosure
Curmulative reserve-SDPAA
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

CITY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

300,659
5,725,000

58,470
151,010

228,118
21,480

1,051,323
(759,112)
42,566
72,019
158,699

311,181
615,426
4,848

5,816,309
24,558 414
30,374,723
38,356,420

920,796

7.806
17,212

35,000

202,355
148,002

320,000

3,438,141

216,337

5 208 840

2,508, 040

26,379,227

180,503
899,886
823,145

21,397

158,080

4,587,553
33,049,771

Business-type

Activities Total
$ 517,158 817,817
7,475,000 13,200,000
- 58,470
892,545 1,043,555
393,204 393,204
8,972 237,080
29,243 50,733
1,240,889 1,240,889
67,028 1,118,351
758,112 -
1,104,791 1,147,357
60,829 132,848
- 158,699
1,319,936 1,631,117
580,134 1,195,560
11,208 - 16,057
3,321,344 9,137,653
37,706,533 62,264,947
41,027,877 71,402,600
55,487,927 93,844,347
9,039 8,038
9,039 9,039
1,130,754 2,051,550
78,908 78,908
40,022 47,828
2,924 20,136
1,277,992 1,312,992
119,400 119,400
- 202,355
149,633 298,635
16,822,443 17,242,443
451,008 451,008
229,870 3,667,811
209,309 209,309
217,251 433,588
20,820,314 28,135,083
22,036,403 48,415,630
- 180,503
1,515,808 2,415,695
- 823,145
- 21,397
186,161 186,161
- 158,060
10,928,279 15,516,832

$ 34,667,652

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT 1

Component
Unit
Housing
&

Redevelopment

9,406

127
127
139,997

127,892
5,585
133,604



CITY OF VERMILLION

EXHIBIT 2

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government Component Unit
Charges for Grants & Grants & Governmental Business-Type Housing &
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Totat Redevelopment
Primary govemment
Governmental activities:
General government $ 1325411 8 211,485 § - $ -8 {1,113,916} $ -8 {1,113,916) § -
Public safety 2,211,445 262,610 54,786 27,880 {1,868,069) - {1,866,069) -
Public works 1,630,835 378,820 10,000 1,438,990 197,975 - 197,976 -
Health & weifare 443,581 321,131 - 7,648 (114,802) - {114,802} -
Culture & recreation 1,146,227 75,728 14,678 512,666 {543,155) - (543,155} -
Conservation & development 408,825 - 24,850 - {473,975) - {473,975} -
interest on long-term debt 202,154 - - - {202,154} - {202 154} -
Total governmental activities 7,458,478 1,249,784 104,314 1,988,284 {4,116,086) - {4,118,096) -
Business-type activities:
Electric 5,051,041 6,187,213 - - - 1,136,172 1,136,172 -
Water 1,435,808 1,772,353 - 60,065 - 396,610 396,610 -
Wastewater 1,694,164 14,737,914 - 55,450 - 99,210 98,210 -
tiquor 1,043,401 1,217,013 - - - 173,612 c 173612 -
Golf 838,398 654,510 - 3,455 - (180,434) {180,434) -
Joint powers landfill 1,242,491 1,161,885 100 - - (80,408) {90,406} -
Curbside recycling 99,467 110,249 - - - 10,782 10,782 -
Total business-type activities 11,404,761 12,831,237 100 118,870 - 1,545,546 1,545,546 -
Total primary government $ 18,863,239 $ 14,081,021 § 104,414 § 2,107,254 § {4,116,098) $ 1,5645546  § (2,570,560} $ -
Component Unit
Housing & redevelopment 866,552 - 905,998 - - - - 39,448
Total component unit % 866,552 $ - 8 905,998 § - § - § - 8 - % 39,446
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes - levied for general purposes 1,724,502 - 1,724,502 -
Property taxes - levied for debt service 254,684 501,007 755,691 -
Sales taxes 3,094,409 - 3,004,409 -
Sales taxes for special revenues 312,641 | - 312,641 -
Unrestricted state/county shared revenue 72,704 - 72,704 -
Unrestricted investment eamings 77,802 227,946 305,748 826
Miscelianeous revenue 83,276 61,736 145,012 14,341
Gain on sale of capital assets 11,274 30,245 41,518 -
Insurance recovery net of fire loss - 608,208 608,209 -
Transfers 931,586 (931,586) - -
Total general revenues & transfers 6,562.878 497,557 7,060,435 15,167
Change in net position 2,448,782 2,043,103 4,489,885 54,613
Net position - beginning 30,708,705 32,767,762 83,476,467 78,991
Prior period adjustment {105,718} {143,213} (248,929} -
Net position - beginning, as adjusted 30,602,989 32,624,549 63,227,538 78,981
Net position - ending 3 33,049,771 § 34667652 & 67717423 % 133,504

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Property taxes: delinquent
Accounts receivable
Special assessment receivabie
Interest receivable
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventory of supplies
inventory of stores
purchased for resale
Deposits
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
interest receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Revenue collected in advance
Advance from other funds
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-sales tax and interest
Unavailable revenue-special assessments and interest
Tota deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances:

Nonspendable:

inventory

Cummulative Reserve-SDPAA
Restricted:

BBB Purposes

Stormwater

Library

Debt Service Funds
Committed

Sales Tax Purposes

Capital Projects
Assigned:

Parks Capital

Next Year's Budget
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of recources, and fund balances

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

- CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2012

EXHIBIT 3

Other

Sales Library Stanford Governmental 2012

General Tax Renovation Street Funds Total
$ 11690 % 1,392 - % 173911 § 74347 § 261,340
2,350,000 1,945,000 - - 900,000 5,195,000
58,470 - - - - 58,470
142,980 - - - 5,695 148,675
- - - - 228,118 228,118
4,924 5,522 - - 9,902 20,348
324,326 238,636 - - 488,361 1,051,323
- 22,000 - - - 22,000
33,357 - - - - 33,357
9,208 - - - - 9,209
158,699 - - - - 158,609
- - - - 311,181 311,181
- - - - 615,426 615,426
- . - - 4,848 4,848
3,093,655 2,212,550 - 173,911 2,637,878 8,117,994
190,897 83,010 298,615 173,911 172,365 918,798
- - - - 542,710 542,710
4,900 - - - 12,312 17,212
- - - - 197,143 197,143
195,797 83,010 298,615 173,911 924,530 1,675,863
29,852 30,370 - - 20,173 80,385
- - - - 218,307 218,307
29,852 30,370 - - 233,480 299,702
42,566 - - - - 42,566
158,060 - - - - 158,060
- - - - 166,623 166,623
- - - - 821,349 821,349
- - - - 21,397 21,397
- - - - 683,888 683,888
- 2,099,170 - - - 2,099,170
- - - - 364 364
- - - - 8,255 8,255
215,396 - - - - 215,396
2,451,984 - {298,815) - {228,608) 1,925,361
2,868,008 2,099,170 {298,615) - 1,473,868 6,142,429
$ 3,083,855 % 2,212,550 - 8 173911 § 2637878 $ 8,117,954
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EXHIBIT 3A
CITY OF VERMILLION
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Total fund balance - governmental Funds (page 24) $ 6,142,429

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the funds. 27,994 656

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued
leave payable are not due and payables in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds payable (3,995,496)
Accrued leave payable (359,119) (4,354,615)

Assets such as taxes receivable (delinquent) and

special assessment receivables (current, delinquent

and deferred) are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 299,702

Prepaid expenses are reported in the governmental
activities but are not reported in the funds as they do not
provide current economic resources. 72,019

Accrued interest expense from the balance sheet that
require current financial resources from governmental
activities. (7,808)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge
the costs of activities, such as insurance, to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of

net assets. 2,903,386

Total net position - governmental activities (page 21) $ 33,049,771

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Revenue:
Taxes:
General property taxes
General sales & use taxes
Stormwater fees
Penalties & interest on
delinquent taxes
Licenses & permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for goods & services
Fines & forfeits
Public payments for improvements
investment eamings
Rentals
Special assessments
Contributions & donations
from private sources
Other
Total revenue
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture-recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service:
Principal
interest
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture-recreation
Total expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning
Change in inventory
Fund balance(deficit) - ending

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EXHIBIT 4

Other

Sales Library Stanford Governmental 2012

General Tax Renovation Street Funds Total
$ 1,721,716 $ - $ - - $ 254,436 1,976,151
1,522,677 1,522,087 - - 298,761 3,343,535
- - - - 175,585 175,585
2,787 - - - 248 3,035
230,068 - - - - 230,068
418,156 - 200,000 984,482 827,188 2,429,826
376,651 - - - 3,721 380,372
33,496 - - - 2,048 35,544
- - - - 10,408 10,408
22,322 19,237 2,350 - 13,680 57,589
15,207 - - - - 15,207
80 - - - 157,872 157,952
29,209 - 150,000 - 34,046 213,255
42,370 - - - 4,024 46,394
4,414,738 1,541,334 352,350 984,482 1,782,017 9,074,921
1,109,699 22,281 - - - 1,131,980
1,646,243 237 - - 448,148 2,095,628
802,407 28,907 - - 56,843 889,157
418,653 - - - - 418,853
1,000,565 20,000 - - 11,158 1,031,723
66,298 133,947 - - 298,580 498,825
1,570 - - - 225,000 226,570
- - - - 202,154 202,154
5,235 21,708 - - - 26,943
14,589 18,606 - - 2,685 35,880
1,520 25,765 - 1,159,528 561,478 1,748,291
26,334 - - - - 26,334
78,212 92,438 2,189,139 - 181,441 2,541,230
5,171,325 364,889 2,189,139 1,159,528 1,988,487 10,873,368
{756,587) 1,176,445 {1,836,789) (175,046) (206,470) (1,798,447)
1,140,536 25,640 841,959 175,046 618,178 2,801,359
(225,917) (1,501,562) - - (136,468) (1,863,947)
914,619 {1,475,922) 841,959 175,046 481,710 937,412
158,032 (299,477) (994,830) - 275,240 (861,035)
2,710,714 2,398,647 696,215 - 1,198,628 7,004,204
{740) . - - - - (740)
$ 2,868,006 $ 2,099,170 3 (298,615) - $ 1,473,868 6,142,429

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT 4A
CITY OF VERMILLION
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 26) $ (861,035)

Inventories in the governmental funds have been recorded as expenditures when paid.
However, the statement of activities will report these items as expenditures in the period
that the corresponding asset is exhausted. (740)

Governmental funds report capital outlays, including infrastructure, as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current year as follows:

Expenditures for capital aséets : $ 4,385,744
Contribution & Donations of Capital Assets 24,516
Depreciation expense (1,241,923) 3,168,337

Governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets as revenue
whereas the statement of activities reports the gain on the sale of fixed assets. This
is the effect on the change in net assets on the statement of activities. {12,289)

The repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds, however, has no effect on net assets.
assets. The amount by which proceeds exeeded repayments in the year

is as follows”
Repayments of long-term debts $ 226,570
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (7,066) 219,504

Governmental funds report special assessments as revenue when it becomes available,
but the statement of activities includes special assessments as revenue when levied. (115,484)

Governmental funds do not reflect the change in accrued leave as it does not
consume current financial resources. The Statement of Activities reflects the change
in accrued leave through expenditures. 32,698

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues. (24,535)

The effect of the change in prepaid insurance which is not reported in the governmental
funds as it is not available to provide current financial resources. 1,826

Accrued interest expense reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as expenditures in 466
governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as insurance to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal

service funds is reported with governmental activities. 38,044
Change in net position of governmental activities (page 23) $ 2,446,782

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

EXHIBIT 5

Govemmental

Non-Major Activities-
Joint Powers Curbside internal
Eiectric Water Wastewater Ligquor Golf Course Landfil Recycling Totals Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 19,774 3 5,554 10,600 $ 111,579 § 83773 & 227,378 § 58,500 § 517,158 § 38,319
Investments 4,275,000 700,000 925,000 125,000 400,000 1,050,000 - 7,475,000 530,000
Receivabies (net of allowance
for uncolleciibles of $68,325)
Accounts 477,805 138,642 152,201 108 2,042 111,219 9,527 892,545 2,335
Unbilled 253,948 61,221 73,748 - - - 4,286 393,204 -
Special assessmeants - 5,804 3,168 - - - - 8,972 -
interest 20,474 3473 2,470 333 1,163 1,330 - 29,243 1,142
Due from other governments - 48729 - - - 18,299 - 67,028 -
Due from insurance company - - - - - 1,240,888 - 1,240,889 -
Inventory of supplies 615,211 184,048 32,068 - 8205 40,683 - 880,215 -
Inventory of stores
purchased for resale - - - 180,748 43,828 - - 224,576 -
Prepaid expenses 27.596 8,123 10,843 5,970 2,481 5,200 816 60,828 -
Due from other funds 398,180 101,869 45,525 - - ~ - 545,584 -
Totat current assets 6,087,998 1,258,463 1,255,824 423,738 541,482 2,694,998 72,929 12,335,243 572,788
Nencurrent assets:
Advance 1o Other Funds 204,839 - - - - - - 204,839 -
Restricted assets:
Bonds payable:
Current
- Cash 47,448 178,953 54,020 - 632,740 10,305 - 824,466 -
- investments 580,134 - - - - - - 580,134 -
- Interest receivable 11,209 - - - - - - 11,208 -
Landfifl- closure & postciosure
- Cash - - - - - 395,470 - 385,470 -
Total noncurrent assets 843630 178,953 54,020 - 832,740 405,775 - 2,116,118 -
Capital assets
Land & improvements 1311 100,863 96,429 - 2,201,152 57,982 - 2,457,547 -
Buildings 5,474,714 8,350,220 14,148,800 6,410 963,372 740,114 - 29,683,630 -
improvements other than bulidings 11,805,273 3,385,167 3,808,988 - - 1,751,266 - 20,750,694 -
Furniture & equipment 526,621 146,471 2,527,365 57,689 610,904 1,447,885 54,434 5,371,246 4,587,755
Construction in progress 181,462 490,207 - - 43,973 148,155 - 863,797 -
Less: accumulaled depreciation {4,581,542) (3,308,508) (7,030,297} {37,989 {819,121) {2,297.898) {25,682} {18,098,037) {2,207 688}
Total capital assets{net depreciation) 13.407,73 9,166,220 13,551,285 26,110 3,000,277 1,847,494 28,752 41,027,877 2,380,067
Totat noncurrent assets 14,251,386 8,346,173 13,605,305 26,110 3,833,017 2,253,269 28,752 43,143,985 2,380,067
Total assets 20,339,367 10,604,636 14,860,929 449,849 4,174,509 4,948,267 101,681 55,479,238 2,952,863
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding - - - - 8,039 - - 9,035 -
Total deferred outflows of resources - - - - 9,039 - - 9,039 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable 400,040 454,138 39,630 112,516 66,110 58,947 1,373 1,130,764 1,068
Customer deposits 52,605 26,303 - - - - - 78,908 -
Accrued interest payable 31,613 - 535 - 8,764 1,044 86 40,022 -
Due to other funds - 1,866 1,008 - 22,000 - - 24,874 -
Bonds payable - current 180,000 176,606 256,360 - 656,026 - - 1,277,992 -
Notes payable - current - - - - - 111,740 7.660 118,400 -
Revenue collected in advance - - - - 1,252 . 1,872 2,824 -
Accrued leave payable 51,533 28,256 24,869 - 16,434 25,428 2,113 149,633 2,537
Total current liabifities 725791 687,169 322,402 112,816 768,586 195,169 12,884 2,824,507 4,535
Noncurrent Jiabilities:
Revenue bonds 6,655,000 3,755,442 6,512,001 - - - - 16,922,443 -
Notes payable - - - - - 426,853 24,155 451,008
Capital lease payable - - - - - 229,870 - 229,870
Closure-postclosure liability - - - - - 209,309 - 209,309 -
Accrued leave payable 74,820 42,474 36,107 - 23,862 38,920 3,068 217,251 3,883
Advance from other funds - 4,998 2,698 - - - - 7,696 -
‘Total noncurrent liabilities 6,720,820 3,802,914 6,550,806 - 23,862 802,752 27,223 18,037,377 3,683
Total fiabilities 7,455,611 4,480,083 6,873,208 112,518 782,448 1,087,911 40,107 20,861,884 8218
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 6,562,739 5,235,172 6,782,924 26,110 2,353,290 1,079,231 {3,063) 22,036,403 2,380,067
Restricted for debt service 638,791 179,953 54,020 B 632,740 10,305 - 1.515,809 -
Restricted for landfill closure & postciosure - - - - - 186,161 - 188,161 -
Unrestricted 5,682,226 699,428 1,150,777 311,223 405,070 2,574,659 64,637 10,888,020 564,578
Total net position & 12883756 $ 5,114,553 § 7,987,721 % 337.333_% 3,391,100 $ 3,850,356 3% 61,574 34,626,393 3 2,944 645
Adjusiment to refiect the consolidation of intemal service fund activities related to enterprise aclivities 41,259
Net Position of Business-type Activities $ 34,667,652

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT&
CITY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Bi Type Activities-Enterprise Funds N Gover H
Non-Major Activities-
Joint Powers Curbside internal
Electric Water Wastewater Liquor Golf Course Landfilt Recycling Totals Service Funds
Operating revenue:
Charges for goods and services $ 5363234 § 1480051 § 1383666 $ 1217013 $ 854,510 & 866,663 $ 110248 & 11075388 § 448,002
Surcharge as security for debt 743,301 264,576 321,140 - - - - 1,329,017 -
Misceilaneous 80,678 27,726 33,108 - - 285,322 - 426,834 -
Total operating revenue 6,187,213 1,772,363 1,737,914 3,217,013 654,510 1,151,985 110,248 12,831,237 449 002
Operating expenses:
Personal services 781,407 521,266 411,904 - 352,477 479,050 83,480 2,629,284 73,310
Other current expense 248,070 92,563 480,124 223,621 245,583 424,547 7728 1,703,236 18,950
Materials (cost of goods sold) 3,086,924 452,233 - 816,173 151,991 11,340 - 4,518,661 -
Depreciation 522,374 253,85 592,300 3,807 52,585 308,920 7,338 1,740,97! 308,757
Total operating expenses 4,639,775 1318913 1,464,328 1,043,401 802,336 1,223,857 98,546 10,582 156 389,017
Operating income {Joss) 1,547 438 452 44 373,586 173612 (147 876} (71,872) 11,703 2,.230,08 43,985
Nonoperating revenue {(expense):
interest eamed 201,887 8,081 7,888 1,432 3,378 5,280 - 227,946 2,516
Rental revenue - 10,070 - - 51,666 - - 61,736 -
incremental property taxes - - - - 501,007 - - 501.007 -
Interest expense and fiscal charges (386,724) (117,554) (226,848) - (40,596) (18,526) (921) (791,169) .
Gain(loss) on discarded equipment (33.280) - {7,872y - (188) 30,245 - {11,096} 11,274
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) {218,117} {98,403} {226,832) 1,432 515,266 16,999 {921) (11,576} 13,780
income before contributions, extraordinary items, . .
and transfers 1,328,321 353,037 46,754 175,044 367,440 {54,873} 10,782 2,227,505 63,775
Capital contributions & grants - 60,065 55,450 - . 3,455 100 - 118,070 .
insurance recovery net fire loss - - - - - 808,209 - 608,209 -
Transferin 8,000 - - - 200,000 7.000 - 216,000 1,174
Transfer out {884,950) {38,583) {28,8679) (194,200) - {1,174) - (1,147,588} {7,000)
Change in net position 453,371 374,519 73,525 {18,156} 570,895 559,262 10,782 2,023,198 57,948
Net position - begirning 12,564,935 5,740,034 7,914,166 356,489 2,828,868 3,291,094 50,792 2,886,896
Prior period adjustment {134,550) - - - (8,863) - - -
Net position - beginning, as adjusied 12,430,385 5,740,034 7,914 196 356,488 2,820,205 3,291,084 50,792 2,885,698
Net position - ending $ 12883756 $ 8114553 § 7987721 § 337,333 0§ 3391100 § 3850358 $ 81,574 - $ 2,844 645
Adjustment to refiect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related o enterprise aclivities 18,905
Change in Net Position of Business-type Activities (page 23). $ 2,043,103

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $
Cash received from interfund services provided
Cash paid for personal services
Cash paid for interfund services
Cash paid to suppliers
Net cash provided by(used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIMITIES
Acquisition and construcion of capital assels
Grants
insurance procesds nel of expenses
Proceeds from sale of assets
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Principal paid on bonds and capital leases
Interest pait on bonds and capital leases
Net cash provided by (used for} capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Incremental properly taxes
Due to other funds
Due from other funds
Advances to Other Funds
Transferin
Transter {out)
Net cash provided by (used for)
non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTVMITIES
Interest on jnvestments
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year $

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTVITIES

Operating income (loss) 3
Adjustments to reconcile net eperating income
{toss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Rental revenue
{increase) decrease in assets and increase
{decresse) in liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Revenue collected in advance
Leave lability
Closure liability
Customer deposits
Met sach neovided by {used for} opereting acthities g
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Capital contributions
Exchangs of payables for capital assets
Gain{ioss) on disposal of capital assets
not affecting operating income
Total noncash investing, capital and financing activities $

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:

Unyestricted $
Restricted
Total reconciliation of cash & cash equivalents $

EXHIBIT7
CIiTY OF VERMILLION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmenta!
Non-Majot Activiies-
Joint Powers Curbside Internat

Electric Water Wastewater Liguor Golf Course Landfill Recycling Totals Service Funds
5,844,194 § 1,748,885 $ 1,725,709 §$ 1,224,998 $ 712,324 § 1,121,065 § 110,047 & 12488232 § -
377,466 36,779 10,724 - - - - 424,969 436,273
{772,55%) (515,570) (410,656 - (350,516) {471,780} {81,708) (2,602,782) {70,182}
{868) (82,069) {96.656) {7,292) {28,770} {7.302) - (223,055} -
(3,364,799} {462,03%) {377,368 {1.041,340) {359,798) (375,673} {7.695) (5,988,712) {38,548}
2,083,444 726,996 851,753 176,366 (27,760) 268,310 20,643 4,087,752 326,543
(604,224) {288,552) {202,627) - (42,375) (743,966} - {1,881,744) (402,379
- - - - - 100 - 100 -

- - - - - 711,918 - 711,918 -

1,703 - - - - 82,650 - 84,353 108,790
- - 45,030 - - 253,282 - 208,312 -
(190,000} (663,527) {337,322) - {445,000y {132,735) (7.472) (1,778,056} -
(386.985) (117,554) (226,903) - {23.550) {18,739) (936) (774,667) .
{1,178,506) {1,069,633) (724,822) - (510,925) 152,510 (8,408) (3,337,784 {295,589)
- - - - 501,380 - - 501,380 -

- {4,052) (2,477} - - - - {6,529y -

(83,373} {101,869 (45,525) - - - - {230,767} -
378,151 (15,585) (10,836} - - - - 351,930 -
9,000 - - - 200,000 7.000 - 216,000 12,894
{884,950) (38,583) (28679 {194,200) - - - {1,146,412) -
{581,172) {160,089} {87,317 (194,200) 701,380 7.000 - {314,398) 12,894
203,317 17.412 10,200 3202 3,728 9,065 - 246,924 3,387
(825,000} - {125,000} - - {425.000) - {1,375,000) {70,000}
10 400,000 - 100,000 86,000 - - 586,010 -
{621,673) 417,412 {114,800} 103,202 89,728 {415,935) - {542,066) 66,833)
(208,907 (85314) {72,186} 85,368 252,423 2,885 12,235 {98,496) {22,885)
366,129 270,821 136,806 26211 464,080 623,268 46,265 1,833,550 53437
67,222 $ 185507 § 64,620 5 111579 § 716513 % 633,153 58500 & 1,837084 § 30,452
1547438 § 452,440 § 273,586 $ 173612 § {147,828) $ (71872) 11,702 § 2,239,081 § 15,308
522,374 253,851 592,300 3,607 52,585 308,920 7,338 1,740,975 314,545

- 10,070 - - 51,868 - - 81,738 -

34,801 4,292 {1,481) 7,085 5,561 (35,937} (202) 15,018 725

- - - - - 5,017 - 5017 -

42,111 (11.475) 4,461 (8,836) {8.007) 47,571 - {20,387} -
{196) an {(1,711) 36 {104) @72 3 {2,261) -
12,636 12,180 {16,850} 862 17,117 {12,256 30 14,019 {5,671)

- - - - 587 - - 587 -

8,856 5,696 1,248 - 1,661 7,270 1771 26,502 1.835

- - - - - 17,868 - 17,868 -

{354} 41 - - - - - {385) -
2083444 ¢ 726008 ¢ 881752 § 175,368 % (27,760} & 266310 & 3 4007752 % 32A 542
- 11,338 55,450 - - - - 66,788 -

- 401,500 - - 34,778 - - 436,278 24,427

- - - - - 310,260 - 310,260 -

-8 412838 § 55450 % - $ 34,778 § 310260 $ - % 813324 § 24427

19,774 & 5554 § 10,600 § 111,57¢ § 83,773 § 227,378 § 58,500 § 517,158 § 30,452
47,448 178,953 54,020 - 832,740 405,775 - 1,318,938 -
67222 § 185,507 % 64620 $ 111579 $ 716513 § 833,153 % 58,500 & 1,837,094 & 30,452

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Vermillion was incorporated February 18, 1877, under the provisions of South Dakota -
Codified Law, as amended. The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government.
The funds included in this report are controlied by or dependent upon the municipality’s governing
board.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements
and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by
the City are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Vermillion consists of the primary government (which includes all of the funds,
organizations, institutions, agencies, departments and offices that make up the legal entity, plus
those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary responsibility, even though those
fiduciary funds may represent organizations that do no meet the criteria for inclusion in the
financial reporting entity); those organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the financial reportmg
entity’s financial statements to be m:sleadmg or incomplete.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The City is financially accountable if its City Council
appoints a voting majority of another organization’s governing body and it has the ability to
impose its will on that organization, or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the City (primary government).
The City may also be financially accountable for another organization if that organization is
fiscally dependent on the City.

The Housing and Redevelopment Commission of the City of Vermilion, South Dakota
(Commission) is a proprietary fund-type, and is required to be reported as a discretely presented
component unit. The five members of the Commission are appointed by the Mayor, with the
approval of the City Council, for ﬁve-year staggered terms. The Commission elects its own
chairperson and recruits and cmptuya its own management personnel and other workers. The
City Council, though, retains the statutory authority to approve or deny or otherwise modify the
Commission’s plans to construct low-income housing units, or to issue debt, which gives the City
Council the ability to impose its will on the Commission. Separately issued financial statements
of the Housing and Redevelopment Commission may be obtained by writing to the Commission
at PO Box 362, Vermillion, SD 57069.

Joint Ventures — A joint powers agreement between the City of Yankton, City of Vermillion,
Yankton County and Clay County was adopted in 1994. The purpose of this agreement is to
provide for the joint ownership, administration and operation of a solid waste disposal and
recycling system including; a solid waste transfer station or stations, the transportation of solid
waste, a sanitary landfill licensed by the State of South Dakota, recycling program and facilities,
establishing and collecting such fees as are necessary to support the joint operation and such
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

other operations and facilities as are necessary to exercise the primary responsibilities
established under the joint powers agreement. It is not the purpose of the agreement {o create a
separate entity. The membership of the Advisory Board consists of: one member of the
governing body of each participating government, the city managers of the Cities of Yankton and
Vermillion, and one citizen chosen by each participating governing body. The undivided interest
in the joint agreement is reported as Joint Powers-Landfill as an enterprise fund. A separate
financial statement for the joint venture is not issued.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements
Government-wide Financial Statements:

The City’s government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its
component units.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable. This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as
an entity and the change in the City’s net position resulting from the current year's activities. The
City's general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, and internal service funds are
classified as governmental activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental, business-type and
component unit activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets
and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position is reported in
three parts-net investments in capital assets, restricted net position and unrestricted net position.
The City first uses restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The Government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
City’s functions (general governmental, public works, public safety, health & welfare, culture &
recreation, conservation & development) and each segment of the business-type activities. The
functions are supported by general government revenues and related program revenues,

rati nto n i i i i
operating grants and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the

function or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating specific and discretionary
(either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues or receipts, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or
business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds. The City
can electively add a fund, as a major fund, which has a specific community focus. The nonmajor
funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. The various funds reported in
the financial statements are grouped into fund types as follows:

Governmental Fund Types — The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund
statements) is upon the determination of financial position and changes in financial position
(sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following
is a description of the governmental fund types of the City:

General Fund — The General fund is the general operating fund of the municipality. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Sbecial Revenue Funds — The Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific purposes (not including
major capital projects).

Debt Service Fund —~ The Debt Service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of general long-term debt principal, mterest and related costs not being
financed by proprietary funds.

Capital Projects Funds - The Capital Projects fund accounts for the acquisition of capital
assets or construction of major capital projects not being financed by Proprietary Funds.

Proprietary Fund Types — The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of
operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. Operating revenues
and expenses are distinguished from non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The
principal operating revenues of enterprise funds are charges to customers for services.
Operating expenses consist of cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. The U.S. Generany Accepted Accounting Principles used are
thnea apnhncblo £ ehm:la bue‘n +h

#
incse HUSIID B Oti i 1o ivate onr\'l'nr

sses in the private sector

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or enterprises, where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds — Internal Service funds account for operations that provide services to
other departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

The City's internal service funds are presented in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Because the principal users of the internal services are the City's governmental activities, the
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financial statements of the internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental column
when presented in the government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of
these services is reported in the appropriate functional activity.

A description of the City’s internal service funds is as follows:
Copier-Fax-Postage Fund — The copier-fax-postage fund is used to account for all operating

cost and replacement of the central copier, postage and fax machine at city hall. All departments
are billed for copies, postage, and faxes used at a cost plus depreciation.

Unemployment Insurance Fund — This fund has been established to account for the City self-
insurance for unemployment insurance claims.

Equipment Replacement Fund — The equipment replacement fund is used to account for
rental of equipment used by all City departments and to provide the means to purchase
replacement equipment when needed. All the major items of the city’s rolling stock are contained
in this fund. Each department on a quarterly basis pays rental amounts.

Custodial Services — The custodial services fund is used to account for the costs associated
with providing janitorial services for city buildings.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — See the description above. The General Fund is always considered to be a
major fund.

Special Revenue Fund:

Sales Tax Fund — This fund is used to account for sales tax revenue in excess of the amount
received if the rate of sales tax were one percent. The state law was changed to remove the
language that restricted the use of the second penny sales tax revenues allowing for local control
of the two percent tax revenues. A City ordinance was adopted that designated the usage of the
sales tax proceeds in excess of one percent and provides these funds may be used only for
capital improvement (definition of “capital” to include the accounting definition of capital item
currently being an item over $500), land acguisition, the funding of public ambulances and
medical emergency response vehicles, nonprofit hospitals with fifty or fewer licensed beds, and
other public care facilities or nonprofit health care facilities with fifty or fewer licensed beds, the
transfer to the special 911 fund authorized by SDCL § 34-45-12, the purchasing of fire fighting
vehicles and equipment, debt retirement, major building repair projects (roof repair, etc.), capital
project planning, feasibility studies, and the minor rehabilitation, major rehabilitation, or
reconstruction of streets as defined in the June 1994 South Dakota Depariment of
Transportation’s pavement Condition Survey Guide for City Streets.

Capital Project Fund:

Library Renovation Fund - This fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements of
monies used for the expansion and renovation of the Library.

Stanford Street Fund - This fund is used o account for the receipts and disbursements of
monies used for the reconstruction of Stanford Street from Main Street to Cherry Street.
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The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the governments’ electric distribution
operation.

Water Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the government's water treatment and
distribution operation.

Wastewater Fund — This fund accounts for the activities for the government's sanitary sewer
collection and treatment operations.

Liquor Fund — This fund accounts for the operation of the City liquor store. in November 2008
the City entered into a contract for management of the liquor store. Under the contract, the city
accounts for all the operations with the manager paid a fee plus a percentage of the profits.

Golf Course Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of the public 18-hole golf course and
residential housing development. All marketed housing sites have been sold resulting in eighty-
two single family homes, four twin homes, fifteen townhouse units and one muitiunit.

Joint Powers Landfill-Recycling — On April 9, 1994 The City of Vermillion, City of Yankton,
Ciay County and Yanktion County entered into a joint powers operation for landfill and recycling.
The fund accounts for the activities of the landfill and recycling center located in Vermillion. The
transfer station and recycling in Yankton are accounted for by the City of Yankton. -

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” revenues and expenditures or
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of
the measurement focus.

Measurement Focus:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental,
business-type and component unit activities are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus, applied on the accrual basis of accounting.

Fund Financial Statements:

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting are applied to governmental fund types, while the "economic

resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are apphed to the proprietary
and fiduciary fund types.
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Basis of Accounting:
Government-wide Financial Statements:

in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental, and
business-type, and component unit activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues and related assets are recorded when earned
(usually when the right to receive cash vests); and, expenses and related liabilities are recorded
when an obligation is incurred (usually when the obligation to pay cash in the future vests).

Fund Financial Statements:

All governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Their revenues, including property taxes, are recognized when they become measurable and
available. “Available” means resources are collected or to be coliected soon enough after the
end of the fiscal year that they can be used to pay the bills of the current period. The accrual
period for the City is 30 days. The revenues which are accrued at December 31, 2012 are
property taxes, assessments, and intergovernmental revenues. Licenses, fines and permits are
not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not
available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Reported deferred revenues are those where asset
recognition criteria have been met but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met.

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to
this general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recognized
when due.

All proprietary and fiduciary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.
Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when
they are incurred.

D. Interfund Eliminations and Reclassifications:

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements while direct expenses are not eliminated.

Government-wide Financial Statements:

In the process of aggregating data for the government-wide financial statements, some amounts
reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated
or reclassified, as follows:

a. In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the primary government,
amounts reported as interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated in the
governmental and business-type activities columns, except for the net, residual
amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are
presented as Internal Balances.
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b. In order to minimize the doubling-up effect of internal service fund activity, certain
“centralized expenses” including an administrative overhead component, are charged
as direct expenses {o funds or programs in order to show all expenses that are
associated with a service, program, department, or fund. When expenses are
charged, in this manner, expense reductions occur in the Internal Service Funds so
that expenses are reported only by the function to which they relate.

E. Deposits and Investments

State statutes authorize the City to invest in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL 4-
B6A-1, 9-22-6, 9-22-6.1, and 9-22-6.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits.
Qualified depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their
other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit
accounts which exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging
eligible securities, a qualified public- depository may furnish revocable standby letters of credit
issued by Federal Home Loan Banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank’s public debt
rating which may not be less that "AA” or better or a qualified public depository may furnish a
corporate surety bond of a corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota. Deposits and
investments during the year have not varied from these statutes and were consistent with those
held by the City at year-end.

Deposits

The City’s deposits at December 31, 2012 consist of bank deposits that are covered by Federal

depository insurance or for the accounts which exceed deposit insurance eligible collateral or

revocable standby letter of credit as required by SDCL 4-8A-3 were maintained to insure there

will be no loss of public funds. Deposits also consist of nonnegotiable certificate of deposits with a

carrying value of $13,450,000. The City’s bank deposits, per banks, at December 31, 2012 were

$14,019,572 and $136,457 in deposits of the Vermilion Housing and Redevelopment
Commission for total bank deposits of $14,156,029.

Investment

In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits municipal funds to be invested in (a) securities of the United
States and securities guarantesd by the United States government either directly or indirectly,
including without limitations, United States treasury bills, notes, bonds, and other obligations
issued or directly or indirectly guaranteed by the United States government, or otherwise directly
or indirectly backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; provided that, for
other than permanent, trust, retirement, building, and depreciation reserve funds, such securities
shall either mature within eighteen months from the date of purchase or be redeemable at the
option of the holder within eighteen months from the date of purchase; or (b} repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) and meeting the requirements of
SDCL 4-5-9, if the repurchase agreements are entered into only with those primary reporting
dealers that report to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and with the one hundred largest
United States commercial banks, as measured by domestic deposits; or (c) in shares of an open-
end, no-load fund administered by an investment company registered under the Federal
investment Company Act of 1940, whose shares are registered under the federal Securities Act
of 1933 and whose only investment are in securities described in (a) and repurchase agreements
as described in (b).
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The City also participates in the South Dakota Public Funds Investment Trust (SDFIT). The
SDFIT was established under SDCL 1-24 and is an external investment pool created for South
Dakota local government investing. A nine-member board regulates it with representation from
municipalities, school districts and counties. The net asset value of the SDFIT money market
account (GCRY) is kept at one-dollar per share by adjusting the rate of return on a daily basis.
Earnings are credited to each account on a monthly basis. The investment in SDFIT is unrated.
The City’s SDFIT balance at December 31, 2012 was $1,900,157.

Investments are stated at fair value. Accordingly, changes in fair value of investments at year-
end are reflected as a component of earnings on investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s strategy has been to establish a maturity schedule that has investments
maturing in a laddered fashion with only a portion of the total portfolio being reinvested each
month. This technique reduces the risk that all or most of the investments will mature and be
reinvested at a time of relatively low interest rates.

Credit Risk

The City complies with the state law limits for investments as stated above. In 2009 the City
adopted a separate policy for credit risk that complies with the state law.

Custodial Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits this is the risk that is the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may
not be returned. State law SDCL 4-6A-3 requires depositories to maintain at all times,
segregated from their other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent
of the public deposit accounts which exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA.

Custodial Risk — investment

Assianment of Investment Income

State law allows income from deposits and investments to be credited to either the General Fund
or the fund making the investment. The City’s policy is to credit all income from investments to
the fund making the investment.
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F. Restricted Cash and Investments

The City’s restricted cash and investments and the nature of the restriction is as follows:

Fund Restricted By Amount
Special Assessment Bonds Fund Bond Covenants $ 289,970
TIF District
No. 4 Bonds Bond Covenants 271,211
City Hall Debt Sendce Fund Extemnal Parties 365,426
Electric Fund Bond Covenants 627,582
Water Fund Bond Covenants 179,953
Wastewater Fund Bond Cowenants 54,020
Golf Course Fund Bond Cowenants 632,740
Joint Powers-Landfili Fund Bond Covenants 10,305
State Agency 395,470
Total Restricted Cash and Inwestments $ 2,826,677

The City's restricted investments are comprised of investments issued by government-sponsored
enterprises (GSE’s) or federally related institutions that are guaranteed directly or indirectly by the
U.S. government (U.S. Agencies) as follows:

Credit
Carrying Rating
Restricted Investments Amount 12/31/2012
Federal Home Loan
Bank System 3 364,145 AAA
Restricted Investments $ 364,145

G. Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds to finance
operations, provide services, construct assets, and service debt. To the extent that certain
transactions between funds have not been natd or received as of December 31, 2012, balances
of short-term interfund amounts payable or receivable have been recorded as: “due to other
funds®’, and “due from other funds”, respectively. Noncurrent portions of interfund loan
receivables are reported as advances. Any residual balance outstanding between governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
internal balances. The purpose of interfund balances is to finance short-term cash flow shortages
of various funds and to account for the current portion of special assessment bonds.

An additional $41,259 is included in the internal balances of the governmental funds and
business-type funds on the Statement of Net Position. This represents the adjustment to reflect
the consolidation of the internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds as shown in the
Statement of Net Position-Proprietary Funds.
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The composition of short-term interfund balances as of December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Short-term Shori-term
Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
Special Revenue Funds:
Sales Tax $ 22,000 $ -
911 Fund - 45,525
Enterprise Funds:
Electric 398,190 -
Water 101,869 1,866
Wastew ater 45,525 1,008
Golf Course - 22,000
Capital Projects Funds:
Special Assessments - 22,205
Alrport - 201,990
Bike Path - 101,869
Debt Service Funds:
Special Assessments - 82,727
Tif #3 - 108,394
$ 567,584 3 567,584

The composition of Long-term advances as of December 31, 2012, is as follows:

Advance Advance
to {(from)

Enterprise Funds:
Blectric $ 204,839 $ -
Water - 4,998
Wastew ater - 2,698
Debt Service Funds:
Special Assessments - 197,143

$ 204,838 % 204,839

The advances consist of Special Assessment Bonds which were purchased by the Electric
Enterprise Fund and are payable from the Special Assessment Debt Service Fund. The current
portion of the bonds is shown as short-term interfund receivable/payable while those amounts
due and payable after one year are recorded as advances.

H. Inventory and Prepaid ltems

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO)
method. In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements inventory
is recorded as an asset at the time of purchase, and charged to expense as it is consumed. In
the governmental fund financial statements, purchases of inventory items are recorded as
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. Reported inveniories are
equally offset by a nonspendabe fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute
“available spendable resources” even though they are a component of net assets.
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~Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2012 are
recorded as prepaid items in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary
funds financial statements.

. Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding
reported in the proprietary fund financial statements. A deferred charge on refunding results from
the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has
only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that
qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported
only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable
revenues from three sources: property taxes, special assessments, and interest income. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available.

J. Cash Flows

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to
be cash equivalents.

K. Interfund Transactions

. .
interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses,

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

L. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and all other tangible or
intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a
single reporting period. Assets with an initial individual cost of $500 .or more are considered
capital assets. Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Contributed assets are reported at their fair market value as of the
date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital ocutlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. Infrastructure has been capitalized using historical or estimated historical
cost beginning in 1980 as required by GASB 34. Depreciation on all assets excluding land and
construction in process is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated lives; -
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Buildings 33-50 Years
Improvement Other Than Buildings 30-33 Years
Fumniture & Equipment 3-15 Years
Infrastructure 15-10 Years

Interest costs for capital asset construction within enterprise funds are capitalized. However, all
other interest costs are recorded in the debt service fund. Interest costs incurred during 2012
were $993,323 of which none were capitalized.

M. Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Leave

Annual leave is earned by the employees at the rate of 48 hours to 200 hours per year depending
on length of service. Upon termination, employees are entitled to receive compensation for their
accrued annual leave balance on the basis of their current rate of pay. Sick leave is earned by
the employees at the rate of 120 to 160 hours per year depending on length of service to a
maximum of 1700 hours. Upon termination, employees with five years or more of service are
entitled to receive compensation for their accrued sick leave balance on the basis of their current
rate of pay times one-third of their sick leave balance. Compensation may not exceed one third
of 720 hours for 5 to 10 years of service, and one-third of 760 hours for more than 10 years of
service. ’

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave including related employee benefits that is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an
expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental fund financial statements only for employees that have
resigned or retired. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave including related
employee benefits that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Vested or accumulated
vacation and sick leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds
as the benefits accrue to employees.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources
have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For
other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available
financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of
such obligations is reported in the government-wide financial statements. Long-term liabilities
expected {o be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

O. Equity Classifications

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as Net Position and is displayed in three componentes:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the outstanding balances
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of any bonds, morigages, notes, or other borrowings that are atiributable to the acquisition
construction or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints places on their use either
by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other
governments: of (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation.

3. Unrestricted Net Position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted”
or "net investment in capital assets".

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish between
"Nonspendable”, "Restricted", "Committed”, "Assigned” and "Unassigned” components.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements.

P. Application of Net Position

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net position, prior to the use of unrestricted net position,
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions
are available.

Q. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

In Accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the Municipality classifies governmental fund
balances as follows:

s Nonspendable — inciudes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it
is not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints

e Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained
due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the nighest level
of decision making authority (i.e. City Council) and does not lapse at year-end. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove
or revise the limitation.

e Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balances may be
assigned by action of the City Council.

e« Unassigned — includes positive fund balance with in the General Fund which has not
been classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in
other governmental funds. '

The Municipality uses restricted /committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such
as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Government would first
use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when
expenditures are made.
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The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of
an ordinance or resolution. Assigned fund balance is established by the city council through
adoption or amendment of budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed
assets, construction, debt service or for other purposes).

Note 2 — Property Tax

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are
levied on or before October 1 and payable in two instaliments on or before April 30 and October
31 of the following year. The county bills and collects the City’s taxes and remits them to the City.
The City accrues all delinquent property tax revenue received with 30 days after December 31,
2012.

The City is permitted by state statute to levy the following amounts of taxes per $1,000 of taxable
valuation of the property in the municipality:

General Fund $27
Bond Redemption Funds Amounts Required by
Bond Agreements
Judgement Fund
(Upon Judgement Being Made) $10

The combined tax rate to finance municipal services including principal and interest on long-term
debt for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $6.29 per $1,000 of taxable valuation.

Note 3 — Receivables

Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amountis related to
revenues of the current period are as follows:

Uncollectibles related to special assessmenis $ 21,311
Uncollectibles related to ambulance charges 103,546
Uncollectibles related to mobile home fees 227
Uncollectibles related to miscellaneous fees 614
Uncollectibles related fo electric charges 30,255
Uncollectibles related to w ater charges 9,233
Uncollectibles related to w astew ater charges 23,697
Uncollectibles related to golf course charges 4,217
Uncollectibles related to joint pow ers charges 112
Uncollectibles related to curbside recycling charges 811

3 194,023

Amounts due from other governments include $787,593 from the State of South Dakota, $67,778
due from Clay County, $18,299 due from the City of Yankton, and $244,681 due from the Federal
Government. The City also has $1,240,889 due from insurance for a fire that occurred at the
landfill. Information on this event can be found on page 56 of this report.
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A summary of the changes in the capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2012, is as

follows:
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2012 Additions Deletions 2012
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land 1,221,441 % - $ - 1,221,441
Infrastructure Land 343,062 - - 343,062
Construction in Progress 155,351 4,096,455 - 4,251,806
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,718,854 4,096,455 - 5,816,309
Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings 15,348,276 116,259 - 15,464,535
Furniture & Equipment 7,087,577 233,904 (142,024) 7,179,457
Books 1,800,843 76,591 (28,425) 1,849,009
Infrastructure 17,430,680 - - 17,430,680
Total capital assets, being depreciated 41,667,376 426,754 (170,449) 41,923,681
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings (3,216,238) (424,227) (3,640,465)
Furniture & Bquipment {3,680,238) (477,457) 118,186 (4,039,509)
Books (811,746) (36,499) 19,512 (828,733)
Infrastructure (8,246,083) (610,497) - (8,856,560)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (15,954,285) (1,548,680) 137,698 (17,365,267)
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 25,713,091 {1,121,926) (32,751) 24,558,414
Governmental activities capital assets, net 27,432,945 $ 2,974,529 $ (32,751 % 30,374,723
The following is included in construction in progress:
Total Expended
Project thru
Authorization 12/31/2012
Public Works- Airport $ 645,000 % 471,699
Public Works- Stanford 1,232,119 1,256,203
Culture & Recreation:
Sw imming Pool 12,100 12,100
Bike Path 207,914 182,589
Library Renovation 2,818,284 2,329,215
% 4,816,427 $ 4,251,806
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Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land and improvements

Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings

Improvements Other than Buildings
Furniture & BEquipment _
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for;
Buildings

Improvements Other than Buildings
Furniture & Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net $

Business-type activities capital assets, net $

The following was included in construction in progress:

Golf Course Housing Sites
Hectric Replay Upgrade
Water Dept - Water Tow er
Joint Pow ers Lechate Project

and Cell 5

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2012 Additions Deletions 2012
2,457,547 $ - $ - $ 2,457,547
189,790 685,950 (11,943) 863,797
2,647,337 685,950 (11,943) 3,321,344
30,458,066 490,218 (1,264,654) 29,683,630
20,355,704 647,118 (252,128) 20,750,694
5,384,477 737,083 (750,314) 5,371,246
56,198,247 1,874,419 (2,267,096) 55,805,570
(7,017,076) (799,868) 269,062 (7,547,882)
(6,687,410) (596,348) 27,724 (7,256,034)
(3,283,038) {344,759) 332,676 (3,295,121)
{16,987,524) (1,740,975) 629,462 (18,099,037)
39,210,723 $ 133444 $ (1,637,634) $ 37,708,533
41,858,060 $ 819,394 $ (1,649,577) $ 41,027,877
Total Expended
Project thru
Authorization 12/31/2012
$ 252,804 & 43,973
212,157 181,462
1,420,000 490,207
2,361,210 148,155
$ 4,246,171 $ 863,797
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 201,376
Public Safety 123,155
Public Works 763,876
Health & Welfare 20,595
Culture & Recreation 132,921
Total depreciation expense
- Governmental Activities 1,241,923
- Internal Service Funds 306,757

$___1598,680_
Business-Type Activities:

Hectric 3 522,374
Water 253,851
Wastew ater 582,300
Liquor 3,607
Golf Course 52,585
Joint Pow ers Landfill 308,920
Curbside Recycling 7,338

Total depreciation expense
- Business-Type Activities $ 1,740,975

A summary of changes in capital assets for the discretely presented component unit is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Component Unit:
Capital Assets, being depreciated
Furniture & Equipment $ 6,698 $ - $ (3,070) $ 3,628
Total capital assets being depreciated 6,698 - (3,070) 3,628
i.ess:
Accumulated Depreciation (6,141} (430) 3,070 (3,501)
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net $ 557 (430) - $ 127
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Reconciliation of Invested in Capital Assets:
Governmental  Business-Type

Land and Improvements $ 1,564,503 $ 2,457,547
Construction in Progress 4,251,806 863,797
Capital Assets

(Net of

Accumulated Depreciation) 24,558,414 37,706,533
Less:

Revenue Bonds (355,000) (18,191,396)

Notes Payable - (570,408)

Capital Leases (3,640,496) (229,670)
Net Investment in

Capital Assets $ 26,379,227 $ 22,036,403

Note 5 - Long-Term Debt

Notes Payable

The City currently has four notes payable outstanding. The first is a loan agreement entered into
in 2006 with the Solid Waste Management Program for solid waste improvements in the amount
of $445,000. The rate on this loan is 2.5%; repayment began June 1, 2008 and matures
December 1, 2015.

The second was entered into in 2008 with the Solid Waste Management Program for purchase of
equipment to initiate and establish a new curbside recycling program in the amount not to exceed
$175,000. The rate on this loan is 2.5%, repayment began on June 1, 2010 and matures
December 1, 2016.

The third was entered into in 2010 with the Solid Waste Management Program for purchase of
Landfill Dozer in the amount of $200,000. The rate on this loan is 2.25%, repayment began on
June 1, 2011 and matures December 1, 2017.

The fourth was entered into in 2010 with the Solid Waste Management Program for purchase of
Landfill Baler in the amount of $255,519. The rate on this loan is 2.25%, repayment began on
June 1, 2011 and matures December 1, 2020.

Notes Payable outstanding at December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Interest Outstanding

Purpose Rate Amounts
Solid Waste Management-2006-204 2.50% § 183,693
Solid Waste Management-2008-402 2.50% 31,815
Solid Waste Management-2010-402 2.25% 146,016
Solid Waste Management-2010-203 2.25% 208,884

$ 570,408
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Business-Type Acthities

December 31 Principal Interest

2013 $ 119,400 $ 12,663
2014 122,272 9,791
2015 125,214 6,849
2016 63,888 4,237
2017 56,894 2,823
2018-2020 82,740 3,288
Total $ 570,408 & 39,651

Revenue Bonds

The City received the final draw down on the 2008 wastewater SRF loan in 2012.
During 2012 the City prepaid two SRF loans with existing reserves. The first being the 1999
Water Utility Bond for $435,034 and the second the 1990 Wastewater Revenue Bond for $4,120.

A detail of revenue bonds outstanding follows:

Interest

Purpose Rate Amounts

Governmental Activities: ]

Tax Increment #4 Revenue Bond, Series 2005 4.25% $ 355,000
Business-Type Activities:

Electric Revenue Bond, Series 2009 A& B 2.0%-6.25% 6,845,000

Wastewater System Revenue Bond, Series 2003 (SRF) 3.50% 183,403

Wastewater System Revenue Bond, Series 2005 (SRF) 3.25% 2,481,847

‘Wastewater System Revenue Bond, Series 2008 (SRF) 3.25% 3,872,398

Wastewater System Revenue Bond, Series 2009 (SRF) 2.50% 230,713

Tax Increment #1 Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2009 3.00% 656,026 *

‘Water Utility Bond, Series 2002 (SRF) ’ 3.50% 990,769

Water Utility Bond, Series 2_006 (SRF) 2.50% 2,940,279

5__18555435
* This note is reported gross of bond premium of $1,026.
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Enterprise
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 35000 $ 15088 $ 1,277,892 § 631,815
2014 35,000 13.600 782,237 683,604
2015 40,000 12,112 805,473 660,979
2016 40,000 10,413 829,285 633,967
2017 40,000 8,713 853,690 605,645
2018-2022 165,000 15,299 4,701,645 2,552,973
2023-2027 - - 4,802,625 1,648,415
2028-2032 - - 2,547,488 858,079
2033-2036 - - 1,600,000 255,313
Total $ 355,000 $ 75225 $ 18,200,435 $§ 8,530,790

Capital Lease

The following are the City's three outstanding capital leases:

An agreement with The First National Bank in Sioux Falls (Lessor/Trustee) for the financing to
construct a new city hall building. The Declaration of Trust Agreement, the Lease-Purchase
Agreement and Ground Lease Agreement between the City and The First National Bank along
with the issuance of $4,475,000 of Certificates of Participation were completed in September
2007. These agreements are evidence of the Bank's ownership interest in the lease-purchase
assets with the City of Vermillion. In addition to the Certificate of Participation proceeds available
for the building construction, the City contributed $1,140,000 of sales tax funds for completion of
the building project. The bid was awarded and construction began on the new city hall building in
October 2007 and completed in March 2009. The interest rate on the Certificates of Participation
varies from 3.80% to 4.40% and the lease payment terms match the terms of the certificates with
final payment December 15, 2026. Sales tax funds have been pledged to make the lease
payments over the term of the lease.

An agreement with Cannon Financial Services was entered into in 2012 to lease a Canon IPF
755 MFP copier for the engineering department. This is an interest free lease with the final

is recorded at $7,066 less accumulated depreciation at year end of $636.

An agreement with Kinetic Leasing for the financing of a 2012 Caterpillar Motorgrader at the
landfill. A down payment of $12,737 was made in 2012 and an agreement for $253,282 to be
paid back with an interest rate of 3.25% and maturing in 2018. This lease is paid from the Joint
Powers Landfill-Recycling Fund. The equipment is recorded at $266,019 less accumulated
depreciation at year end of $23,942.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with
the net present value of the minimum leases payments as of December 31, 2012.
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Gowernmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Year Ending December 31 Principal interest Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 202,355 3 152,634 $ - 8 - 3 354,989
2014 207,355 144,934 20,354 7,464 380,107
2018 215,786 137,041 21,018 8,803 380,646
2016 220,000 128,710 21,699 6,120 376,528
2017 230,000 120,020 22,404 5,415 377,838
2018-2022 1,305,000 449,100 144,197 8,621 1,906,918
2023-2026 1,260,000 141,460 - - 1,401,460
Minimum Lease Payments 5,178,488
Less:

Amount Representing Interest (1,308,322)
Present Value

of Minimum Lease Payments $ 3,870,166

Closure/Postclosure Liability

State and federal laws and regulations require the City of Vermillion to place a final cover on its
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will
be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City of Vermillion
reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each
period based upon landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The conversion to
balefill operations extended the useful life of the landfill due to the higher compaction and less
cover. The $209,309 reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability at December 31,
2012, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 62 percent of the
estimated capacity of the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure
and postclosure care of $127,730 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts
are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2012. The City
expects to close the landfill in the year 2031. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes
in technology, or changes in regulation. The City reports the closure and postclosure care funds
as restricied asseis on the baiance sheet. The City expecis that future infiation cosis will be paid
from interest earnings on theses annual contributions. However, if interest earning are
inadequate or additional posticlosure care requirements are determined (due to changes in
technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need to be covered
by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenues.

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities are as follows:
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Note 5 — Long Term Debt {(Continued)

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Revenue Bonds Payable 390,000 % - 35,000 355,000 35,000
Capitai Leases 3,825,000 7,068 191,570 3,640,496 202,355
Compensated Absences 396,868 365,339 396,868 365,339 149,002
Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities 4,611,868 $ 372,405 623,438 4,360,835 386,357
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bonds Payable 19,784,142 & 45,030 1,638,737 18,200,435 1,277,992
Notes Payable 687,003 - 118,595 570,408 119,400
Capital Leases - 253,282 23,612 229,670 -
Closure/Postcliosure Liability 191,440 17.869 - 209,308 -
Compensated Absences 340,382 366,884 340,382 366,884 149,633
Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities 21,012,067 $ 583,085 2,119,328 1,547,025

19,576,706

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general
fund, the revenue bonds will be repaid by the tax incremental property taxes, and the capital
lease will be paid out of the sales tax fund.

Note 6 — Leases

The City has the following operating leases:

Barstow Park Lease — leased from the public school for twenty years, the land for use as a city
park for $20. The lease will expire on February 23, 2029.

The liquor store building is leased with the current lease expiring in February 2015. The following
is the amount of current lease payments:

Year Amount
2013 $ 11,250
2014 11,250
2015 1,875

The ambulance defibrillators are leased for five years beginning in October 2009. The following is
the amount of the current lease payments:

Year Amount
2013 $ 8,895
2014 5,190

The Bluff's golf course entered into a lease with Midwest Golf Car to lease 40 golf carts for §
years beginning February 1, 2009. The following is the amount of the current lease payments:

Year Amount
2013 $ 22,448
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Note 7 — Conduit Debt

In previous years, the municipality has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to
certain private-sector entities for the acquisition and/or construction of facilities deemed to be in
the public interest. These bonds are secured by the property being financed and are payable
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds
ownership of the acquired facilities is retained by the private-sector entity served by the bond
issuance. Neither the municipality, the State of South Dakota, nor any other political subdivision
of the state, is obligated in any manner for the repayment of their conduit debt issues.
Accordingly, the bond is not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As
of December 31, 2012, there was one series of conduit bonds outstanding, with an aggregate
unpaid principal amount of $295,000.

Note 8 — Deficit Fund Equity

As of December 31, 2012 the following funds had deficit fund equity in the amount of:

Debt Senice Funds

TIF District No. 3 Bonds $ 108,394
This deficit will be eliminated with property tax collections.
Capital Projects Funds:
Library Renovation $ 298,615
Special Assessments Projects 119,614

These deficits will be eliminated with a advance from the electric fund in 2013, a transfer of future
second penny tax collections, and special assessment collections or bonds issued.

Note 9 —~ Transfers

The following is a summary of transfers between funds:

Governmental Fund Types

Business-Fund Type

Sales Library Stanford Nonmajor internal Total
Tax Renovaion Street Governmental Joint Service Transfers

General Fund Fund Fund Funds Eleciinic 3oif FOWETS Fuid Cut
General $ - 3 3 - $ - $ 225917 % - $ - $ - k3 - $ 2258177
Sales Tax - 750,117 175,046 376,399 - 200,000 - 1501562
Electric 884,950 - - - - - 884,850
Water 29,583 - 9,000 - - - 38,583
Wastewater 28 679 - - - - - 28,679
Liquor 184,200 - - - - - - - 184,200
Joint Powers - - - - - - - 1174 1174

Nonmajor

Govermental Funds 3,124 25840 91842 - 15,862 - - - - 136,468
internal Service - - - - - - - 7.000 - 7000
Total Transfersin $ 140,536 § 25640 § 841858 § 175046 & 618,178 $ 9000 $ 200000 % 7000 $ 1174 $ 3,018,583

Transfers are used to:

1. Move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to coliect them to the fund

that statute or budget requires to expend them.
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2. To use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Note 10 — Risk Management
The municipality is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During

the period ended December 31, 2012, the municipality managed its risks as follows:

Employee Health Insurance:

The municipality purchases health insurance for its employees from a commercial carrier. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three
years.

Liability Insurance and Property Insurance:

The municipality has been unable to obtain liability coverage for torts; theft of or damage to
property; and errors and omission of public officials at a cost it considered to be economically
justifiable. The municipality joined the South Dakota Public Assurance Alliance (SDPAA), a
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program
for South Dakota local government entities. The objective of the SDPAA is to administer and
provide risk management services and risk sharing facilities to the members and to defend and
protect the members against liability, to advise members on loss control guidelines and
procedures, and provide them with risk management services, loss control and risk reduction
information and to obtain lower costs for that coverage. The Municipality’s responsibility is to
promptly report to and cooperate with the SDPAA to resolve any incident which could result in a
claim being made by or against the Municipality. The Municipality pays an annual premium to the
pool to provide general liability, property, inland marine, automobile liability, official’s liability, law
enforcement liability, boiler and liquor liability coverage. The agreement with the South Dakota
Public Assurance Alliance provides that the above coverages will be provided to a $1,000,000
limit. Member's premiums are used by the pool for payment of claims and to pay for reinsurance

for claims in excess of $250,000 for property coverage and $500,000 for liability coverage to the
upper limit. The municipality carries $2,000 deductible for the officials liability coverage; $3,000

deductible for law enforcement liability coverage; zero deductible for general liability; $1, 000

deductible for buildings, contents, miscellaneous property and EDP hardware; automobile liability
with $100 deductible for comprehensive and $500 for collision and liquor liability coverage.

A portion of the member premiums are also allocated to a cumulative reserve fund. The
Municipality would be eligible to receive a refund for a percentage of the amount allocated to the
cumulative reserve fund on the following basis:

End of Municipality's First Full Year 50%
End of Municipality's Second Full Year 60%
End of Municipality's Third Full Year 70%
End of Municipality's Fourth Full Year 80%
End of Municipality's Fifth Full Year 30%
End of Municipality's Six Full Year and Thereafter 100%
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As of December 31, 2012 the Municipality has vested balance in the cumulative reserve fund of
$158,060.

The municipality does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have never exceeded the liability coverage.

Workmen's Compensation:

The municipality has been unable to obtain workmen’s compensation coverage at a cost it
considered to be economically justifiable. The Municipality joined the South Dakota Municipal
League Worker Compensation Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common
risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local government entities. The
objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member
organizations, a program of worker's compensation coverage, to obtain lower costs for that
coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program.  The Municipality’s
responsibility is to initiate and maintain a safety program to give its employees safe and sanitary
working conditions and to promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve any worker's
compensation claims. The Municipality pays an annual premium, to provide worker's
compensation coverage for its employees, under a self-funded program and the premiums are
accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the Fund members. Coverage
limits are set by state statue. The pool pays the first $650,000 of any claim per individual. The
pool has reinsurance which covers up to statutory limits in addition to a separate combined
employer liability limit of $2,000,000 per incident.

The municipality does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have never exceeded the liability coverage.

Unemployment Insurance:

The municipality has elected to be self-insured and retain alf risk for liabilities resulting from
claims for unemployment benefits. The municipality has equity in the unemployed insurance fund
in the amount of $12,319 for the payment of future unemployment benefits. During the current
year ended December 31, 2012 the City paid $435 in unemployment benefits. No material cia;ms
are anticipated in the next fiscal year.

The City does not have any changes in employment practices or elimination of any positions
currently held.

Note 11 - Retirement Plan

All employees, except for part-time and seasonal employees, participate in the South Dakota
Retirement System (SDRS), a cost sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system
established to provide retirement benefits for employees of the State of South Dakota and its
political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits. The right
to receive retirement benefits vests after three years of credited service. Authority for
establishing, administering and amending plan provisions are found in South Dakota codified Law
3-12. The SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. .That report may be obtained by writing the SDRS, PO Box
1098, Pierre, SD 57501-1098 or by calling (605)773-3731.
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General employees are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their salary to the plan,
while public safety and judicial employees contribute at 8 percent and 9 percent, respectively.
State statute also requires the employer to contribute an amount equal o the employee’s
contribution. State statute also requires the employer to make an additional contribution in the
amount of 6.2 percent for any compensation exceeding the maximum taxable amount for social
security for general employees only. The municipality’s share of contributions to the SDRS for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $300,174, $285,664, and
$290,088, respectively, equal to the required contributions each year.

Note 12 - Extraordinary ltem

On Monday morning October 22, 2012 when the employees reported to the landfill to start the
day they observed the large building on fire. The fire department was notified and responded fo
control the fire. The building housed the solid waste baler and conveyor for baling and bagging
solid waste before being placed in the landfill. Also stored in the building were three loaders, a
truck and many shop tools and equipment for maintenance of the equipment that all were a total
loss. The office building located ten feet away was saved by the work of the fire department. The
property was insured with replacement cost coverage for the building and contents while the
loaders and truck stored inside were covered at current value. The projected insurance recovery
for the fire loss is $1,990,889. The carrying value of the building, contents and equipment is
$1,344,599 and the fire related expenses covered by insurance for 2012 were $38,081. The
insurance recovery in excess of carrying value and fire related expenses results in a gain of
$608,209. An architect has been contracted with to develop the bid specifications for the
replacement of the building and baler anticipated for fall of 2013. The loaders have been
replaced along with some of the tools and equipment with the balance anticipated after the
building is completed.

Note 13 — Prior Period Adjustment

In previous years bond issuance costs were deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds.
In 2012 the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board statement 65 requiring
these costs to be recognized in the period the loan was originated. A prior period adjustment was
reported on the financial statements to recognize the effect of the removal of the unamortized
bond issuance costs. The prior period adjustment decreased the beginning balance of the net

nnsmr\n of {-ho anvernmental activities by Q'H\R 718 ond docroaced the heaginninog halance net
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position in the business type activities by $134 550 in the electric fund and $8,663 in the golf
course fund totaling $143,213.

Note 14 — Commitments

The Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development Company conducted a capital
campaign titled Vermillion NOW! with a goal to raise $1.5 million over five years for economic
development in the community. The Vermillion City Council pledged to match private sector
commitments at the rate of fifty cents per dollar raised until August 1, 2009 with a maximum
contribution over a five year period of $450,000. Vermillion NOW! exceeded its goal with
commitments of over $1.6 million. During 2009 the city paid $20,000 of this pledge, $30,000 in
2010,$38,713in 2011 and $65,947 in 2012 and has budgeted $50,000 in the 2013 budget.

In December 2008 the University of South Dakota and the City of Vermillion entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding whereby the University will construct a wellness facility and the
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city will contribute $340,000. The contributions will be from the second penny sales tax fund of
$68,000 per year for five years starting in the fourth quarter of 2010. Payments have been made
in 2010, 2611 and 2012 and the fourth payment was included in the 2013 budget. The City Parks
& Recreation Department will be able to use the facility to conduct programs and residents can
purchase memberships to access the facility.

Note 15 - Contingency

The City receives significant financial assistance from the U.S. government. Entitlement to the
resources is generally based on compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of the resources for eligible
purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors.
Any disallowances as a result of these audits become a liability of the fund that receives the
grant. As of December 31, 2012, the City estimates that no material liabilities will result from
such audits.

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

On March 30, 2012 the South Dakota Board of Water and Natural Resources approved a
$1,639,000 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan and a $522,210 Regional Landfill Assistance
grant for the construction of landfill cell 5, a leachate collection system and pond at the landfill.
The resolution approving the State Revolving Loan has not been adopted by the City Council at
this time pending resolution of the landfill permit amendment to allow for a vertical expansion of
the existing cells that will increase the existing landfili cell life postponing the need to construct
cell 5 and the related leachate collection system and pond. The leachate collection system and
pond is anticipated to be bid in June 2013 and the cell 5 late 2013 or early 2014.

On January 17, 2013 the City refunded and defeased its outstanding 2005 Wastewater System
Revenue Bond, Series 2005 of $2,481,847 carrying an interest rate of 3.25 percent, with a new
bond Series 2013, of $2,550,00 at an average coupon on 2.03 percent due July 1, 2026. The
transaction resulted in the present value savings of $140,316.

On March 25, 2011 the South Dakota Board of Water and Natural Resources approved a
Drinking Water State Revoiving Loan in the amount of $1,532,000 for construction of a new water
tower with $153,200 of principal forgiveness. The City Council adepted the reselution approving
the State Revolving Loan on March 19, 2012 and hired an engineering firm to complete the plans
for the new water tower. A contract was approved on August 8, 2012 with Maguire lron, Inc for
$1,258,700 for construction of the 500,000 galion water tower to be completed in 2014. The first
payment to the contractor and the first drawdown on the SRF loan were made in January 2013.
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EXHIBIT 8
CITY OF VERMILLION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Variance
Amended Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Favorable
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) {Unfavorable)
Revenue:
Taxes:
General property taxes $ 1,713,040 3 1,708,228 $ 1,721,715 & 13,487
General sales & use taxes 1,576,000 1,528,500 1,622,677 (5,823}
Penalties & interest on
delinquent taxes 4,000 4,000 2,787 (1,213)
Licenses & permits 240,200 232,625 230,088 (2,457)
intergovernmental revenue 633,179 440,250 418,158 (22,094)
Charges for goods & services 496,700 447,665 376,651 (71,014)
Fines & forfeits 44,050 41,050 33,496 {7,554)
Special assessments - 110 80 (30)
Investment eamings 29,000 22,700 22,322 {378)
Rentals 13,850 15,207 15,207 -
Contributions & donations
from private sources - 30,585 29,209 (1,376)
Other 58,100 60,625 42370 (18,255)
Total revenue 4,808,119 4,531,445 4,414,738 (116,707)
Expenditures:
General government:
Exeacutive 506,227 505,544 468,226 37,318
Financial administration 158,855 158,057 157,249 1,808
Other 513,311 519,582 489,459 30,123
Total general government - 1,178,393 1,184,183 1,114,834 69,249
Public safety:
Police 2,102,105 1,605,093 1,503,900 101,193
Fire 178,077 182,544 155,615 36,929
Other protection 3,100 3,100 1,317 1,783
Total public safety 2,283,282 1,800,737 1,660,832 139,905
Public works:
Highways & streets 775,489 751,630 641,662 109,968
Sanitation 105,534 105,187 100,197 4,990
Airport 124,297 68,697 62,068 5,629
Total public works 1,005,320 925,514 803,927 121,587
Health and welfare:
Health 187,283 187,966 155,172 32,794
Ambulance 266,947 300,288 289,815 10,473
Total health and weifare 454,230 488,254 444 887 43,267
Culture-recreation:
Recreation 290,103 288,852 244,114 44,738
Parks 285,328 300,811 270,408 30,403
Libraries 527,602 530,933 512,798 18,135
AFinory 56,708 56,708 51,457 5,251
Total culture-recreation 1,159,741 1,177,304 1,078,777 98,527
Conservation and development: 47,500 81,000 66,208 14,702
Total expenditures 6,128,466 5,656,992 5,168,755 487,237
Debt Service
Principal - 1,800 1,570 230
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 1,142,212 1,140,536 1,140,536 -
Operating Transfers Out - {241,703) {225,817) 15,788
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,142,212 898,833 814,619 15,786
Net change in fund balances (178,135) {228,514) 158,032 386,546
Fund balance - beginning 2,710,714 2,710,714 2,710,714 -
Change in inventory - - (740} . (740)
Fund balance - ending $ 2,532,579 § 2,482,200 § 2,868,006 $ 385,806
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EXHIBIT 9
CITY OF VERMILLION
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SALES TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Favorable
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes:
General sales & use taxes $ 1558560 $ 1,527,500 $ 1,622,097 $ (5,403)
Miscellaneous revenue:
Interest earned 24,000 19,250 19,237 ) {(13)
Total revenue 1,682 560 1,546,750 1,641,334 {5,416)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General 26,500 47,500 43,089 3,511
Public safety 29,300 30,100 18,843 11,257
Public works 101,700 81,950 55,672 26,278
Conservation & development 118,000 248,000 133,947 114,053
Culture-recreation 190,000 150,500 112,438 38,062
Total expenditures 465,500 558,050 364,889 193,161
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 25,000 25,640 25,640 -
Transfers out (2,426,608) (1,998,247) (1,501,562) 496,685
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,401,608) (1,972,607) {1,475,922) 496,685
Net change in fund balance (1,284,548) (983,907) (299,477} 684,430
Fund balance - beginning 2,398,647 2,398,647 2,398,647 -
Fund balance - ending $ 1114089 $ 1414740 § 2009170 % 684,430
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Exhibit 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-BUDGETARY REPORTING
DECEMBER 31, 2012

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. At the first regular board meeting in September of each year or within ten days
thereafter, the governing board introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for
the ensuing fiscal year.

2. After adoption by the governing board, the operating budget of the general fund,
the special revenue funds, and the capital projects fund is legally binding and
actual expenditures for each purpose cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except
as indicated in number 4.

3. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line
item may not exceed 5 percent of the total municipal budget and may be
transferred by resolution of the governing board to any other budget category that
is deemed insufficient during the year.

4. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted,
state statute allows the adoption of supplemental budget. In September 2012 the
City Council adopted a supplemental appropriation ordinance that included
reductions in the previously budgeted amounts as a result of changes since the
budget was adopted in September 2011. The following supplemental budgets
were adopted by the governing board during the year.

General Fund

Expenditures:
General Government $ 5,790
Public Safety (482,545)
Public Works (79,808)
Health and Welfare 34,024
Culture-Recreation 17,563
Conservation & Development 33,500
Debt Service 1,800
Transfers Out 241,703

Special Revenue Fund

Sales Tax Fund
Expenditures:
General Government $ 21,000
Public Safety 800
Public Works (19,750)
Economic Development 130,000
Culture-Recreation (39,500)
Transfers Out (428,361)
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CITY OF VERMILLION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-BUDGETARY REPORTING
DECEMBER 31, 2012

5. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. The procedure used by the city is
to adopt a supplemental appropriation ordinance during the following year by the
council to provide additional funds for certain purchase commitments outstanding
at year-end. Any transfers of budgeted amounts between departments of the
General fund, transfers between other funds, and any revision that alter the total
expenditure of any department or fund must be approved by the City Council.
This is the legal level of control.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for the General, Capital Projects and Special Revenue funds.

Formal budgetary integration is not employed for Debt Service funds because
effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through general obligation
bond indenture provisions. :

7. Budgets for the General, Capital Projects and Special Revenue funds are adopted
on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Encumbrances-Encumbrances carry over from one year to the next unless
canceled by the City. These encumbrances are charged against the new year’s
budget until a supplemental appropriation ordinance is adopted as described in #5
above.

8. GAAP/Budgetary Accounting Basis Differences-The financial statements
prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP present capital outlay expenditure
information in a separate category of expenditures. Under the budgetary basis of
accounting, capital outlay expenditures are reported within the function to which
they are related. ’
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CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from special tax levies
and other earmarked revenue sources. These funds are utilized to finance allowable functions, which may be for either
capital outlays or current expenditures, or both.

The following funds included in this fund type and their purposes are as follows:
Major Funds:

Sales Tax Fund - Any revenue received in excess of the amount received if the rate of tax is one percent (1%) may
be used only for capital improvement, land acquisition, the funding of public ambulances and medical emergency response
vehicles, nonprofit hospitals with fifty or fewer licensed beds, and other public care facilities or nonprofit health care
facilities with fifty or fewer licensed beds, the transfer to the special 911 fund authorized by SDCL § 34-45-12, the
purchasing of fire fighting vehicles and equipment, debt retirement, major building repair projects, capital project planning,
feasibility studies, and the minor rehabilitation, major rehabilitation, or reconstruction of streets. (Reported in Exhibit 3 and
Exhibit 4)

Non-Major Funds:

Liguor, Lodging and Dining Tax - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the additional
one percent {1%) city sales tax on lodgings, alcoholic beverages, prepared food and admissions. All revenues received from
the collection of the tax are used only for the purpose of land acquisition, architectural fees, construction costs, payment for
civic center, anditorium or athletic facility buildings, including the maintenance, staffing and operation of such facilities and
the promotion and advertising of the city, its facilities, attractions and activities.

911 Fund — This special revenue fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures for the operation of the
Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) as required by the South Dakota 911 Coordination Board. Clay County and the City
of Vermillion created the Clay Area Emergency Services Communications Center through an Intergovernmental Agreement
in 1994 to consolidate public safety communications. The operations were previously reported in the General Fund until the
creation of the special revenue fund in 2012. Clay County and the City of Vermillion share the costs of operating the
emergency communications center as outlined in the Intergovernmental Agreement.

Stormwater Fee Fund - This fund was established during the 1993 budget process as a funding source for new
Stormwater construction and maintenance of the existing Stormwater system. The fee is charged to every parcel of property
based upon the area and the use. The fee is collected by the county treasurer with the property taxes and remitted to the city
with the tax receipts.
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Parks Capital Fund - This fund is used to accou

in the City's parks.

Library Fund - This fund is used to account for fines, gift moneys and interest received by the library and is
expended at the direction of the Library Board.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - Capital Projects Funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

The following funds included in this fund type and their purposes are as follows:
Major Funds:

Library Renovation — This fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements of monies used for the
expansion and renovation of the library. A major gift was received during 2011 and with the award of a $200,000
Community Development Block Grant, City Council commitment of $1,400,000 of second penny sales tax, the Library
Board and Library Foundation donations the project bid was awarded in February, 2012, The project compiet;on 1s scheduled
for April 2013. (Reported in Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 4)




Stanford Street Fund — This fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursement for the reconstruction of
Stanford Street from Main Street to Cherry Street. This street is on the city’s State Transportation Improvement Program
with the bidding and construction under the oversight of the SD Department of Transportation. The funding is from the state
allotment of highway funds, second penny sales tax and special assessment. The water and wastewater utility systems were
improved as part of the project that were funded from the respective utility funds. (Reported in Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 4)

Non-Major Funds:

Special Assessment Project Funds - This fund is used to account for receipt and disbursements of monies used for
the construction of capital improvements, which are to be assessed to property owners. The projects are financed by the sale
of special assessment bonds reported as a transfer in from the debt service fund and payments received from the property
OWners.

Streetscape Fund - This fund is used to account for private contributions, federal grant proceeds and expenditures
for the implementation of the downtown streetscape plan.

Bike Path Fund - This fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements of monies used for the
construction of bike paths with the use of the federal matching funds. Construction was completed along the south side of
HWY 50 during 2012. Engineering and easement acquisition for bike path extension long the east side of HWY 19 between
Cherry and HWY 50 continue and the project is anticipated to be bid and constructed in 2013,

Airport Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts and disbursements of monies from federal, state and local
matching for taxiway and fuel system at Harold Davidson Field.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS: Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general Iong-term
obligation bond principal and interest ﬁom governmental resources.

The following funds included in this fund type and their purposes are as follows:
Non-Major Funds:

Special Assessment Bonds - This fund accounts for the accumulation of monies for payment of special assessment
bonds. The collection of the special assessments levied against the properties benefiting from the improvements from 2001
through 2010 is recorded in this fund. As the special assessment bonds were purchased by the electric utility the current
portion of the inter fund loan is reported as”Due to other funds” and the long term portion is reported as “Advance from other
funds”. The principal payment for the inter fund loan reduces the liability and the interest is reported as a fund expenditure.
The transfer out is the 8% fiscal fee for engineering services transferred to the general fund. No bonds were issued during
2012. The deficit fund balance is for sidewalk improvements and Stanford Street improvements completed in late 2012 and
with the adoption of the resolution of necessity adopted in February, 2013 for the sidewalks.

TiF District No 3 Bonds - This fund accounts for the accumulation of monies for payment of tax incremenial
financing bonds principal and interest and funds advanced from the electric utility. The final payment on this bond is July 1,
2011 with City Council action to repay the advances made by the electric utility in prior years to meet the bond payments.
Based upon current tax collections the $108,394 advance will be repaid in 2013.

TIF District No 4 Bonds - This fund accounts for the accumulation of monies for payment of tax incremental
financing bonds principal and interest. The tax incremental financing bonds were issued June 1, 2005 with the bond reserve
and capitalized interest being recorded in this fund. The final payment on this bond is scheduled for December 1, 2020.

City Hall Bonds - This fund accounts for the reserve and the accumulation of monies for payment of the principal
and interest on the certificates of participation in a lease-purchase agreement issued to build the new city hall. The certificates
of participation were issued September 15, 2007 with the reserve and capitalized interest being recorded in this fund. The city
has pledged sales tax revenues for the principal and interest payments through December 15, 2026.



CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Liquor Special
Lodging, Starmwater Parks Assessment
Dining Tax 911 Fee Capital Library Total Projects. Streetscape
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 26,485 § - % 15,118 & 10882 § 21,387 73,983 § - 8 364
investments 100,000 - 800,000 - - 900,000 - -
Receivables {net, where applicable, of
allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounts receivable - - 5671 - - 5,671 - -
Special assessment receivable - - - B - - - -
interest receivable 141 - 1,796 - - 1,837 - -
Due from other govemments 53,877 53,821 559 - - 108,257 - -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - - -
Investiments - - - - - - - -
Interest receivable - - - - - - - -
Total assets $ 180,503 & 53821 § 823,145 & 10982 & 21,397 1,089,848 & - § 364
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 8,286 & -8 -8 - 8296 $ 97,409 $ -
Due fo other funds - 45,525 - - - 45525 22,205 -
Revenue collected in advance - - - 2,727 - 2,727 - -
Advancs from other funds - - - - - - - -
Total liabilities - 53,821 - 2,727 - 56,548 119,614 -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-sales tax
and interest 13,880 - 1,796 - - 16,676 - -
Unavailable revenue-special
assessments and interest - - - - - - - -
Tota deferred inflows of resources 13,880 - 1,796 - - 15,676 - -
FUND BALANCES:
Rastricted 166,623 - 821,349 - 21,367 1,008,369 - -
Committed - - - - - - - 364
Assigned - - - 8,255 - 8,255 - -
Unassigned - - - - - - (118,614) -
Total fund balances 166,623 - 821,349 8,255 21,397 1,017,624 (119,614) 384
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 180,503 % 63821 & 823145 & 10,982 & 21397 1,080,848 $ - % 364
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EXHIBIT A-1

Capitat Project Funds Debt Service Funds Total
Special TIF District TiF District City Nonmajor
Bike Assessment No. 3 No. 4 Hall Governmentat
Path Alport Total Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Total Funds
$ - % -8 364 8 -8 - % -8 - -8 74,347
- - - - - - - - 900,000
- - - - - 24 - 24 5,695
- - - 228,118 - - - 228,118 228,118
- - - 7,965 - - - 7,965 8,902
111,454 268,650 380,104 - - - - - 488,381
- - - 38,970 - 271,211 - 311,181 311,181
- - B 250,000 - - 365,426 615,426 615426
- - - 351 - - 4,497 4,848 4848
111,454 268,650 $ 380,468 § 526,404 $ - § 271235 § 369,923 1,167,562 § 2,637,878
- 66,660 $ 164,069 $ -8 -8 -8 - - $ 172,365
101,869 201,890 326,064 62,727 108,384 - - 171429 542,710
9,585 - 9,585 - - - - - 12,312
. : - - 197,143 - - - 197,143 197,143
111,454 268,650 499,718 258,870 108,394 ~ - 368,264 924,630
- - - - - - 4,497 4,497 20,173
- - - 219,307 - - - 218,307 218,307
- - - 219,307 - - 4,497 223,804 233,480
- - - 47,227 - 271,235 365,428 683,888 1,693,257
- - 364 - - - - - 364
- - - - - - - - 8,255
- - {119,614) - (108,394) - - (108,394) (228,008)
- B (119,250) 47,227 (108,394) 271,235 365,426 575,494 1,473,868
$ 111,454 $ 268,650 § 380,468 § 526,404 $ - § 271235 & 369923 1,167,562 & 2,637,878
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CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Speciat Revenue Funds Capitai Project Funds
Liquor Special
Lodging, Stormwater Parks Assessment
Dining Tax 911 Fee Capital Library Total Projects Streetscape
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property taxes $ - 8 - § - 3 - % - $ - 8 - 3 -
General sales & use 298,761 - - - - 298,761 - -
Stormwater fees - - 175,585 - - 175,585 - -
Penalties & interest - - 248 - - 248 - -
Intergovemmental:
Federal grant - - - - - - - -
State grant - - - - - - - -
County shared revenue - 225,916 - - 3,000 228,816 - -
Charges for gocds & services
Culture & recreation - - - 3,721 - 3,721 - -
Fines & forfeits:
Library - - - - 2,048 2,048 - -
Miscelianeous: =~
Public payments for improvements - - - - - - 10,408 -
interest eamed 487 7,031 23 920 8,461 - -
Contributions & donations
from private sources - - 10,000 19,902 4,144 34,046 - -
Special assessments
(principal & interest} - - - - - - - -
Other - - . - -~ 4,024 4,024 - ~
Total revenue 289,248 225,916 192,864 23,646 14,136 755,810 10,408 -
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety - 449,148 - - - 449,148 - -
Public works - - 26,368 - - 26,369 30,474
Culture-recreation - - - 4,863 6,285 11,158 - -
Conservation & development 288,580 - - - - 298,580 - -
Capital outlay:
Public safety - 2,685 - - - 2,685 - -
Public works - - - - - - 896,674 -
Culture & recreation - - - 7,232 - 7,232 - -
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - - - -
Interest & fiscal charges - - - - - - - -
Totat expenditures 298,580 451,833 26,368 12,095 6,205 795,172 127,148 -
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures 668 {225,917) 166,495 11,551 7,841 {39,362) {118,740} -
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES(USES)
Transfer in - 225917 - - - 225,917 15,862 -
Transfer out - - - {25,640} {82,092} (117,732) {2,874) -
Total other financing
sources{uses) - 225917 - {25,640} {82,092 108,185 12,988 -
Net change in fund balances 668 - 166,495 {14,089} {84,251) 68,823 {103,752) -
Fund balances{deficits} - beginning 165,855 - 654,854 22,344 105,648 843,801 {15,862} 364
Fund balances{deficits) - ending 3 166,623 § - $ 821,348 & 8,255 & 21387 $ 1017624 $ {118,614) & 364
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Capital Project Funds

Debt Service Fupds

EXHIBIT A-2

Special TIF District ~ TiF Distiiet City Total
Bike Assessment No. 3 No. 4 Hall Nonmajor
Path Alrport Total Bonds Bonds. Bonds Bonds Total Funds
- % - & - % - $ 137880 3 116556 § - 254,438 $ 254,436
- - - - - - - - 208,761
. - . - - - - - 175,585
- - - - - - - - 248
142,764 420,499 563,263 - - - - - 563,263
- 35,000 35,008 - - - - - 35,009
- - - - - - - - 228,918
- - - - - - - - 3,721
- - . - - - - - 2,048
- - 10,408 - - - - - 10,408
- - - 3,554 143 78 1,444 5,219 13,680
- - - - - - - - 34,048
- - - 167,872 - - - 157,872 157,872
- - - - - - - - 4,024
142,784 455,508 608,680 161,426 138,023 116,634 1,444 417,527 1,782,017
- - - - - - - - 449,148
- - 30,474 - - - - - 56,843
- - - - - - - - 11,158
- - - - - - - - 298,580
- - - - . - - - 2,685
- 464,804 561,478 - - - - - 561,478
174,209 - 174,208 - - - - - 181,441
- - - - - 35,000 190,000 225,000 225,000
- - - 23,225 - 17,075 161,854 202,154 202,154
174,209 464,804 768,161 23,225 - 52,075 351,854 427,154 1,988,487
(31,445) (9,296) {157,481) 138,201 138,023 64,550 (350,410) (8,627} {206,470}
31,445 8,475 53,782 - - - 338,479 338,479 618,178
- - (2,874) (15,862) - - - (15,862} (136,468}
31,445 B,475 50,808 {15,862} - - 338,479 322,617 481,710
- {2,821) {106,573} 122,339 138,023 64,559 (11,931} 312,880 275,240
- 2,821 (12,677} {75,112) (246,417) 206,676 377,357 262,504 1,198,628
- - 8 {119.250) $ 47227 $ {108394) & 271,235 575494 $ 1,473,868

$ 365426 %
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REVENUES
Taxes:
General sales & use
Stormwater fees
Penalties & interest
Intergovernmental :
Federal Grant
County shared revenue
Charges for goods & services
Culture & recreation
Fines & forfeits:
Library
Miscellaneous:
Grants
Interest earned
Contributions & donations
from private sources
Other
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Public works
Cuilture-recreation
Conservation & development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under} expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$

CITY OF VERMILLION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

76

Liquor, Lodging, Dining Tax 911
Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable) Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable)
310,800 298,761 % (12,039) § - % - -
- - - 241,703 225,916 (15,787)
500 487 . (13) - - -
311,300 289,248 (12,052} 241,703 225,916 (15,787)
- - - 483,406 451,833 31,573
298,400 298,580 820 - - -
299,400 298,580 820 483,406 451,833 31,573
11,900 668 (11,232) (241,703) (225,917) 15,786
241,703 225,817 (15,786)
- - - 241,703 225,917 (15,786)
11,800 668 (11,232) - - -
165,955 -
166,623 $ -



EXHIBIT A-3
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Stormwater Fee Parks Capital Library .
Variance Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final ' Favorable Final Favorable

Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable} Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable) Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable)
- - $ -3 -3 - $ -3 - - % -
173,980 175,585 1,585 - - - - - -
100 248 148 - - - - - -

- - - - - - 3,000 3,000 -

- - - 9,000 3,721 (5.279) - - -
- - - - - - 3,100 2,048 (1.052)

10,000 10,000 - - - - . - - -
7.041 7,031 (10) 40 23 (17) 1,000 920 (80)

- - - 17,000 19,902 2,902 3,000 4,144 1,144

- - - - - - 2,500 4,024 1,624

191,131 192,864 1,733 26,040 23,646 (2,3%4) 12,600 14,136 1,536

105,000 26,369 78,631 - . - - - - -

- - - 13,260 12,095 1,165 12,600 6,285 6,305

105,000 26,369 78,631 13,260 12,095 1,165 12,600 6,285 6,305

86,131 166,495 80,364 12,780 11,551 (1,229) - 7,841 7.841

- - - (25,640) (25,640} - (90,268) (92,092) 1,824

- - - (25,840) (25,640) - (50,268) (92,092) 1,824

86,131 166,495 80,364 12,780 (14,089) {1,229) (90,268) (84,251} 7,841

654,854 22,344 105,648
821,349 $ 8,255 21,397



REVENUES
Intergovernmental -
Federal grant
State grant
Miscellaneous:
Public payments for improvements
interest
Contributions and donations
from private sources
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Cumrent
Public works
Culture & recreation
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES(USES)
Transfer in
Transfer out
Total other financing
sources{uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances{deficits) - beginning

Fund balances(deficits) - ending

CITY OF VERMILLION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
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Special Assessments Streetscape Bike Path
Variance Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable) Budgeted Actual (Unfavorable) Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable}
- 3 - 3 - 8 - 8§ - - 339,000 142,764 § (196,236)
B _ N . . - 1,150 - {(1,150)
9,407 10,408 1,001 - - - - . .
8,407 10,408 1,001 - - - 340,150 142,764 {197,386)
210,000 127,148 82,852 364 - 3684 - - .
- - - - - - 419,300 174,208 245,091
210,000 127,148 82,852 364 - 364 419,300 174,209 245,091
{200,593) (116,740} 83,853 (364) - 364 (79,150) (31,445) 47,705
236,128 15,862 (220,267} - - - 79,150 31,445 (47,705)
(2,874) (2,874) - - - . . B X
233,255 12,988 {220,267) - - - 73,150 31,445 {47,705}
32,662 (103,752) (136,414) {364) - 364 - - -
{15,862) 364 -
$ _{119.614) $ 364 -



EXHIBIT A-4

Stanford Street Library Renovation Ajrport
Variance Variance Variance
Final Favorable Finat Favorable Final Favorable
Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable) Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable) Budgeted Actual {Unfavorable)
- 8 - 8 - 200,000 § 200,000 § - 8 614,961 § 420,499 § (194,482)
1,018,000 984,482 {33,518) - - - 23,017 35,008 11,892
- - - 1,850 2,350 500 - - -
- - - 150,000 150,000 - - - -
1,018,000 984,482 (33,518) 351,850 352,350 500 638,008 455,508 {182,500)
1,198,000 1,159,528 38,472 - - - 684,076 464,804 219,272
- - - 2,285,282 2,189,139 96,143 - - -
1,198,000 1,159,528 38,472 2,285282 2,189,139 96,143 684,076 464,804 218,272
{180,000) (175,046) 4,954 (1,933,432} {1,836,789) 96,643 {46,068) {9,298) 36,772
180,000 175,046 {4,954) 1,237,217 841,959 {395,258) 46,068 6,475 (39,583)
180,000 175,046 {4,954) 1,237,217 841,959 {395,258} 46,068 6,475 (38,593)
- - - {696,215) (994,830) {298,615) - (2.821) (2,821}
- 696,215 2,821
$ - $ {298,615) $ -
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CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING STATEMENTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS - Internal Service Funds are established to account for the financing of
goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the governmental unit, or to other
governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The following funds included in this fund type and their purposes are as follows:

Copier-Fax-Postage Fund - The copier-fax fund is used to account for all the operating cost and
replacement of the central copier and fax machine in city hall. All departments are billed for copies,
postage and faxes used at a cost plus depreciation

Unemployment Insurance Fund — This fund has been established to account for the City self-
insurance for unemployment insurance claims. :

Equipment Replacement Fund - The equipment replacement fund is used to account for rental
of equipment used by all City departments and to provide the means to purchase replacement equipment
when needed. All the major items of the city’s rolling stock are contained in this fund. Each department
on a quarterly basis pays the rental amounts.

Custodial Services Fund — The custodial services fund is used to account for the costs
associated with providing janitorial services for all City buildings.




ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash
Investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Total current assets
Capital assets:
Machinery & equipment
less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued leave payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued leave payable
Total non current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

CITY OF VERMILLION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2012

EXHIBIT B-1

Copier-
Fax- Unemployment Equipment Custodial
Postage Insurance Replacement Services Totals

$ 14,210 § 723§ 17,616 $ 8,770 $ 39,319
- 12,000 518,000 - 530,000

2,335 - - - 2,335

- 31 1,111 - 1,142

16,545 12,754 536,727 6,770 572,796
12,797 - 4,572,642 2,316 4,587,755
(11,197) - (2,195,390) (1,101 (2,207,688)
1,600 - 2,377,252 1,215 2,380,067
18,145 12,754 2,913,979 7.985 2,952,863
680 435 - 883 1,098

- - - 2,537 2,537

880 435 - 3,420 4,535

- - - 3,683 3,683

- - - 3,683 3,683

680 435 - 7,103 8,218
1,600 - 2,377,252 1,215 2,380,067
15,865 12,319 536,727 (333) 564,578

$ 17,4656 § 12,318 ' $ 2913979 $ 882 $ 2,944,645
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EXHIBIT B-2
CITY OF VERMILLION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Copier-
Fax- Unempioyment Equipment Custodial
Postage Insurance Replacement Services Totals
Operating Revenues:
Charges for goods and services $ 17,438 % - § 359,564 § 72,000 $ 443,002
Total operating revenue 17,438 - 359,564 72,000 448,002
Operating expenses:

Personnel services - - - 73,310 73,310
Other current expenses 16,797 435 - 1,718 18,950
Depreciation 3,199 - 303,379 179 306,757

Total operating expenses 19,896 435 303,379 75,207 399,017

operating income(loss) (2,558) ) {435) 56,185 (3,207) 49,985
Nonoperating revenue:
Interest earned - 90 2,426 - 2,516
Gain(loss) on disposition of assets - - 11,274 - 11,274
Total nonoperating revenue - 90 13,700 - 13,790
income before contributions and transfers (2,558) {345) 69,885 (3,207) 63,775
Transfer in - - 1,174 - 1,174
Transfer Out - - {7,000} - (7,000)
Change in net position (2,558) (345) 64,059 {3,207) 57,949
Net position - beginning 20,023 12,664 2,849,920 4,089 2,886,696
Net position - ending 3 17,465 $ 12,319 $ 2,913,878 § 882 § 2044845
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EXHIBIT B-3
CITY OF VERMILLION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Copier-
Fax- Unemployment Equipment Custodial
Postage Insurance Replacement Services Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 17,442 % - § 359,564 72,000 3 449,006
Cash paid for personal services - - - (72,141) (72,141)
Cash paid to suppliers {16,458) {652) - (1,954) {18,0864)
Net cash provided {used for) operating activities 984 (652) 359,564 (2,085) 357,801
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - - (125,636) - {125,636)
Proceeds from sale of assets - - 21,161 - 21,181
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities - - (104,475) - {104,475)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers Cut - - {7,000) - (7,000}
Net cash (used for} non-capttal financing activities - - (7,000) - {7,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments - 111 2,430 - 2,541
Purchase and sale of investments - 1,600 (241,000} - {240,000)
Net cash provided (used for) investing activities - 1,111 (238,570) - (237,459)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis 984 459 9,519 (2,095} 8,867
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 13,226 264 8,097 8,865 30,452
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 14,210 $ 723 % 17,8616 6,770 39,319
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) (2,558) $ (435) & 56,185 (3,207} 49,885
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 3,199 - 303,379 178 308,757
(Increase) decrease in assets and increase (decrease)
in habilities:
Accounts receivable 4 - - - 4
Accounts payable 339 (217) - (236) (114)
Accrued leave payable - - - 1,169 1,169
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 984 $ (652) $ 359,564 (2,095} 357,801
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Transfer in of capital assets - - 1,174 - 1,174
Gain(loss) on disposal of fixed assets - - 11,274 - 11,274
Total noncash investing, capital and financing activities - 3% - % 12,448 - 12,448
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CITY OF VERMILLION
STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Vermillion’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial

health.
Contents:
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the government’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-
ment’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda-
bility of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the gov-
ernment’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government’s finan-
cial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the government’s financial report re-
lates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Pages

87-92

93-97

98-104

105-106

107-109

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the formation in these schedules is derived for the comprehensive annual reports for the

relevant year.



Governmental Activities
Net investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
BBB
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Additional 1% Sales Tax
Library-
Stormwater
Cumulative Reserve
Unrestricted
Total Govemmental Activities
Net Position

Business-Type Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assels
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Landfill Closure Postclosure
Urrestricted
Total Business-Type Activities
Net Position

Primary Government
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
BBB
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Additional 1% Sales Tax
Library
Stormwater
Landfilt Closure Postclosure
Cumulative Reserve
Unrestricted
Total Primary Government
Net Position

1Acccunting standards require that net position be reported in three components in the financial statements:

$

CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENT-WIDE NET POSITION BY COMPONENT'

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 1

2003 2004 2006 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

11,867,339 § 13,818,734  § 15,224,263 16,197,173 8 16,775,209 $ 17,468,499 § . 22,167991 § 23,357,651 % 23217945 3 26,379,227

89,623 47,533 24,759 36,499 129,654 154,418 125,799 144,278 175,308 180,503

- - - - 3,531,936 - - - - -

866,967 694,016 711,658 1,056,138 1,376,496 1,679,918 1,600,924 940,546 595,352 899,886

1,125,180 - . . - . . - . .

- - - - - - - - 106,132 21,397

47,261 127,235 84,162 180.487 272,825 249,860 366,220 490,302 659,022 823,145

- - : - - 158,060 158,060 168,060 158,060 158,080 158,060

965,163 1,362,583 2,129,784 4,072,094 992,869 5,136,891 4,116,964 4,255,896 6,796,886 4,587 553

14,9561523 $ 16,040,901 § 18,174,626 21,542391 % 23,237,049 24847646 & 28535958 § 29,346,833 $ 30,708,705 $ 33,049,771

12,679,381 $ 13,144,108 § 15,108,493 16,738,269 § 17,189,168 17,817,417  § 19,705,308 § 20,882,426 3 21411403 § 22,036,403

995,783 419,593 779,022 810,174 838,309 834,790 1,444,260 1,521,831 1,644,613 1,615,809

158,984 178,828 214,281 224,505 230,238 214,880 210,879 207,915 196,362 186,161

4,620,319 5,268,568 5,284,611 5,681,029 7,053,543 7,996,485 8,006,051 8,808,530 9,616,384 10,929,279

18,454,467 % 19,001,098 $ 21,386,307 23453977 § 25,311,258 26863572 % 29366499 § 31420702 $ 32,767,762 $ 34,667,652

24,546,720 $ 26,962,842 § 30,332,756 32935442 % 33,964,377 35285916 $ 41873300 § 44,240,077 3 44,629,348 § 48,415,630

89,623 47,533 24,759 36,499 129.654 154,418 125,799 144,278 175,308 180,503

- - - - 3,531,936 - - - - -

1,862,750 1,113,609 1,490,680 1,866,312 2,214,805 2,514,708 3,045,184 2,462,377 2,139,965 2,415,695

1,125,180 - - “ . - . “ . .

. . . . . - . - 106,132 21,397

47,261 127,235 84,162 180,487 272,825 249,860 366,220 490,302 659,022 823,145

158,984 178,829 214,281 224,505 230,238 214,880 210,879 207,915 196,362 186,161

- - - - 168,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060

5,575,472 6,611,151 7,414,295 9,763,123 8,046,412 13,133,376 12,123,015 13,064,526 15,412,270 15,616,832
33405990 % 35041,199 % 39,560,933 44,996,368 § 48,6548307 $ 51,711,218 $ 57,902,457 $ 60,767,535 % 63,476,467 $ 67,717,423 °

net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Net assets are considered restricted
only when (1) an extemal party, such as the State of South Dakota or the federal government, places a restriction on how
the resources may be used, or (2) enabling legislation is enacted by the City.
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Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Conservation & Development
Interest on Long-term debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses
Business-Type Activities:
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Liquor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfill
Curbside Recycling
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Govemment Expenses
Program Revenues
Govemnmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capitai Grants & Contributions

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Liquor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfilt
Curbside Recycling
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues
Total Primary Govemnment Program Revenues

Net{Expense)/Revenue’
Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government Net Revenues (Expenses)

8

$

TABLE 2

CITY OF VERMILLION
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

906,806 $ 928,314 $ 978,770 $ 1,004,096 $ 1,038,217 & 1,097,670 $ 1,185,168 § 1,336,341 § 1324803 § 1,325,411
1,495,636 1,582,090 1,604,653 1,661,678 1,748,482 1,923,413 2,026,733 2,118,547 2,028,921 2,211,445
962,223 999,893 1,205,512 1,237,318 1,353,987 1,602,031 1,561,217 1,656,337 1,714,248 1,630,835
331,500 338,169 343,780 365,189 374,133 402,620 415,740 412,408 424,263 443,581
869,835 929,704 977,583 978,573 1,006,229 1,171,859 1,203,636 1,177,757 1,161,245 1,146,227
219,607 680,161 546,219 254,220 786,823 732,787 708,482 368,202 397,229 498,825
140,517 142,663 91,455 134,858 181,374 298,297 301,118 272,722 241,902 202,154
4,926,124 5,600,994 5,747,972 5,635,932 6,489,245 7,228,677 7,402,094 7,342,315 7,292,611 7.458,478
2,280,813 2,526,674 2,825,936 2,982,411 3,405,570 3,639,287 4,025,288 4,661,735 4,995,547 5,051,041
876,409 1,016,709 1,010,703 1,057,672 1,171,661 1,264,548 1,336,150 1,342,632 1,389,184 1,435,808
953,118 1,010,170 1,069,647 1,049,072 1,305,808 1,284,315 1,336,169 1,345,183 1,606,314 1,694,154
628,164 671,465 755,798 818,302 917,741 1,003,575 1,000,796 1,017,680 1,018,600 1,043,401
975,027 914,987 1,109,776 1,047,729 902,370 897,527 840,409 834,736 841,741 838,399
737,505 743,960 792,584 839,151 927,407 1,220,527 1,022,888 1,288,114 1,273,463 1,242,491

- - - - - - 33,407 98,197 93,047 99 467
6,451,026 6,882,965 7,564,443 7,794,337 8,630,557 9,209,779 9,595,107 10,588,247 11,216,896 11,404,761
11377150 8 12,483950 % 13,312,415 § 13,430,269 § 15,119,802 § 16,438456 § 16,997,201 § 17,930,562 % 18,609,507 § 18,863,239
146,269 § 139,638 § 137,785 § 158,477 $ 197,706 $ 291,204 3 249372 % 294,330 §$ 260,385 $ 211,495
29,954 35,747 37,253 35,933 32,973 43,680 43,573 44,364 268,162 262,610
7,118 590,077 436,122 939,078 487,046 764,960 402,603 563,566 359,478 378.820
197,606 193,907 226,651 191,584 261,861 289,839 344,652 339,053 360,623 321,131
69,909 67,386 59,349 73,217 81,003 67,716 63,524 75,145 79,117 75,728
126,756 - 307,500 - 26,697 257,213 64,553 89,026 71,739 104,314

- 1,208,768 1,791,371 1,513,499 723410 410,251 3,677,885 223818 944,238 1,988,284

577613 2,235,523 2,996,031 2,911,788 1,810,696 2,124,863 4,846,162 1,629,302 2,333,733 3,342,382
3,386,418 3,595,419 4,073,646 4,282,382 4,669,319 4,900,026 5,262,358 5,884,283 6,077,336 6,187,213
1,041,327 1,098,268 1,253,081 1,449,187 1,556,163 1,497 831 1,514,565 1,506,335 1,588,609 1,772,353
806,124 905,007 1,022,771 1,175,089 1,267,106 1,335,134 1,420,454 1,493,778 1,647,990 1,737,914
704,118 767,567 857,975 967,937 1,094,738 1,179,545 1,165,625 1,181,877 1,185,643 1,217,013
686,104 677,061 929,292 756,419 731,073 669,459 683,709 609,291 624,007 654,510
779,472 811,613 882,070 868,051 1,303,408 1,171,794 1,088,488 1,236,897 1,241,842 1,151,985

- - - - - - 29,941 111,838 116,759 110,249

5,101 1,065 350 429 4,100 40,625 1,972 93,886 100 100
48,453 11,608 1,270,244 683,679 19,033 279,226 1,198,705 775,438 14,473 118,970
7457117 7,867,608 10,289,429 10,183,173 10,644,940 11,073,640 12,365,817 12,893,723 12,496,759 12,950,307
8,034,730 §$ 10,103,131 § 13285460 § 13,084,961 § 12,456,636 & 13,198,503 § 17,211,979 § 14,523,025 $ 14,830,492 § 16,292,689
(4,348,511) (3,365,471) (2,751,941) (2,724,144) (4.678,549) {5,103,814) (2,565,932) (5,713,013) (4,958,878) (4,116,096)
1,006,091 984,643 2,724,986 2,388,836 2,014,383 1,863,861 2,770,710 2,305,476 1,279,863 1,645,546
(3,342,420) $ (2,380,828) $ (26,955) $ (335,308) $ (2,664,166) $ (3,239.953) § 214778 % (3,407,537) $ (3,679,015) $ (2,570,550)
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Property Taxes $ 1,324,306 $ 1,415,026 1,446,240 1,459,641 § 1547450 §$ 1620798 § 1827924 § 1872491 § 1,893,823 $ 1,979,186
Sales Taxes 1,774,819 2,091,280 2,436,466 2,636,754 3,273,209 3,513,311 3,108,356 3,422,702 3,331,784 3,407,050
Stormwater 113,209 - - - - - - - - -
Unrestricted State/County Shared Revenue 435,909 84,877 64,386 74,564 90,355 93,542 74,396 72,312 70,970 72,704
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 52,917 45,306 71,553 162,096 343,118 370,622 261,231 136,313 125,594 77,802
Miscellaneous Revenue 79,764 82,215 79,236 69,437 79,600 84,002 58,729 53,708 76,419 83,276
Special Assessments 43,091 - - - - - - - - -
Gain on sale of capital assets 60,054 11,744 87,428 803,280 35,096 9,335 11,951 28,362 72,492 11,274
Transfers 717,440 723,601 701,157 886,137 846,319 1,022,801 911,657 937,998 937,412 931,586
Total Governmental Activities 4,601,509 4,454,049 4,886,466 6,091,909 6,215,147 6,714,411 6,244,244 6,523 888 6,508,494 6,562,878
Business-Type Activities
Property Taxes 145,335 168,175 187,035 254,823 300,773 373,187 435,805 480,052 505,713 501,007
Unrestricted investment Eamings 108,449 90,791 137,883 267,403 345,272 295,630 164,057 145,933 249,674 227,946
Miscellaneous Revenue 26,761 26,623 36,462 42,745 43,172 42,437 44,012 60,741 60,988 61,736
Gain{Loss) on sale of capital assets (158,037) - - - - - - - 490 30,245
Insurance recovery net of fire loss - - - - - - - - - 608,209
Transfers (717,440) (723,601) (701,157) (886,137) (846,319) (1,022,801) (911,657) (937,999) (937,412) (931,586)
Total Business-Type Activities (594,932) (438,012) (339,777) (321,166) (157,102) (311,547) (267,783) (251,273) (120,547) 497 557
Total Primary Govemment $ 4006577 % 4,016,037 4,546,689 5770743 $ 6,058,045 $ 6,402,864 $ 5976461 $ 6,272,615 $ 6,387,947 % 7,060,435
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities 3 252,998 $ 1,088,578 2,134,525 3,367,765 % 1,536,598 $ 1,610,597 $ 3,688,312 § 810,875 § 1549616 $ 2,446,782
Business-Type Activities 411,159 546,631 2,385,209 2,067,670 1,857,281 1,552,314 2,502,927 2,054,203 1,159,316 2,043,103
Total Primary Government $ 664,157 % 1,635,209 4,519,734 5435435 $ 3393879 § 3162911 § 6,191,239 $ 2865078 § 2708932 $ 4,489,885

! Net (expense)/revenue is the difference between the expenses and program revenues of a
function or program. It indicates the degree to which a function or program supports itself with

its own fees and grants versus its reliance upon funding from taxes and other general revenues.
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TABLE 3
CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

General Capital Liquor
Sales Improvement Lodging & Other

Fiscal Property Tax Sales Tax Dining Tax Liquor Shared Total

Year Taxes 1st Penny 2nd Penny 3rd Penny Tax Taxes Taxes

2003 $ 1,324,306 $ 876,899 3 735,668 $ 162,262 $ 63,804 $ 20,360 $ 3,183,289
2004 1,415,026 965,767 951,199 174,344 51,577 33,300 3,591,213
2005 1,446,240 1,131,967 1,120,657 183,842 52,244 12,142 3,947,092
2006 1,459,641 1,224,475 1,210,604 201,675 53,489 21,075 4,170,959
2007 1,647,450 1,483,129 1,469,435 320,645 55,506 34,849 4,911,014
2008 1,620,798 1,634,487 1,618,610 260,214 59,422 34,120 5,227,651
2009 1,827,924 1,430,573 1,416,874 260,909 59,348 15,048 5,010,676
2010 1,872,491 1,568,879 1,567,741 286,082 61,116 11,196 5,367,505
2011 1,893,823 1,513,651 1,512,831 305,302 61,679 9,291 5,296,577
2012 $ 1,979,186 §$ 1,547,605 $ 1,546,945 % 312,500 % 62,1770 $ 6,514 % 5,454,920

CITY OF VERMILLION
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY/(in thousands)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Transportation
Agriculture Communications Finance

Fiscal Forestry & Electric, Gas & Wholesale Retail Insuance & Public

Year Fishing Construction Manufacturing  Sanitary Services Trade Trade Real Estate Services Adm, Other Total
2003 $ 586 §$ nfa $ 1,592 $ 12,238 $ 1,242 $ 53,737 $ 1,170 $ 9,032 % na $ 286 % 79,883
2004 701 233 1,298 15,117 1,823 59,106 1,285 9,731 n/a n/a 89,293
2005 763 357 1,585 12,050 3,671 58,932 1,469 10,494 nia nia 89,321
2006 683 415 2,918 12,639 1,208 72,264 1,242 10,234 n/a n/a 101,503
2007 770 368 3,876 12,695 1,298 88,716 1,547 10,636 n/a n/a 119,806
2008 798 297 4,082 13,815 1,759 86,498 1,289 11,523 n/a n/a 120,071
2009 1,021 5,846 5,737 17,653 6,135 113,188 1,538 18,586 7 9 169,718
2010 1,048 1,887 3,404 21,126 9,940 115,964 1,680 20,455 13 84 175,581
2011 824 2,716 4,286 19,001 6,884 121,996 1,583 19,579 18 374 177,231
2012 $ 689 § 5636 $ 4,935 § 18,610 $ 6,370 §$ 124,460 §$ 2,012 & 20,563 $ nl/a $ 588 § 183,763

Source: State of South Dakota Department of Revenue and Regulation, Municipal Taxable Sales by City
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General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendabie®
Restricted?
Committed?
Assigned?
Unassigned®

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved reported in:
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund’
Nonspendable®
Restricted®
Committed®
Assigned?
Unassigned®
Total All Other Governmentai Funds

Total Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Nonspendable?
Restricted”
Committed®
Assigned?
Unassigned®
Total Governmental Funds

CITY OF VERMILLION
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 4

2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
190,214 17,778 $ 14,490 $ 7902 $ 184714 $ 199,518 191,878 $ 204,520 § - % -
330,382 473,428 835,236 1,869,700 1,850,283 2,101,902 2,173,805 2,305,886 - -
. . . . . - . . 201,366 200,626
. . . . . - - . 178,135 215,396
. . . . . - - - 2,331,213 2,451,984
520,696 491,206 849,726 1877.602 2,034,997 7,301,420 2,365,663 7,510,406 2,710,714 2,668,006
1,935,799 447,415 519,171 557,164 4,496,827 995,897 1,089,107 497,633 . -
88,584 1,026,341 1,611,164 1,921,754 2,440,337 2,747,582 2,112,502 2,457,459 . -
4,005 (173,829) (431,537) 25,470 (66,835) 45,238 (57,251) (52,750) . -
. . . . . - . . 1,610,490 1,646,030
. . . . . . - - 3,098,047 2,099,534
. . . . . . . - 22,344 8,256
. . . . B . N - (337,391) (479,396)
2.028,478 1,299,007 1,508,798 7,604,388 6,670,329 3,788,717 3,144,358 7,002,342 2,293,490 3,274,423
2,126,013 465,193 533,661 565,066 4,681,541 1,195,415 1,280,985 702,153 - -
330,382 473,428 835,236 1,869,700 1,850,283 2,101,902 2,173,805 2,305,886 . -
88,584 1,026,341 1,511,164 1,021,754 2,440,337 2,747,582 2,112,502 2,457,459 - -
4,005 (173,8289) (431,537) 25,470 (66,835) 45,238 (57,251) (52,750) - -
. . . . . . - . 201,366 200,626
. . . . B, - . . 1,510,490 1,646,030
. . . . . - . - 3,098,047 2,099,534
. . . . . . - ; 200,479 223,651
. . . . . - . - 1,093,822 1,972,588
2,549,074 1761133 § 0448524 $ 4,361,090 $  8,005326 $ 6090137 5510,041 $ _ 5412.748 $ 7,004,204 $ _ 6142429

' The fluctuations in the fund balance result from construction projects in which funds are spent in one year

and reimbursed in another fiscal year.

? The City implemteted GASB 54 in fiscal 2011, which changed fund balance classifications for periods beginning

after June 15, 2010.
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Revenues
Taxes
Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Goods & Services
Fines & Forfeits
Public Payments for Improvements
Investment Earnings
Rentals
Special Assessments
Contributions & Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Culture-Recreation
Conservation and Development
Debt Service
Principal’
Interest
Bond Issuance Costs
Capitat OQutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
{under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of Bonds
Discount on Bonds Issued
Sale of Capital Assets
Transfer In
Transfer Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Change in Inventory

Debt Service as a percentage of non-
capital expenditures

CITY OF VERMILLION

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE S

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
3,267,651 § 3,544,796 $ 3943805 $ 4,162,763 $ 4734679 $ 5198227 $ 4,988,765 5,368,562 5326435 $ 5498306
171,670 174,515 187,226 169,888 191,586 201,064 215277 219,374 220,361 230,068
617,415 1,639,453 1,755,996 1,833,413 956,276 965,268 4,138,907 743,632 586,907 2,429,826
243,699 236,981 260,005 260,440 358,960 455,395 454,080 495,782 486,226 380,372
41,809 31,734 31,370 32,263 28,904 40,033 41,480 41,336 38,715 35,544
- 53,724 14,775 106,246 639 173,240 - 14,999 59,949 10,408
58,721 28,674 44,585 58,241 210,947 274,834 202,694 89,130 88,262 57,589
13,174 14,958 11,520 30,919 24,742 14,080 12,670 15,891 18,112 15,207
147,318 95,012 73,789 113,314 167,061 141,726 168,406 196,310 153,204 157,952
6,982 14,802 16,226 48,189 4,494 3,238 20,276 15,170 840,927 213,255
45 584 74,157 298,041 47,667 88,194 79,881 58,194 53,354 59,806 48,394
4615,023 5,508,606 6.637,338 6,663,343 6,766,482 7.547,006 10,300,748 7 253,540 7.878.994 5,074,921
878,645 903,168 943,019 1,083,423 1,008,509 1,066,024 1,074,365 1,129,960 1,143,773 1,131,980
1,413,002 1,444,275 1,491,879 1,565,366 1,642,693 1,809,125 1,910,230 2,001,762 1,927,998 2,095,628
569,463 603,471 736,852 700,058 797,688 1,006,391 857,217 908,703 942,093 889,157
320,762 325,725 326,857 349,458 361,284 392,330 399,563 403,645 404,509 418,653
764315 816,576 855,042 864,365 883,955 968,093 1,018,139 1,018,487 1,007,533 1,031,723
219,607 721,067 587,125 295,126 827,730 732,787 708,482 368,202 397,229 498,825
201,693 400,626 218,136 230,920 268,763 405,142 499,290 412,156 560,000 226,570
132,168 137,445 127,801 115,359 129,696 339,970 283,218 262,297 232,991 202,154
- - . . 116,342 . - - - -
1,120,113 2,031,529 1,973,160 2,047,732 1,724,974 4,086,263 4,984,357 978,348 405,032 4,378,678
5 539,858 7,383,881 7259871 7,251,807 7,761,634 11,706,125 11,734,861 7,483,560 7,021,158 10,873,368
(1,024,835) {1,475,075) (622,533) (388,464) (995,152) (4,158,119) (1,434,113) (230,020) 857,836 (1,798,447)
163,626 - 604,521 405,755 4,492,254 326,325 . - . -
- - (11,500) - - - - - - -
- - - 1,041,426 - - - - - -
960,204 1,623,601 1,063,195 1,147,553 1,496,554 1,745,905 2,654,412 1,657,913 1,511,547 2,801,359
(264,516) (800,000) (373,004) (266,218) (657,132) (743,104) (1,792,755) (820,501) (587,029) (1,863,947)
850,403 723,601 1,263,212 3328518 5331676 1,329,126 861,657 837,412 924,518 937,412
(165,432) $ (751474) $ 660679 $ 1940054 $ 4336524 $  (2829993) $  (572,456) 607,392 1,782,354 $  (861,035)
10,496 (6.467) (3,288) (6.588) 18,752 14,804 (7,640) 12,642 (3,154) (740)
7.98% 11.18% 7.00% 7.13% 8.53% 11.09% 11.59% 10.37% 11.99% 6.60%
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CITY OF VERMILLION
ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

TABLE 6

LAST TEN YEARS
Taxable Taxable Total Estimated
Value Value Total Direct Actual Assessed Value
Fiscal Residential Commercial Taxable Tax Assessed as a Percentage
Year Property Property Value Rate Value of Actual Value
2003 % 119,463,770 § 90,659,814 $ 210,123,584 $ 6.06 $ 221,415,789 95%
2004 124,155,095 88,843,240 212,998,335 6.17 238,253,171 89%
2005 128,161,269 93,259,570 221,420,839 6.24 246,296,818 90%
2006 140,513,785 105,942,366 246,456,151 6.06 260,249,367 95%
2007 154,265,781 111,927,169 266,192,950 5.97 301,806,066 88%
2008 161,396,656 123,046,250 284,442,906 6.06 323,230,575 88%
2009 158,545,014 123,827,060 282,372,074 6.38 31 8,345,067 89%
2010 167,307,757 130,355,951 297,663,708 6.19 350,192,598 85%
2011 179,874,956 137,302,085 317,177,051 6.02 373,149,472 85%
2012 $ 176,917,718 $ 139,821,409 $ 316,739,127 $ 8.29 $ 372,634,267 85%

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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TABLE 7
CITY OF VERMILLION
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)
LAST TEN YEARS

Overlapping Rates

City of Vermillion Clay County Vermillion School District Total
Debt Total Debt Total Debt Total Direct and
Fiscal Operating Service City Operating Service County Operating Service School Special  Overlapping

Year Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Districts Rates
2003 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.670 - 5.670 16.770 0.870 17.640 0.060 29.430
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.670 - 5670 10.200 0.870 11.070 0.060 22.860
2004 a 6.170 - 6.170 5.810 - 5.810 16.260 0.860 17.120 0.080 29,160
b 6.170 - 6.170 5.810 - 5810 10.100 0.860 10.960 0.0860 23.000
2005 a 6.240 - 6.240 5.780 - 5.780 19.930 0.820 20.750 0.060 32.830
b 6.240 - 6.240 5.780 - 5780 11.810 0.820 12.630 0.060 24.710
2006 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.610 - 5610 17.230 0.750 17.980 0.050 29.700
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.610 - 5610 10.510 0.750 11.260 0.050 22.980
2007 a 5.970 - 5970 5530 - 5.530 16.070 0.680 16.750 0.050 28.300
b 5970 - 5.970 5.530 - 5.530 10.020 0.680 10.700 0.050 22.250
2008 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.350 - 5.350 16.870 0.640 17.510 0.050 28.970
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.350 - 5.350 10.390 0.640 11.030 0.050 22.490
2009 a 6.380 - 6.380 5.470 - 5.470 16.637 0.572 17.209 0.044 29.103
b 6.380 - 6.380 5470 - 5.470 10.284 0.572 10.856 0.044 22.750
2010 a 6.185 - 6.185 5.366 - 5.366 16.335 0.565 16.900 0.044 28,495
b 6.185 - 6.185 5.366 - 5.366 10.142 0.565 10.707 0.044 22.302
2011 a 6.016 - 6.018 5.193 - 5.193 16.552 0.542 17.094 0.042 28.345
b 6.016 - 6.016 5.193 - 5193 10.275 0.542 10.817 0.042 22.068
2012 a 6.290 - 6.290 5.214 - 5.214 16.698 0.544 17.242 0.041 28.787
b 6.290 - 6.290 5214 - 5214 10.343 0.544 10.887 0.041 22.432

a Non Owner Occupied
b Owner Occupied

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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TABLE 8
CITY OF VERMILLION
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuations Valuation Rank Valuations
Walmart Stores, Inc $ 6,704,959 1 1.80% $ - - -
Polaris Industries, Inc. 6,086,623 2 1.63% 4,353,869 1 1.97%
JH Investments 4,529,070 3 1.22% - - -
Hatle Investments 2,916,232 4 0.78% 2,809,050 3 1.27%
MarketPlace Vermillion LLC 2,317,365 5 0.62% - - -
TMBL LLC 1,933,622 6 0.52% - - -
Kirk Hogen 1,968,335 7 0.53% 1,567,650 6 0.71%
East River Properties LLC 1,861,697 8 0.50%
Donner Family Limited Partners 1,908,220 9 0.51% - - -
525 W Cherry St Vermillion SD 1,857,700 10 0.50% 1,169,910 8 0.53%
Laurence and Beth Brady - - - 2,877,150 2 1.30%
Qwest . - - 2,519,487 4 1.14%
Slowey, Steven C ) - - - 1,641,200 5 0.74%
505 W Main Limited Partnership - - - 1,296,545 7 0.59%
Gregg Peters - - - 1,150,730 ] 0.52%
David C. DeRouchey Trustee - - - 1,081,055 10 0.49%
Total Principal Taxpayers 32,083,823 8.61% 20,466,646 9.24%
All Other Taxpayers 340,550,444 91.20% 200,949,143 90.76%
Total Assessed Valuation $ 372,634,267 100% $ 221,415,789 —100%

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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CITY OF VERMILLION

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TABLE ¢

LAST TEN YEARS

Percentage Percentage

Current Percent Delinquent Total of Total Tax Outstand.  of Deling.

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes to

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected  Collections  Collections to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
2003 $ 1,144,247 § 1,132,537 98.98% 6,742 $ 1,139,279 98.57% $ 39,349 3.44%
2004 1,180,072 1,173,370  99.43% 1,027 1,174,397 99.52% 35,245 2.98%
2005 1,234,902 1,223,476  99.07% 1,087 1,225,463 99.24% 40,773 3.30%
2006 1,285,714 1,267,410 98.58% 8,006 1,275,416 99.20% 49,807 3.87%
2007 1,376,499 1,358,759 88.71% 7,299 1,366,058 99.24% 27,206 1.98%
2008 1,436,746 1,412,780 98.33% 5,903 1,418,683 98.74% 37,427 2.60%
2009 1,548,344 1,521,174 98.25% 4,680 1,525,854 98.55% 43,787 2.83%
2010 1,607,062 1,583,404 98.53% 15,696 1,599,100 99.50% 37,600 2.34%
2011 1,650,542 1,629,803 98.74% 4,646 1,634,449 99.02% 38,794 2.35%
2012 $ 1,718,031 $ 1,690,684 98.41% - $ 1,690,684 98.41% $ 58,470 3.40%
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TABLE 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BILLINGS & COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of Total

Special Assessment Collection Outstanding
Assessments Paid or To Amount Assessments

Year Quistanding Cancelled Outstanding December 31
2003 % 349,647 $ 122,554 35.05% $ 227,093
2004 393,282 80,530 20.48% 359,029
2005 358,029 68,046 19.01% 289,983
2006 808,507 112,275 13.92% 694,232
2007 711,485 103,058 14.48% 608,428
2008 979,380 112,240 11.46% 867,140
2009 886,278 166,208 18.75% 720,072
2010 773,570 290,668 : 37.57% 482,902
2011 484,926 118,074 | 24.35% 366,852

2012 % 390,154 3 131,753 33.77% $ 258,401
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Table 11

CITY OF VERMILLION
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN YEARS
Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities Total of
Fiscal Revenue Notes Capital Revenue Notes Capital Primary Personal Per
Year Bonds Payable Leases Bonds Payable Leases Government income Capita
2003 3 2,077,580 $ 163625 § - 6,161,810 § 131,297 $ 203,316 & 8,737,628 3.39% 868
2004 1,676,954 122,719 - 6,133,044 99,924 284,280 8,316,931 2.95% 834
2005 2,063,338 81,813 - 7,525,398 67,603 318,082 10,056,235 3.39% 984
2006 2,238,174 40,907 - 10,025,790 300,483 234,072 12,848,426 4.26% 1,303
2007 1,986,665 - 4,475,000 11,510,482 324,721 87,864 18,384,732 5.52% 1,843
2008 2,027,848 - 4,355,000 11,201,108 386,737 24,912 18,005,606 4.41% 1,716
2009 1,698,558 - 4,185,000 18,168,279 407,878 - 24,450,715 5.79% 2,347
2010 765,000 - 4,010,000 20,287,816 800,860 - 25,863,676 6.11% 2,447
2011 390,000 - 3,825,000 19,759,654 687,003 - 24,661,657 5.41% 2,333
2012 8 355,000 $ - & 3,640,496 18,200,435 § 570,408 $ 226,670 $ 22,996,008 nfa nla

n/a - This data was not available at the time of this report.
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TABLE 12
CITY OF VERMILLION
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
December 31, 2012

Net General Percentage

Obligation Applicable To This City's

Debt Governmental Share
Jurisdiction Outstanding Unit’ of Debt
School District $ 1,680,000 61.62% $ 1,035,203
City of Vermillion direct debt 22,996,009
Total Direct and

Overlapping Debt $ 24,031,212

Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Clay County Director
of Equalization. Debt outstanding provided by the Vermillion School District.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Vermillion.
This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay
long-term, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businessess should be taken into
account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible
for repaying debt, of each overlapping government. '

' The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the taxable property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determinging the portion the City's taxable value that
is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the School District's total taxable
property value,
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Debt Limit

Total, net debt applicable to limit
Legal Debt Margin

Total net debt applicable to limit
as a percentage of debt limit

2003

CITY OF VERMILLION
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 13

2004 2006 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
11,070,788 3 12,085,741 $ 12,314,841 § 13,012,361 $ 15,090,303 § 16,161,529 §  15917,283 % 17,509,630 $ 18,667,474 § 18,631,713
6,660,775 7,193,630 8,316,034 9,566,972 8,825,606 8,125,471 7,236,640 6,979,204 5,868,649 4,551,292
4420014 § 4892211 § 3,998,807 % 3455389 § 6,264,697 $ 8,036,088 § 8680613 $ 10,530,426 % 12,788,825 % 14,080,421
60.07% 59.52% 67.53% 73.45% 58.49% 50.28% 45.46% 39.86% 31.45% 24.43%

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN CALCULATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012

Total 2012 Taxable Value
Assessed Value
Debt Limit - 5% of Assessed Value
AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO LIMIT
Total Bonded Debt and Long-Term Notes Payable
Less: amount set aside for repayment
of debt

TIF Revenue Bonds (903,951)
Joint Powers Revenue Bonds (10,305)
Wastewater Revenue Bonds (1,592)

DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

100

S __ 316,739,127
372,634,267
18,631,713

5,467,140

(915,848)
4,551,292
$ 14,080,421



CITY OF VERMILLION

Table 14

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
Net Revenue
Available
Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 $ 3,294,679 2,252,931 $ 262,589 $ 1,304,337 $ 70,000 $ 22034 % 92,034 1417  $ 1,566,926 17.03
2004 3,540,836 2,500,095 266,257 1,306,998 75,000 18,735 93,735 13.94 1,673,255 16.78
2005 3,984,129 2,808,651 277,325 1,452,803 80,000 15,131 95,131 158.27 1,730,128 18.19
2006 4,191,995 2,965,244 275,317 1,502,068 80,000 11,380 91,380 16.44 1,777,385 19.45
2007 4,592,516 3,362,594 286,811 1,516,733 90,000 7,018 97,018 15.63 1,803,544 18.59
2008 4,868,374 3,507,191 306,305 1,667,488 90,000 763 90,763 18.37 1,973,793 21.75
2008 ¢ 5,158,478 4,004,115 311,894 1,466,257 - - - n/a 1,778,151 n/a
2010 *® 517,889 - - 517,889 - 391,211 391,211 1.32 517,889 1.32
2011 ° 738,404 - - 738,404 185,000 384,797 569,797 1.30 738,404 1.30
2012 ' § 743,301 - % - $ 743,301 § 190,000 $ 382485 § 572,485 130 § 743,301 1.30
' GAAP Basis

? General Obligation Bonds were paid off in 2009

® Starting in 2010 a surcharge fee was pledged for the debt service

101



CiTY OF VERMILLION

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

WATER ENTERPRISE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

Net Revenue

Table 15

Available
Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage

Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without

Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 $ 1,016,664 § 838,673 § 94,720 § 272,811 § 26630 % 36,508 $ 63,138 432 $ 367,531 5.82
2004 1,052,652 953,217 110,643 210,078 63,489 91,486 164,975 1.36 320,721 2.07
2005 1,210,698 922,383 132,650 420,965 83,214 84,093 167,307 2.52 553,616 3.31
2006 1,350,043 975,516 143,885 518,412 87,145 82,757 169,902 3.05 662,297 3.90
2007 *? 1,354,889 1,001,280 148,379 411,978 90,721 77,441 168,162 2.45 560,357 3.33
2007 3 145,748 - - 145,748 - 74,969 74,969 1.94 145,748 1.94
2008 2 1,158,017 1,099,739 187,002 245,280 94,446 73,716 168,162 1.46 432,282 2.57
2008 ° 293,627 - - 293,627 137,706 88,447 226,153 1.30 293,627 1.30
2000 ? 1,222,490 1,172,310 232,343 282,523 98,331 69,832 168,163 1.68 514,866 3.06
2009 ° 263,810 - - 263,810 147,946 87,413 235,359 1.12 263,810 1.12
2010 2 1,200,469 1,189,028 241,817 253,258 102,381 65,621 168,002 1.51 495,075 2.95
2010 ° 266,174 - - 266,174 161,896 83,772 235,668 1.13 266,174 1.13
2011 2 1,297,129 1,246,547 247,878 298,460 106,603 63,412 170,015 1.76 546,338 3.21
2011 3 261,909 - - 261,909 155,729 79,939 235,668 1.1 261,909 1.11
2012 ? 1,480,051 1,319,913 253,851 413,989 503,868 40,574 544,442 0.76 667,840 1.23
2012 ' % 264,576 $ - 3 - % 264576 $ 159,659 $ 76,009 $ 235,668 112§ 264,576 1.12

' GAAP Basis

2 Bond obligations not covered with surcharge pledge
® Starting in 2007 bonds were paid with surcharge pledge
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CITY OF VERMILLION
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS!
Net Revenue

Table 16

Available

Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 $ 806,120 §$ 948,583 $ 231,064 $ 88,601 $ 6,204 $ 2,149 § 8,353 10.61 $ 319,665 38.27
2004 898,561 996,396 232,964 135,129 8,771 13,362 22,133 6.11 368,093 16.63
2005 1,019,556 1,057,775 230,778 192,559 16,313 11,126 27,439 7.02 423,337 16.43
2006 1,125,387 1,012,040 307,791 421,138 70,040 38,925 108,965 3.86 728,929 6.69
2007 1,260,442 1,191,304 380,627 449,765 139,674 114,424 254,008 1.77 830,392 3.27
2008 1,332,533 1,168,515 380,848 544,866 144,728 110,244 254,972 2.14 925,714 3.63
2009 1,418,108 1,230,161 387,288 575?235 149,498 105,646 255,144 2.25 962,623 3.77
2010 2 1,344,143 1,236,230 413,192 521,105 164,426 140,768 295,194 1.77 934,297 3.17
2010 ° 145,131 - - 145,131 41,335 49,870 91,205 1.569 145,131 1.69
2011 2 1,346,120 1,435,127 509,019 420,012 168,769 104,201 272,970 1.54 929,031 3.40
2011 3 300,259 - - 300,259 138,513 124,963 263,476 1.14 300,259 1.14
2012 2 1,383,666 1,464,328 592,300 511,638 176,377 97,582 273,959 1.87 1,103,938 4.03
2012 ° % 321,140 % - % - % 321,140 $ 160,945 § 128,744 § 289,689 111§ 321,140 1.11

' GAAP Basis

? Bond obligations not covered with surcharge pledge

® Starting in 2010 a surcharge fee was pledged for the debt service
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Table 17
CITY OF VERMILLION
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
GOLF COURSE ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
Net Revenue

Available
Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 % 1,019,718 $ 704,022 $ 62,600 $ 378,296 % 170,000 $ 269,626 $ 439,626 0.86 $ 440,896 1.00
2004 1,141,205 735,976 61,873 467,102 4,155,000 177,981 4,332,981 0.11 528,975 0.12
2005 1,361,620 939,204 64,933 487,349 25,000 169,046 194,046 2.51 552,282 2.85
2006 1,075,012 877,881 67,434 264,565 360,000 171,876 531,876 0.50 331,999 0.62
2007 1,108,569 747,385 63,868 425,062 395,000 156,143 551,143 0.77 488,920 0.89
2008 1,102,842 761,423 63,065 404,484 405,000 136,699 541,699 0.75 467,549 0.86
2009 1,163,153 759,146 49,779 453,786 430,000 82,496 512,496 0.89 503,565 0.98
2010 1,141,943 743,668 62,441 460,716 430,000 . 92,280 622,280 0.88 523,167 1.00
2011 1,185,441 777,221 59,544 487,764 430,000 66,754 496,754 0.94 527,308 1.06
2012 $ 1,210,561 $ 802,336 § 52,585 § 460,810 $ 445000 $ 23,050 ' % 468,050 098 § 513,395 1.10

' GAAP Basis
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Table 18
CITY OF VERMILLION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

2012
Percentage
of Total
# of City

Employer Employees Rank = Employees

University of South Dakota 1,112 1 18.90%
Sanford Vermillion Medical Center 250 2 4.25%
Walmart 220 3 3.74%
Vermillion Public Schools 170 4 2.89%
Hy Vee Food Stores 166 5 2.82%
SESDAC 146 6 2.48%
Polaris indusfries 130 7 2.21%
Masaba Mining Equipment 115 8 1.95%
City of Vermillion 110 9 1.87%
Total Principal Employers 2,419 41.10%
Other Employers 3,466 58.90%
Total Employers ’ 5,885 100%

' Comparative data for nine years ago not currently available.

Information in table provided from South Dakota Economic Development Office, Vermillion Development
Corporation and the South Dakota Department of Labor.
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

CITY OF VERMILLION

LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 19

Educational University
Total Per Capita Altainment Public of
Calendar Personal Personal Bachelor's Median School South Dakota Unemployment
Year Population’ Income income? Degree or Higher’ Age' Enrcliment® Enroliment’ Rate’
2003 10,070 257,489,900 25,570 nla 24.9 1,288 7,917 3.10%
2004 9,975 281,863,575 28,257 n/a 25.1 1,305 8,120 3.30%
2005 10,218 296,792,028 29,046 nfa 25.4 1,327 8,641 3.30%
2008 9,862 301,481,340 30,570 n/a n/a 1,318 8,748 2.80%
2007 9,975 333,145,050 33,398 n/a n/a 1,282 9,243 2.50%
2008 10,495 " 408,087,580 38,884 nfa nfa 1,288 8,291 2.60%
2009 10,417 422,117,674 40,522 2,358 n/a 1,275 9,817 3.60%
2010 10,571 423,347,408 40,048 2,358 23.4 1,251 10,151 4.00%
2011 10,571 455,673,526 43,106 2,128 nla 1,239 8,870 3.40%
2012 10,571 % n/a nfa nla n/a 1,256 10,284 4.00%

' State of South Dakota website.

2 United States Census Bureau per Business Research Bureau, USD.

3 Vermillion Public School Business Office.

*USD website. Fall Semester enroliment figures.

n/a - This data was unavailable at the time of the report.
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Governmental Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
BBB
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Additional 1% Sales Tax
Library
Stormwater
Cumulative Reserve
Unrestricted
Total Governmental Activities
Net Position

Business-Type Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Landfill Closure Postclosure
Unrestricted
Total Business-Type Aclivities
Net Position

Primary Government
Net investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
BBB
Capital Projects
Debl Service
Additional 1% Sales Tax
Library
Stormwater
Landfill Closure Postciosure
Cumulative Reserve
Unrestricted
Totat Primary Govemment
Net Position

'Accounting standards require that net position be reported in three components in the financial statements:

$

$

CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENT-WIDE NET POSITION BY COMPONENT’

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 1

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

11,867,339 § 13818734 § 15224263 16,197,173 § 16775209 $ 17468499 $ 22,167,991 § 23357651 $ 23217945 § 26,379,227

89,623 47533 24,759 36,499 129,654 154,418 125,799 144,278 176308 180,503

- - - . 3,531,936 - - - - -

866,967 694,016 711,658 1,056,138 1,376,496 1,679,918 1,600,924 940,546 595,352 599,886

1,125,180 . . . - . . . . N

i . . . - - - - 106,132 21,397

47,261 127,235 84,162 180,487 272,825 249,860 366,220 490,302 659,022 823,145

- . . - 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060

955,153 1,352,583 2,129,784 4,072,094 992,869 5,136,891 4,116,964 4,255,696 5,796,886 4,587,553

14951623 % 16040101 $ _ 18.174,626 21542301 $  23.237.040 $ _ J4847646 $ 08535058 $  20346,843 $ _ 80,708,705 $ _ 33,040,771

12679381 $ 13,144,108 § 15108493 16,738,269 $ 17189168 $  17.817.417 $ 19705300 § 20882426 $ 21411403 $ 22,036,403

995,783 419,503 779,022 810,174 838,309 834,790 1,444,260 1,521,831 1,544,613 1,616,809

158,984 178,829 214,281 224,505 230,238 214,880 210,879 207,915 196,362 186,161

4,620,319 5,258,568 5,284,511 5,681,029 7,063,543 7,996,485 8,006,051 8,808,530 9,615,384 10,929,279

18,454,467 $ _ 10.001,008 § _ 21,366,307 73,453,977 $ 25311258 § _ 768064572 $ _ 20366400 $ _ 31420702 $ _ 30.767,762 $ _ 34,667,652

24546720 § 26962842 § 30,332,756 32,935442 $ 33964377 $ 35285916 $ 41873300 § 44240077 $ 44620348 $ 48415630

89,623 47533 24,759 36,499 129,654 154,418 126,799 144,278 175,308 180,503

- - - - 3,531,936 - - - - -

1,862,750 1,113,609 1,490,680 1,866,312 2,214,805 2,514,708 3,045,184 2,462,377 2,139,965 2,415,695

1,125,180 - - - - - . . . .

i ) . . . - y - 106,132 21,397

47,261 127,235 84,162 180,487 272,825 249,860 366,220 490,302 659,022 823,145

158,984 178,829 214,281 224,505 230,238 214,880 210,879 207,915 196,362 186,161

- - - . 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060 158,060

5,575,472 6,611,151 7,414,295 9,753,123 8,046,412 13,133,376 12,123,015 13,064,526 15,412,270 15,616,832
33405000 $ _ 35041199 % _ 30.560.933 14996368 $ 48548307 $ 51711218 $ _ 67.000457 $ _ 60.767.505 $ _ 63476467 $ _ 67717423

net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Net assets are considered restricted
only when (1) an extemal party, such as the State of South Dakota or the federal government, places a restriction on how
the resources may be used, or (2) enabling legislation is enacted by the City.
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Expenses
Govermmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Conservation & Development
interest on Long-term debt
Total Govemnmental Activities Expenses
Business-Type Activities:
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Liquor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfilt
Curbside Recycling
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Govemment Expenses
Program Revenues
Govemmental Activities:
Charges for Services;
" General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health & Welfare
Culture & Recreation
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions
Total Govemmental Activities Program Revenues
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Liquor
Golf
Joint Powers Landfill
Curbside Recycling
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues
Total Primary Government Program Revenues
Net(Expense)/Revenue'
Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Govemnment Net Revenues (Expenses)

TABLE 2

CITY OF VERMILLION
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting}
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

$ 906,806 § 928314 § 978,770 & 1,004,096 $ 1,038,217 % 1,097,670 $ 1,186,168 § 1,336,341 § 1,324,803 $ 1325411
1,495,636 1.582,090 1,604,653 1,661,678 1,748,482 1,923,413 2,026,733 2,118,547 2,028,921 2,211,445
962,223 999,893 1,205,512 1,237,318 1,353,987 1,602,031 1,561,217 1,656,337 1,714,248 1,630,835

331,500 338,169 343,780 365,189 374,133 402,620 416,740 412,409 424,263 443,581
869,835 928,704 977,583 978,573 1,008,229 1,171,859 1,203,636 1,177,757 1,161,245 1,146,227

219,607 680,161 546,219 254,220 786,823 732,787 708,482 368,202 397,229 498,825
140,517 142,663 91,455 134,858 181,374 298,297 301,118 272,722 241,902 202,154
4,926,124 5,600,994 5747972 5,636,932 6,489,245 7,228,677 7,402,094 7,342,315 7,292,611 7,458,478
2,280,813 2,526,674 2,825,935 2,982,411 3,405,570 3,539,287 4,025,288 4,661,735 4,995 547 5,051,041
876,409 1,015,709 1,010,703 1,057,672 1,171,661 1,264,548 1,336,150 1,342,632 1,389,184 1,435,808

953,118 1,010,170 1,069,647 1,049,072 1,305,808 1,284,315 1,336,169 1,345,153 1,605,314 1,694,154
628,154 671,465 755,798 818,302 917,741 1,003,575 1,000,796 1,017,680 1,018,600 1,043,401

975,027 914,987 1,109,776 1,047,729 902,370 897,527 840,409 834,736 841,741 838,399
737,505 743,960 792,584 839,151 927,407 1,220,527 1,022,888 1,288,114 1,273,463 1,242,491

- - - - - - 33,407 98,197 93,047 99,467

6,451,026 6,882,965 7,564,443 7,794,337 8,630,557 9,209,779 9,595,107 10,588,247 11,216,896 11,404,761

$ 11,377,150 § 12483959 §$ 13312415 § 13,430,269 3 15,119,802 & 16,438,456 % 16,997,201 § 17,930562 $ 18,509,507 $ 18,863,239
$ 146,269 § 139,638 § 137,785 § 158,477 $ 197,706 § 291204 $ 249,372 $ 294330 § 260,385 § 211,495
29,954 35,747 37,253 35,933 32,973 43,680 43,573 44,364 268,152 262,610

7,119 590,077 436,122 939,078 487,046 764,960 402,603 563,566 359,478 378,820

197,806 193,807 226,651 191,584 261,861 289,839 344,652 339,053 360,623 321131

69,909 67,386 59,349 73,217 81,003 67,718 63,624 75,145 79,117 75,728

126,756 - 307,500 - 26,697 257,213 64,553 89,026 71,739 104,314

- 1,208,768 1,791,371 1,513,499 723,410 410,251 3,677,885 223,818 944 239 1,988,284

577,613 2,235,523 2,996,031 2,911,788 1,810,696 2,124,863 4,846,162 1,629,302 2,333,733 3,342,382
3,386,418 3,595,419 4,073,646 4,282,382 4,669,319 4,900,026 5,262,358 5,884,283 6,077,336 6,187,213
1,041,327 1,098,268 1,253,081 1,449,187 1,656,163 1,497,831 1,514,565 1,506,335 1,588,609 1,772,363
806,124 905,007 1,022,771 1,175,089 1,267,106 1,335,134 1,420,454 1,493,778 1,647,990 1,737,814

704,118 767,567 857,975 967,937 1,094,738 1,179,545 1,165,625 1,181,977 1,185,643 1,217,013
686,104 677.061 929,292 756,419 731,073 669,458 683,709 609,291 624,007 654,610

779,472 811,613 882,070 868,051 1,303,408 1,171,794 1,088,488 1,236,897 1,241,842 1,151,985

- - - - - - 29,941 111,838 116,759 110,249

5,101 1,065 350 429 4,100 40,625 1,972 93,886 100 100

48,453 11,608 1,270,244 683,679 19,033 279,226 1,198,705 775,438 14,473 118,970
7,457,117 7,867,608 10,289,429 10,183,173 10,644,940 11,073,640 12,365,817 12,893,723 12,496,759 12,950,307

$ 8,034,730 $ 10,103,131 % 13286460 $ 13,094,961 § 12455636 $ 13,198,503 % 17,211,879 & 14,523,025 $ 14,830,492 § 16,292,689
¥ (4,348,511) (3,365,471) (2,761,941) (2,724,144) (4,678,549) (5,103,814) - (2,555,932) (5,713,013) (4,958,878) (4,116,096)
1,006,091 984,643 2,724,986 2,388,836 2,014,383 1,863,861 2,770,710 2,305,478 1,279,863 1,545,546
$ (3,342,420) $ (2,380,828) % {26,955) § (335,308) $ (2,664,166) $ (3,239,953) § 214778 § (3,407,537) $ (3,679,015) § (2,570,650)
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Property Taxes $ 1,324,306 §$ 1415026 % 1,446,240 $ 1,459,641 1,547,450 $ 1620798 § 1,827,924 $ 1,872,491 $ 1,883,823 $ 1,979,186
Sales Taxes 1,774,819 2,091,280 2,436,466 2,636,764 3,273,209 3,513,311 3,108,356 3,422,702 3,331,784 3,407,050
Stormwater 113,209 - - - - - - - - -
Unrestricted State/County Shared Revenue 435,909 84,877 64,386 74,564 90,356 93,542 74,396 72,312 70,970 72,704
Unrestricted Investment Eamings 52,917 45,306 71,553 162,096 343,118 370,622 251,231 136,313 125,594 77.802
Miscellaneous Revenue 79,764 82,215 79,236 69,437 79,600 84,002 58,729 53,709 76,419 83,276
Special Assessments 43,091 - - - - ~ - - - -
Gain on sale of capital assets 60,054 11,744 87,428 803,280 35,096 9,335 11,951 28,362 72,492 11,274
Transfers 717,440 723,601 701,157 886,137 848,319 1,022,801 911,657 937,999 937,412 931,586
Total Governmental Activities 4,601,509 4,454,049 4,886,466 6,091,909 6,215,147 6,714,411 6,244,244 6,523,888 6,508,494 6,562,878
Business-Type Activities
Property Taxes 145,335 168,175 187,035 254,823 300,773 373,187 435,805 480,082 506,713 501,007
Unrestricted investment Earnings 108,449 90,791 137,883 267,403 345,272 296,630 164,057 145,933 249,674 227,946
Miscellaneous Revenue 26,761 26,623 36,462 42,745 43,172 42,437 44,012 60,741 60,988 61,736
Gain({Loss) on sale of capital assets (158,037) - - - - - - - 480 30,245
Insurance recovery net of fire loss - - - - - - - N - 608,209
Transfers (717.440) (723,601) (701,157) (886,137) (846,319) (1,022,801) (811,657) (937,999) (937,412) (931,586)
Total Business-Type Activiies (594,932) (438,012) (339,777) (321,166) (157,102) (311.547) (267,783) (251,273) (120,547) 497 557
Total Primary Government $ 4006577 $ 4,016,037 % 4,546,689 $ 5,770,743 6,058,045 $ 6,402,864 $ 5976461 $ 6,272,615 § 6,387,947 $ 7,060,435
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities $ 252,998 $ 1,088,578 $ 2,134,526 § 3,367,765 1,636,598 $ 1,610,597 $ 3,688,312 $ 810875 §$ 1649616 % 2,446,782
Business-Type Activities 411,169 546,631 2,385,209 2,067 670 1,857,281 1.552,314 2,502,927 2,054,203 1,169,316 2,043,103
Total Primary Government $ 664,157 § 1635209 $ 4519734 § 5,435,435 3,393,878 $ 3162911 § 6,191239 § 2,865,078 $ 2,708932 $ 4,489,885

' Net (expense)/revenue is the difference between the expenses and program revenues of a
function or program. it indicates the degree to which a function or program supports itself with

its own fees and grants versus its reliance upon funding from taxes and other general revenues.
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TABLE 3
CITY OF VERMILLION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

General Capital Liquor
Sales Improvement Lodging & Other

Fiscal Property Tax Sales Tax Dining Tax Liquor Shared Total

Year Taxes 1st Penny 2nd Penny 3rd Penny Tax Taxes Taxes

2003 $ 1,324306 $ 876,899 $ 735,668 $ 162,252 $ 63,804 $ 20,360 $ 3,183,289
2004 1,415,026 965,767 951,199 174,344 51,877 33,300 3,591,213
2005 1,446,240 1,131,967 1,120,857 183,842 52,244 12,142 3,947,092
2008 1,459,641 1,224 475 1,210,604 201,675 53,489 21,075 4,170,959
2007 1,547,450 1,483,129 1,469,435 320,645 55,506 34,849 4,911,014
2008 1,620,798 1,634,487 1,618,610 260,214 59,422 34,120 5,227,651
2009 1,827,924 1,430,573 1,416,874 260,909 59,348 15,048 5,010,678
2010 1,872,491 1,568,879 1,567,741 286,082 61,116 11,196 5,367,505
2011 1,893,823 1,513,651 1,612,831 305,302 61,679 9,291 5,296,577
2012 $ 1,979,186 $ 1,647,605 $ 1,546,945 $ 312,500 $ 62,170 § 6,514 $ 5,454,920

CGITY OF VERMILLION
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY(in thousands)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Transportation
Agriculture Communications Finance

Fiscal Forestry & Electric, Gas & Wholesale Retail Insuance & Public

Year Fishing Construction Manufacturing  Sanitary Services Trade Trade Real Estate Services Adm. Other Total
2003 $ 586 $ na 3 1,592 % 12,238 $ 1,242 $ 53,737 § 1170 $ 9,032 3 n/a $ 286 % 79,883
2004 701 233 1,298 16,117 1,823 59,105 1,285 9,731 n/a n/a 89,293
2005 763 357 1,585 12,050 3,671 58,932 1,469 10,494 n/a nfa 89,321
2008 683 415 2,918 12,539 1,208 72,264 1,242 10,234 n/a n/a 101,503
2007 770 368 3,876 12,695 1,298 88,716 1,547 10,536 n/a n/a 119,806
2008 798 297 4,092 13,815 1,759 86,498 1,289 11,523 n/a n/a 120,071
2000 1,021 5,846 5737 17,653 6,135 113,188 1,536 18,586 7 9 169,718
2010 1,048 1,887 3,404 21,126 9,940 115,964 1,660 20,455 13 84 175,581
2011 824 2,716 4,286 19,001 6,884 121,996 1,653 19,579 18 374 177,231
2012 $ 689 % 5536 $ 4935 $ 18,610 $ 6,370 § 124,460 $ 2,012 $ 20,563 $ n/a $ 588 $ 183,763

Source: State of South Dakota Department of Revenue and Regulation, Municipal Taxable Sales by City
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General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendable?
Restricted”
Committed®
Assigned?
Unassigned®

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved reported in:
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund’
Nonspendable?
Restricted?
Committed?
Assigned2
Unassigned®
Total All Other Governmental Funds

Totat Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Nonspendable?
Restricted®
Committed®
Assigned®
Unassigned®
Total Governmental Funds

CITY OF VERMILLION
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE 4

2003 2004 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
190,214 $ 17,778 % 14,490 $ 7,902 $ 184,714 § 199,518 191,878 $ 204520 - % -
330,382 473,428 835,236 1,869,700 1,850,283 2,101,902 2,173,805 2,305,886 . .

. . . . . - . . 201,366 200,626

. . . . . . . . 178,135 215,396

. . . . . . N . 2,331,213 2,451,984
520,696 461,206 849,726 1877.602 2,034,997 2,301,420 72.365,683 2.610,406 7,710,714 2 868,006
1,935,799 447,415 519,171 557,164 4,496,827 995,897 1,089,107 497,633 . .
88,584 1,026,341 1,511,164 1,921,754 2,440,337 2,747,582 2,112,502 2,457,459 - -
4,095 (173,829) (431,537) 25,470 (66,835) 45,238 (57.25%) (62,750) . .

. . . . . - . . 1,510,490 1,646,030

. . . . . . . . 3,098,047 2,099,534

. . . . - . . . 22,344 8,255

. . N . . . . - (337,391) (479,396)
2,026,478 1,299,927 1568,798 2,504,388 6,870,320 3,788,717 3,144,358 7,602,342 4,393,450 3,274,423
2,126,013 465,193 533,661 565,066 4,681,541 1,195,415 1,280,985 702,153 - .
330,382 473,428 835,236 1,869,700 1,850,283 2,101,902 2,173,805 2,306,886 - -
88,584 1,026,341 1,611,164 1,021,754 2,440,337 2,747,582 2,112,502 2,457,459 - -
4,095 (173,829) (431,537) 25,470 (66,835) 45238 (67,251) (52,750) - .

. ) . . . . 3 . 201,366 200,626

. . . . . . . . 1,510,490 1,646,030

. . . . . . . . 3,008,047 2,099,534

. . . . . - . . 200,479 223,651

. . . . . - . - 1,993,822 1,972,588
2549074 $ 1,791,133 $ 2448524 $ 4,381,000 $ _ 8905326 % _ 6090137 5510,041 $_ 5412.748 S 7.004,204 $ 6,142,429

' The fluctuations in the fund balance result from construction projects in which funds are spent in one year

and reimbursed in another fiscal year,

? The City implemteted GASB 54 in fiscal 2011, which changed fund balance classifications for periods beginning

after June 15, 2010.

91



Revenues
Taxes
Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Goods & Services
Fines & Forfeits
Public Payments for improvements
Investment Eamings
Rentals
Special Assessments
Contributions & Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Culture-Recreation
Conservation and Development
Debt Service
Principal’
Interest
Bond Issuance Costs
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
{under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
issuance of Bonds
Discount on Bonds Issued
Sale of Capital Assets
Transfer in
Transfer Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Change in Inventory

Debt Service as a percentage of non-
capital expenditures

CITY OF VERMILLION

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

TABLE &

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
3,267,651 $ 3,544,796 $ 3943805 $ 4,162,763 $ 4734679 $ 5198227 $ 4988765 $ 5368562 $ 5326436 $  5498,306
171,670 174,516 187,226 169,868 191,586 201,064 215,277 219,374 220,361 230,066
617,415 1,639,453 1,755,996 1,833,413 956,276 965,288 4,138,907 743,632 586,907 2,429,826
243,699 236,981 260,005 260,440 358,960 455,395 454,080 435,782 486,226 380,372
41,809 31,734 31,370 32,263 28,904 40,033 41,480 41,336 38,715 35,544
- 53,724 14,775 106,246 639 173,240 - 14,999 59,949 10,408
58,721 28,674 44,585 58,241 210,947 274,834 202,694 89,130 88,262 57,589
13,174 14,958 11,520 30,919 24,742 14,080 12,670 15,891 18,112 15,207
147,318 95,012 73,789 113,314 167,061 144,726 168,406 196,310 153,294 157,952
6,982 14,802 16,226 48,189 4,494 3,238 20,275 16,170 840,927 213,256
46,584 74,157 298,041 47 667 88,194 79,881 58,194 53,354 59,806 45,394
4,515,023 5 .908,806 6,637,338 6,863,343 5,766,482 7 547,006 10,300,748 7.253,540 7.878,994 9,074,921
878,645 903,168 943,019 1,083,423 1,008,509 1,066,024 1,074,365 1,129,960 1,143,773 1,131,980
1,413,002 1,444,275 1,491,879 1,565,366 1,642,693 1,809,125 1,910,230 2,001,762 1,927,998 2,095,628
589,463 603,471 736,852 700,058 797,688 1,006,391 857,217 908,703 942,093 889,167
320,762 325,725 326,857 349,458 361,284 392,330 399,563 403,645 404,509 418,663
764,315 816,575 855,042 864,365 883,955 968,093 1,018,139 1,018,487 1,007,533 1,031,723
219,607 721,067 587,125 295,126 827,730 732,787 708,482 368,202 397,229 498,825
201,693 400,626 218,136 230,920 268,763 405,142 499,290 412,156 560,000 226,570
132,168 137,445 127,801 115,359 129,696 339,070 283,218 262,297 232,991 202,154
- - - - 116,342 - - . . -
1,120,113 2,031,529 1,973,160 2,047,732 1,724,974 4,986,263 4,984,357 978,348 405,032 4,378,678
5 539,858 7 383 861 7.258 871 7251807 7,761,654 11,706,125 11,734,861 7,483,560 7.021,158 10,673,368
(1,024,835) (1,475,075) (622,533) (388,464) (995,152) (4,159,119) (1,434,113) (230,020) 857,836 (1,798,447)
163,625 - 604,521 405,755 4,482,254 326,325 . . - .
- - (11,500) - - - - - - -
- - - 1,041,426 . - - - - -
960,294 1,523,601 1,063,195 1,147,553 1,496,554 1,745,905 2,654,412 1,657,913 1,511,547 2,801,359
(264,516) (800,000 (373,004) (266,216) (657,132) (743,104) (1,792,755) (820,501) (587,029) (1,863,947)
859,403 723,601 1,283,212 2,328,518 5331676 1,329,126 861,657 837,412 924,518 937,412
(165,432) $ (751,474) $ 660,679 3 1940054 $ 4336524 $  (2,829.993) $  (572.456) & 607,392 $ 1,782,354 $  (861,035)
10,496 (6,467) (3,288) (6,588) 18,752 14,804 (7.640) 12,642 (3,154) (740)
7.98% 11.18% 7.00% 7.13% 8.53% 11.09% 11.59% 10.37% 11.99% 6.60%
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TABLE 6

CITY OF VERMILLION
ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN YEARS
Taxable Taxable Total Estimated
Value Value Total Direct Actual Assessed Value
Fiscal Residential Commercial Taxable Tax Assessed as a Percentage
Year Property Property Value Rate Value of Actual Value
2003 § 119,463,770 § 90,659,814 $ 210,123,584 $ 6.06 221,415,789 95%
2004 124,155,095 88,843,240 212,998,335 8.17 238,253,171 89%
2005 128,161,269 93,259,570 221,420,839 6.24 246,296,818 90%
2006 140,513,785 105,942,366 246,456,151 6.06 260,249,367 95%
2007 154,265,781 111,927,169 266,192,950 5.97 301,806,066 88%
2008 161,396,656 123,046,250 284,442,906 6.06 323,230,575 88%
2009 168,545,014 123,827,060 282,372,074 6.38 318,345,067 89%
2010 167,307,757 130,355,951 297,663,708 6.19 350,192,598 85%
2011 179,874,956 137,302,095 317,177,051 6.02 373,149,472 85%
2012 $ 176,917,718 § 139,821,409 $ 316,739,127 §$ 6.29 $ 372,634,267 85%

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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CITY OF VERMILLION
PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)
LAST TEN YEARS

Overlapping Rates

TABLE 7

City of Vermillion Clay County Vermillion School District Total
Debt Total Debt Total Debt Total Direct and
Fiscal Operating Service City Operating Service County Operating Service School Special  Overlapping

Year Miliage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Districts Rates
2003 a 6.060 - 6.060 5670 - 5870 16.770 0.870 17.640 0.060 29.430
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.670 - 5.670 10.200 0.870 11.070 0.060 22.860
2004 a 6.170 - 6.170 5.810 - 5.810 16.260 0.860 17.120 0.080 29.160
b 6.170 - 8.170 5810 - 5.810 10.100 0.860 10.960 0.060 23.000
2005 a 6.240 - 6.240 5.780 - 5.780 19.930 0.820 20.750 0.060 32.830
b 6.240 - 6.240 5.780 - 5.780 11.810 0.820 12.630 0.060 24.710
2006 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.610 - 5.610 17.230 0.750 17.980 0.050 29.700
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.610 - 5610 10.510 0.750 11.260 0.050 22.980
2007 a 5.970 - 5.970 5.530 - 5.530 16.070 0.680 16.750 0.050 28,300
b 5.970 - 5.970 5.530 - 5.530 10.020 0.680 10.700 0.050 22,250
2008 a 6.060 - 6.060 5.350 - 5.350 16.870 0.640 17.510 0.050 28.970
b 6.060 - 6.060 5.350 - §.350 10.390 0.640 11.030 0.050 22.490
2009 a 6.380 - 6.380 5.470 - 5.470 16.637 0.572 17.209 0.044 29.103
b 6.380 - 6.380 5.470 - 5.470 10.284 0.572 10.856 0.044 22.750
2010 a 6.185 - 6.185 5.366 - 5.366 16.335 0.565 16.900 0.044 28.495
b 6.185 - 6.185 5.366 - 5.366 10.142 0.565 10.707 0.044 22.302
2011 a 6.016 - 6.016 5193 - 5193 16.552 0.542 17.094 0.042 28.345
b 6.016 - 6.016 5.193 - 5.193 10.275 0.542 10.817 0.042 22.068
2012 a 6.290 - 6.290 5.214 - 5.214 16.698 0.544 17.242 0.041 28.787
b 6.290 - 6.290 5214 - 5214 10.343 0.544 10.887 0.041 22.432

a Non Owner Occupied
b Owner Occupied

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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TABLE 8
CITY OF VERMILLION
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
] of Total of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuations Valuation Rank Valuations
Walmart Stores, Inc $ 6,704,859 1 1.80% $ - ) - -
Polaris Industries, Inc. 6,086,623 2 1.63% 4,353,869 1 1.97%
JH Investments 4,529,070 3 1.22% - - -
Hatle investments 2,916,232 4 0.78% 2,809,050 3 1.27%
MarketPlace Vermillion LLC 2,317,365 5 0.62% - - -
TMBL LLC 1,933,622 6 0.52% - - -
Kirk Hogen 1,968,335 7 0.53% 1,567,650 6 0.71%
East River Properties LLC 1,861,697 8 0.50%
Donner Family Limited Partners 1,908,220 g 0.51% - - . -
525 W Cherry St Vermillion SD 1,857,700 10 0.50% | 1,169,910 8 0.53%
Laurence and Beth Brady - - - 2,877,150 2 1.30%
Qwest - - - 2,519,487 4 1.14%
Slowey, Steven C - - - 1,641,200 5 0.74%
505 W Main Limited Partnership - - - 1,296,545 7 0.59%
Gregg Peters ‘ " . - 1,150,730 9 0.52%
David C. DeRouchey Trustee - - - 1,081,055 10 0.49%
Total Principal Taxpayers 32,083,823 8.61% 20,466,646 9.24%
All Other Taxpayers 340,550,444 91.39% 200,948 143 90.76%
Total Assessed Valuation $ 372,634,267 100% $ _ 221,415,789 _100%

Received from Clay County Treasurer.
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CITY OF VERMILLION

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TABLE 9

LAST TEN YEARS

Percentage Percentage

Current Percent Delinquent Total of Total Tax OCutstand.  of Deling.

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes to

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected  Collections  Collections to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
2003 $ 1,144,247 $ 1,132,537 98.98% 6,742 $ 1,139,279 99.57% $ 39,349 3.44%
2004 1,180,072 1,173,370 99.43% 1,027 1,174,397 99.52% 35,245 2.99%
2005 1,234,902 1,223,476  99.07% 1,987 1,225,463 99.24% 40,773 3.30%
2006 1,285,714 1,267,410 98.58% 8,008 1,275,416 99.20% 49,807 3.87%
2007 1,376,499 1,358,759 98.71% 7,299 1,366,058 99.24% 27,206 1.98%
2008 1,436,746 1,412,780 98.33% 5,903 1,418,683 98.74% 37,427 2.60%
2009 1,548,344 1,521,174 98.25% 4,680 1,525,854 98.55% 43,787 2.83%
2010 1,607,062 1,683,404 98.53% 15,696 1,599,100 99.50% 37,600 2.34%
2011 1,650,542 1,629,803 98.74% 4,646 1,634,449 99.02% 38,794 2.35%
2012 $ 1,718,031 $ 1,690,684 9841% - $ 1,690,684 98.41% $ 58,470 3.40%
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TABLE 10
CITY OF VERMILLION
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BILLINGS & COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of Total

Special Assessment Collection Qutstanding
Assessments Paid or To Amount Assessments

Year Qutstanding Cancelled Qutstanding December 31
2003 $ 349,647 $ 122,554 35.05% $ 227,093
2004 393,282 80,530 20.48% 358,029
2005 358,029 68,046 19.01% 289,983
2006 806,507 112,275 13.92% 694,232
2007 711,485 -~ 103,058 14.48% 608,428
2008 979,380 112,240 11.46% 867,140
2009 886,278 166,206 18.75% 720,072
2010 773,570 290,688 37.57% 482,902
2011 484,926 118,074 . 24.35% 366,852

2012 §$ 390,154 § 131,753 33.77% $ 258,401
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CITY OF VERMILLION
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN YEARS

Tabile 11

Percentage
Governmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities Total of

Fiscal Revenue Notes Capital Revenue Notes Capital Primary Personal Per

Year Bonds Payable Leases Bonds Payable Leases Government Income Capita
2003 § 2,077,580 § 163,625 § - 6,161,810 §$ 131,297 & 203,316 § 8,737,628 3.39% 868
2004 1,876,954 122,719 - 6,133,044 99,924 284,290 8,316,931 2.95% 834
2005 2,063,339 81,813 - 7,525,398 67,603 318,082 10,056,235 3.39% 984
2006 2,238,174 40,907 - 10,025,790 309,483 234,072 12,848,426 4.26% 1,303
2007 1,986,665 - 4,475,000 11,510,482 324721 87,864 18,384,732 5.52% 1,843
2008 2,027,848 - 4,355,000 11,201,108 396,737 24,912 18,005,606 4.41% 1,718
2009 1,698,558 - 4,185,000 18,159,279 407,878 - 24,450,715 5.79% 2,347
2010 765,000 - 4,010,000 20,287,816 800,860 - 25,863,676 6.11% 2,447
201 390,000 - 3,825,000 18,759,654 687,003 - 24,661,857 5.41% 2,333
2012 § 355,000 $ - § 3,640,496 18,200,435 § 570,408 $ 229,670 $ 22,996,009 n/a nla

n/a - This data was not available at the time of this report.
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TABLE 12
CITY OF VERMILLION
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
December 31, 2012

Net General Percentage

Obligation Applicable To This City's

Debt Governmental Share
Jurisdiction Outstanding Unit’ of Debt
School District $ 1,680,000 61.62% 3 1,035,203
City of Vermillion direct debt 22,996,009
Total Direct and -

Overlapping Debt $ 24031212

Assessed value data used {o estimate applicable percentages provided by the Clay County Director
of Equalization. Debt outstanding provided by the Vermillion School District.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Vermillion.
This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay
long-term, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businessess should be taken into
account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible
for repaying debt, of each overlapping government.

' The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using the taxable property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determinging the portion the City's taxable value that
is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the School District's total taxable
property value.
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Debt Limit

Total, net debt applicable to limit
Legal Debt Margin

Total net debt applicable to fimit
as a percentage of debt fimit

CITY OF VERMILLION

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 13

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
11,070,789 $ 12,085,741 % 12,314,841 § 13,012,361 § 15,000,303 § 16,161,529 § 15917253 § 17,609,630 § 18,657,474 § 18,631,713
6,650,775 7,193,530 8,316,034 9,556,972 8,825,606 8,125,471 7,236,640 6,979,204 5,868,649 4,561,292
4420014 3 4892211 § 3,998,807 $ 3,455,388 § 6,264,697 $ 8,036058 § 8,680,613 § 10,630,426 $ 12,788,825 § 14,080,421
60.07% 59.52% 67.53% 73.45% 58.49% 50.28% 45.46% 39.86% 31.45% 24.43%

100

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN CALCULATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012

Total 2012 Taxable Value $ 316,739,127
Assessed Value 372,634,267
Debt Limit - 5% of Assessed Value 18,631,713
AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO LIMIT
Total Bonded Debt and Long-Term Notes Payable 5,467,140
Less: amount set aside for repayment
of debt
TiF Revenue Bonds (903,851)
Joint Powers Revenue Bonds (10,3085)
Wastewater Revenue Bonds (1,692)
(915,848)
DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT 4,651,292
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN $ 14,080,421



CITY OF VERMILLION

Table 14

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
Net Revenue
Available
Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 $ 3,294,679 2,252,931 $ 262,589 $ 1,304,337 § 70,000 § 22,034 $ 92,034 1417  $ 1,566,926 17.03
2004 3,540,836 2,500,095 266,257 1,306,998 75,000 18,735 93,735 13.94 1,573,255 16.78
2005 3,984,129 2,808,651 277,325 1,452,803 80,000 15,131 95,131 15.27 1,730,128 18.19
20086 4,191,995 2,965,244 275,317 1,602,068 80,000 11,380 91,380 16.44 1,777,385 19.45
2007 4,592,516 3,362,594 286,811 1,516,733 90,000 7,018 97,018 15.63 1,803,544 18.59
2008 4,868,374 3,507,191 306,305 1,667,488 90,000 763 90,763 18.37 1,973,793 21.75
2000 2 5,158,478 4,004,115 311,894 1,466,257 - - . - n/a 1,778,151 n/a
2010 °® 517,889 - - 517,889 - 391,211 391,211 1.32 517,889 1.32
2011 ° 738,404 - - 738,404 185,000 384,797 569,797 1.30 738,404 1.30
2012 % 743,301 - 3% - $ 743,301 $ 190,000 $ 382485 § 572,485 130 % 743,301 1.30
' GAAP Basis

% General Obligation Bonds were paid off in 2009

® Starting in 2010 a surcharge fee was pledged for the debt service
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CITY OF VERMILLION

Table 15

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WATER ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
Net Revenue
Available
Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 $ 1016664 § 838,573 % 94,720 § 272,811 % 26,630 § 36,508 $ 63,138 432 % 367,631 5.82
2004 1,052,652 953,217 110,643 210,078 63,489 91,486 154,975 1.36 320,721 2.07
2005 1,210,698 922,383 132,650 420,965 83,214 84,093 167,307 2.52 553,615 3.31
2008 1,360,043 975,516 143,885 518,412 87,145 82,757 169,902 3.05 662,297 3.90
2007 2 1,354,889 1,091,290 148,379 411,978 90,721 77,441 168,162 2.45 560,357 3.33
2007 ° 145,748 - - 145,748 - 74,969 74,969 1.94 145,748 1.94
2008 ¢ 1,168,017 1,099,739 187,002 245,280 94,446 73,716 168,162 1.46 432,282 2.57
2008 ° 293,827 - - 293,627 137,706 88,447 226,153 1.30 293,627 1.30
2000 2 1,222,490 1,172,310 232,343 282,523 98,331 69,832 168,163 1.68 514,866 3.06
2009 ° 263,810 - - 263,810 147,946 87,413 235,359 112 263,810 1.12
2010 2 1,200,469 1,189,028 241,817 253,258 102,381 65,621 168,002 1.51 495,075 2.95
2010 ° 266,174 - - 266,174 151,896 83,772 235,668 1.13 266,174 1.13
2011 2 1,297,129 1,246,547 247,878 298,460 106,603 63,412 170,015 1.76 546,338 3.21
2011 ¢ 261,909 - - 261,909 155,729 79,939 235,668 1.11 261,909 1.1
2012 2 1,480,051 1,319,913 253,851 413,989 503,868 40,574 544,442 0.76 667,840 1.23
2012 % 264,576 § - % - % 264,576 $ 169,659 $ 76,008 $ 235,668 112§ 264,576 1.12
" GAAP Basis

? Bond obligations not covered with surcharge pledge
* Starting in 2007 bonds were paid with surcharge pledge
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CITY OF VERMILLION
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
Net Revenue

Table 16

Available

Direct Depreciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 3 806,120 $ 948,583 § 231,084 $ 88,601 % 6,204 $ 2,149 % 8,353 10.61 § 319,665 38.27
2004 898,561 996,396 232,964 135,129 8,771 13,362 22,133 6.11 368,003 16.63
2005 1,019,566 1,057,775 230,778 192,559 16,313 11,126 27,439 7.02 423,337 16.43
2006 1,125,387 1,012,040 307,791 421,138 70,040 38,925 108,965 3.86 728,929 6.69
2007 1,260,442 1,191,304 380,627 449,765 139,674 114,424 254,098 177 830,392 3.27
2008 1,332,633 1,168,515 380,848 544,866 144?728 110,244 254,972 2.14 925,714 3.63
2009 1,418,108 1,230,161 387,288 5757235 149,408 105,646 255,144 2.25 962,523 3.77
2010 2 1,344,143 1,236,230 413,192 521,105 154,426 140,768 295,194 1.77 934,297 3.17
2010 3 145,131 - - 145,131 41,335 49,870 ) 91,205 1.59 145,131 1.59
2011 2 1,346,120 1,435,127 509,019 420,012 168,769 104,201 272,970 1.54 929,031 3.40
2011 s 300,259 - - 300,259 138,513 124,963 263,476 1.14 300,259 1.14
2012 ? 1 ,353.666 1,464,328 692,300 511,638 176,377 97,582 273,959 1.87 1,103,938 4.03
2012 ° % 321,140 § - % - $ 321,140 % 160,945 § 128,744 § 289,689 111 % 321,140 1.11

' GAAP Basis

*Bond obligations not covered with surcharge pledge

® Starting in 2010 a surcharge fee was pledged for the debt service

103



CITY OF VERMILLION

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
GOLF COURSE ENTERPRISE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

Net Revenue

Table 17

Available
Direct Depraciation Net Revenue Payments Payments Total For Debt Coverage
Fiscal Net Operating Included in Available for on For Debt Service Service Plus Without
Year Revenue Expenses Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Payments Coverage Depreciation Depreciation
2003 % 1,019,718 704,022 $ 62,600 $ 378,296 % 170,000 § 269,626 $ 439,626 086 § 440,896 1.00
2004 1,141,205 735,976 61,873 467,102 4,155,000 177,981 4,332,981 0.1 528,975 0.12
2005 1,361,620 939,204 64,933 487,349 25,000 169,046 194,046 2.51 552,282 2.85
2006 1,075,012 877,881 67,434 264,565 360,000 171,876 631,876 0.50 331,999 0.62
2007 1,108,569 747,385 63,868 425,052 395,000 156,143 551,143 0.77 488,920 0.89
2008 1,102,842 761,423 63,065 404,484 405,000 136,699 541,699 0.75 467,549 0.86
2009 1,163,153 769,146 49,779 453,786 430,000 82,496 512,496 0.89 503,565 0.98
2010 1,141,943 743,668 62,441 460,716 430,000 92,280 522,280 0.88 523,157 1.00
2011 1,185,441 777,221 59,544 467,764 430,000 66,754 496,754 0.94 527,308 1.06
2012 $ 1,210,561 802,336 $ 52,685 § 460,810 % 445000 $ 23,050 ' $ 468,050 098 § 513,395 1.10
' GAAP Basis
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Table 18
CITY OF VERMILLION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

2012
Percentage
of Total
# of City

Employer Employees Rank = Employees
University of South Dakota 1,112 1 18.80%
Sanford Vermillion Medical Center 250 2 4.25%
Walmart 220 3 3.74%
Vermillion Public Schools 170 4 : 2.89%
Hy Vee Food Stores 166 5 2.82%
SESDAC 146 6 2.48%
Polaris Industries 130 7 2.21%
Masaba Mining Equipment ‘ 115 8 1.95%
City of Vermitlion 110 9 1.87%
Total Principal Employers 2,419 41.10%
Other Employers 3,466 58.90%
Total Employers ' 5,885 100%

' Comparative data for nine years ago not currently available.

Information in table provided from South Dakota Economic Development Office, Vermillion Development
Corporation and the South Dakota Department of Labor.
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TABLE 19

CITY OF VERMILLION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS
Educational University
Total Per Capita Atltainment Public of
Calendar Personal Personal Bachelor's Median School South Dakota Unemployment
Year Population’ income income® Degree or Higher' Age’ Enroliment’ Enroliment® Rate’
2003 10,070 257,489,900 25,570 nfa 24.9 1,298 7.917 3.10%
2004 9,975 281,863,575 28,257 nla 25.1 1,305 8,120 3.30%
2005 10,218 296,792,028 29,048 nla 254 1,327 8,641 3.30%
2006 9,862 301,481,340 30,570 nla n/a 1,318 8,746 2.80%
2007 9,975 333,145,050 33,398 n/a nla 1,282 9,243 2.50%
2008 10,495 408,087,580 38,884 n/a n/a 1,288 9,291 2.80%
2009 10,417 422,117,674 40,522 2,358 n/a 1,275 9,617 3.80%
2010 10,571 423,347,408 40,048 2,358 23.4 1,251 10,151 4.00%
2011 10,571 455,673,526 43,106 2,128 nla 1,239 9,970 3.40%
2012 10,571 $ n/a nfa nla n/a 1,256 10,284 4.00%

' State of South Dakota website.

2 United States Census Bureau per Business Research Bureau, USD.

* Vermillion Public School Business Office.

*USD website. Fall Semester enroliment figures.

n/a - This data was unavailable at the time of the report.
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Function

General
Executive
Finance
Engineering
Service Center

Public Safety

Police Administration

Police Patrot
Communications
Fire

Public Works
Street Department
Carpentry

Health & Welfare
Code Compliance
Ambulance

Culture-Recreation
Pool
Recreation
Libraries.
Parks

Electric

Water

* Wastewater

Golf

Joint Powers

Curbside Recycling

internal Service
Custodial

TABLE 20

CITY OF VERMILLION
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012
3.58 2.99 2.99 2.82 3.71 3.07 3.63 3.88 3.3t 3.01
5.82 6.30 5.96 6.00 6.02 6.00 6.02 594 6.00 6.00
4.96 4.75 4.70 4.83 4.84 4.87 4.22 4.71 4.73 4.38
2.01 2.24 2.52 2.55 2.57 2.46 2.54 2.56 2.53 2.24
587 6.02 5.45 5.53 5.71 5.10 5.10 5867 5.26 4.98
15.82 15.50 14.50 13.92 13.77 15.04 18.57 16.44 15.77 17.40
747 7.56 7.88 7.22 8.83 7.44 7.43 8.01 8.33 8.39
1.00 1.01 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.01 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.48
6.65 6.66 6.45 5.51 572 5.94 6.71 6.69 6.48 589
1.06 1.06 1.06 1.04 1.07 1.08 1.04 1.05 1.04 1.05
3.17 3.03 3.00 3.04 3.01 3.02 3.04 2.91 3.25 273
3.91 3.72 3.85 4.04 4.13 4.57 3.02 3.08 3.44 3.14
4.66 537 4.99 4.81 4.61 4.43 5.06 4.65 4.83 4.07
4.21 4.03 4.41 3.79 4.27 4.22 453 4.01 4.25 3.83
8.76 8.36 8.23 8.10 8.08 8.24 8.56 8.84 8.56 8.01
3.64 3.83 3.89 4.76 4.00 4.56 4.43 4.49 4.30 417
11.49 11.82 11.91 11.27 10.87 10.67 11.15 10.85 10.91 10.61
872 9.03 8.62 8.36 8.64 8.48 8.56 8.70 8.35 8.58
7.28 7.46 7.14 7.01 7.87 7.41 7.15 6.98 6.95 6.78
.77 10.29 9.74 9.42 8.13 g.71 9.65 9.85 9.32 8.33
9.06 8.06 9.08 9.20 8.10 8.70 9.85 9.95 9.76 10.00
- - - - - - 0.72 1.96 1.95 2.00
0.98 1.72 1.66 1.73 1.81 1.82 2.01 2.16 2.14 2.14
129.89 131.80 128.00 125,96 128.38 128.84 131.05 134.36 132.46 129.18

information in table provided from City of Vermillion payroli data base.
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Table 21

Function
Police
Non Traffic Violations
Traffic Violations
Parking Violations
Fire
Structure Fires
Other Fires & Incidents Calls
Ambuiance
Total Calls
Total Stand-By
Code Compliance
Rental Housing Inspections
Building Permits-Single Family
Building Permits-Multiple Family
Building Permits-Commercial
Value of New Construction  §

Municipal Garage
Service Jobs
Repairs
Library
Circulation
Number of Card Holders
Swimming Pool
Swim Lesson Participation
Open Swim Hours
Parks & Recreation
FalliWinter Participants
Summer Participants
Electric
Total Number Meters
Total Metered Kilowatts
Summer Peak Demand Kilowatts
Winter Peak Demand Kilowatts
Water
Number of Connections
Average Daily Consumption
Daily Peak Demand
Wastewater
Number of Connections
Average Daily Flow
Daily Peak Demand
Joint Powers
Tonnage in Landfill Trenches
Tonnage Recycled
Curbside Recycling
Tonnage Collected
Bluff's Golf Course
Rounds of Golf
Liquor Store
Gross Sales
Gross Profit %
Street Department
Tons of Sand for Ice
Truckioads of Snow Hauled

CITY OF VERMILLION
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

965 1,026 701 735 905 821 821 747 561 493

570 705 599 603 762 936 906 1.218 €60 708
2,801 2,172 2,323 2,341 2,297 2,576 1,838 1,865 1,399 1,275
19 16 13 14 13 12 12 12 14 22

81 87 106 79 72 116 104 102 92 123

553 526 541 518 574 702 77 740 727 795

41 42 43 37 28 38 44 45 52 68

780 456 764 600 912 1,184 970 1,105 1,086 959

16 30 36 36 37 30 1 10 9 16

- 8 6 7 7 9 1 7 4 2

3 8 6 [ 8 12 13 6 3 3
3,486,180 6,783,326 14,331,000 8,212,480 $ 19,544,721 9,839,165 § 2,983,206 4,502,352 5,786,357 & 3771388
282 258 266 260 239 273 243 248 241 234

386 349 367 374 369 288 353 376 368 204
98,7562 89,875 79,813 78,652 78,196 78711 77,979 79,168 78,344 75,236
7,910 7.784 7,239 7,772 8,137 7,819 7,634 7,158 4,763 5,357
445 442 408 351 389 392 402 427 406 325
38,772 38,770 21,000 18700 18,700 19,128 13,090 12,320 12,320 13,200
4,620 6,714 4,571 4.588 4,204 4,041 3,657 3,009 2,799 2,144
2,764 2,000 1,947 2,352 1,936 1,889 2,048 2,130 2.034 1,950
4,166 4,155 4,218 4,277 4,357 4,374 4414 4,431 4,447 4.474
54,634 466 54,351,153 59,015,023 61,249,026 64,250,866 63,777,004 62,286,446 65,537,825 67,118,561 67,571,917
13,964 13,995 14,633 16,132 15,424 14,746 - 14,620 15619 16,720 17,051
8217 9,187 11,587 10,850 11,294 11,496 11,069 11,148 11,240 10,836
2,590 2,603 2,669 2,709 2,746 2,847 2,826 2,856 2,875 2,944
1,115,912 1,091,288 1,061,452 1,102,896 1,199,674 1.070,737 1,017,595 921,929 958,603 1,130,197
2,212,000 2,317,000 2,102,000 2,231,000 2,549,000 2,387,000 1,647,000 1,385,000 1,864,000 2,248,000
2,522 2,559 2,607 2,612 2,683 2,759 2,761 2,763 2,809 2,862
980,000 1,085,000 1,232,000 1,102,000 1,108,000 1,025,000 1,033,000 1,248,000 1,374,000 831,000
nla 1,815,000 2,918,000 2,133,000 1,859,000 1,787,000 1,730,000 3,517,000 2,835,000 1,134,000
25,979 26,245 25,677 28,912 32,080 36,382 35,420 36,488 34,813 34,187
927 1,039 934 972 1,163 1211 1,805 1,085 1,086 1,077

- - - - - - - - 136 144

28,476 22,756 22,465 21,188 23,376 21,443 23,012 21,476 20,703 22,799
704,118 767,567 857,976 967,937 1,094,738 1,179,546 1,165,625 1,181,977 1,185,643 1,217,013
25,94% 28.63% 27.04% 33.63% 33.37% 31.25% 30.93% 31.17% 30.97% 31.06%
675 572 422 524 1,001 959 830 767 450 350

364 620 363 193 596 538 713 1,874 316 226

information in table provided from City of Vermiliion Department Superintendents
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Function
Police
Stations
Police Vehicles
Fire
Stations
Engines/Trucks
Hydrants
Ambulance
Ambulances
Public Works
Streets (miles)
Streetiights
Cuiture & Recreation
Parks (acres)
Parks
Swimming Pools
Tennis Courls
Softball Diamonds
Baseball Diamonds
Golf Courses
Electric
Total Transformers on 13.8 kV Line
Total miles of 3 phase on 13.8 kV Line
Total Mites of 115kV Transmission Line
Water
Water Mains (miles)
Maxirmum Daily Capacity (galions)
Wastewater
Sanitary Sewer (miles)
Stormwater Sewer (miles)
Maximum Daily Capacity (gallons)

CITY OF VERMILLION
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 22

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1
6 6 [ 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
384 385 387 388 392 398 398 397
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
45.00 45.00 46,00 46.69 46.77 46.94 46.94 46,94 47.39 47.39
1,141 1,165 1,183 1,172 1,187 1,211 1,285 1,243 1,243 1,259
115.00 115.50 115,50 . 11550 115.60 115.60 1156.50 118.50 115.50 115.50
6 7 7 7 : 7 7 7 7 7
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
687 694 709 694 677 678 664 661 675 665
46.72 48.14 49.48 49.49 49.71 53.17 47.60 48.53 49.83 49.61
M . - - - - - - - 21.25
57,67 57.96 59.63 61.07 61.21 62.17 63.41 64.01 64.69 £64.86
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
56.57 56.57 57.23 57.85 57.85 £§7.93 58.15 58.18 58.27 58.36
5.11 5.11 6.26 6.26 6.26 6.57 6.81 6.82 6.84 6.84
4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Information in table provided from City of Vermiilion Department Superintendents
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City of Vermillion
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

113

CFDA
Grant/Program Number Expenditures
Direct:
U.S. Department of Justice
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 $ 1,513
U.S. Department of Justice
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants (ARRA) 16.710 51,419
U.S. Depariment of Transportation
Highway Planning & Construction 20.205 142,765
U.S. Department of Transportation
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 420,499
indirect:
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
South Dakota Department of Tourism and Development
Community Development Block Grant/State's Program 14.228 224,850
U.S. Department of Transportation
SD Department of Transportation
State and Community Highway Safety Program 20.600 12,966
U.S. General Services Administration
South Dakota Federal Property Agency
Donation of Federal Surplus Property(Note 2) 38.003 112
Total $ 854,124
(Continued)



City of Vermillion
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation - The schedule of expenditures of federal awards

includes the federal grant activity of the City of Vermillion and is presented

on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Note 2 - The amount reported represents 23.3% of the original acquisition cost of the federal
surplus property received by the City of Vermillion.

Note 3 - The City of Vermillion had the following loan balances outstanding from the SD Clean Water State
Revolving Fund, CFDA #66.458 and the SD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, CFDA #66.468 at
December 31, 2012.
Total Amount Federal Portion

of Loan of Loan
Qutstanding Qutstanding
Clean Water Series 2003 ( 0%) $ 183,403 § -
Clean Water Series 2005 ( 23.8%) 2,481,847 590,680
Clean Water Series 2008 { 6.7%) 3,872,398 250,451
Clean Water Series 2008 (0%) . 230,713 -
Drinking Water Series 2002 (79.72%) 990,769 789,841
Drinking Water Series 2006 (0.5988%) 2,940,279 29,368

$ 10,699,409 $ 1,669,340
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CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Summary of the Independent Auditor's Resulls

A

B.

Unmaodified opinions were issued on the financial statements.

A significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting was disclosed by the audit
of the financial statements.

The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs were reported in the audit
of the financial statements.

An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to each major
program.

The audit disclosed no audit findings which were required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 section .510(a).

Major programs:  Airport Improvement Program CFDA #20.106
Highway Planning and Construction CFDA #20.205

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000.

The Auditee did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under Section .530 of OMB Circular A-133.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing

Standards

No Matters were noted.

Significant Deficiency:

I-A-12 Financial Reporting

Observation - During the audit, we identified various immaterial adjustments not
recorded properly in the City's financial statements. Adjustments were made by the
City to properly include these changes to the financial statements.

Cause — Due to the limited number of employees, the City does not have sufficient
controls in place to ensure that all adjustments are made.
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CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

.

H-A-12 Financial Reporting — (Continued)

Possible Effect — Revenues and expenses may not be reported in the appropriate
fiscal period and /or balance sheet amounts may be misstated.

Recommendation - The City should implement procedures {o ensure all required
adjustments are made.

Response - We will double check the financial statements in the future and all
supporting schedules to verify that all adjustments are made properly

Findings énd Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards

Instances of Non-Compliance:

No Matters were noted.

Significant Deficiency:

No Matters were noted.

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings - There were no prior year audit findings.
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P.0. Box 1010

WI L LIAM S Le Mars, 1A 51031
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Certified Public Accountants www.willlamscpas.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on internal Control
Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Vermillion, South Dakota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of the City Vermillion, South Dakota (the City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2012.
The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The City’'s basic financial statements include the operations of the Vermilion Housing and
Redevelopment Commission, which received $905,998 in federal awards which is not included in the
schedule during the year ended December 31, 2012. Our audit, described below, did not include the
operations of the Vermiliion Housing and Redevelopment Commission because the Commission engaged
other auditors to perform an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is résponsib!e for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable {o its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is tc express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in a material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2012.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Cily is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify .all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South
Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report and our report on compliance for each major federal program
are matters of public record and their distribution is not limited.

w.diw d'Cs»n\M» p.c.

Certified Public Accountants

Le Mars, lowa
May 20, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report on internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Vermillion, South Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued.by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA as of and for the year ended December
31, 2012 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 20, 2013. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Vermiliion Housing and Redevelopment Commission which statements
reflect total assets of $139,997 and total revenues of $921,165 as of and for the year ended June 30,
2012. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose report thereon has been
furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Vermillion Housing
and Redevelopment Commission, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Vermillion’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Vermillion's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Vermillion’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or'a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. ' ’ ‘

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
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may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to
be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters:

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Vermillion’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determinaticn of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Vermillion’s Response to Findings

The City of Vermillion’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and guestioned costs. The City of Vermillion's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-
11-11, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the
City during the course of our audit.

If you have any questions concerning the above matters, we would be pleased to discuss them with
you at your convenience.

U)o liormas + Cunf__owug-) p.C.

Certified Public Accountants

Le Mars, lowa
May 20, 2013
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@Vé?n{ill ion 10. New Business; item g

SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: John Prescott, City Manager
Meeting:  July 1, 2013

Subject: Agreement to Transfer TIF #5 funds to Vermillion Chamber and
Development Co.

Presenter: John Prescott

Background: The City Council approved the boundaries of Tax Increment District #5 on
April 15, 2013. The boundaries of TIF #5 are the same as Lot 8, Block 7 Erickson
Addition. The City Council approved the Project Plan for TIF #5 on May 20, 2013. The
purpose of the Project Plan is to assist the VCDC with construction of a 30,000 sq. foot
building and site improvements to facilitate the Eagle Creek Software System expansion
to Vermillion.

Discussion: The VCDC is financing construction of the building through a REDI loan
awarded by the Governor’s Office of Economic Development and private bank financing.
One of the sources that has been identified to repay the debt is TIF financing. The VCDC
will rent the building to a tenant and collect property taxes as part of the rent payments.
The property owner will pay the increased property taxes as the assessed value increases.
The County will collect the property taxes and transfer the proceeds to the City. Per the
TIF Plan, the City is to transfer the funds to the VCDC over the 20 year life of the
agreement.

The attached agreement is the final step in establishing the TIF. The agreement between
the City and VCDC provides for the actual transfer of the TIF funds. The agreement
provides that the City will setup a TIF 5 fund where the property tax receipts will be
deposited. The building must be complete by June 30, 2014 to qualify for the receipt of
the tax increment dollars. The agreement also restates the eligible costs and dollar
amounts from the TIF Plan.

Financial Consideration: The agreement to transfer TIF 5 funds will only cause the City
to incur minimal costs to facilitate the transfer of funds.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the agreement
between the City of Vermillion and Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development
Company to provide for the transfer of TIF 5 funds.




Agreement
Between
The City of Vermillion
&

The Vermillion Chamber of Commerce & Development Company

Dated 2013

Related to allowing the Developer to be reimbursed for costs from
proceeds of the Tax Increment District Number Five.



THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this  day of July, 2013, between the
Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development Company, a South Dakota Corporation,
herein after referred to as the “Developer” and the City of Vermillion, a municipal corporation
and political subdivision of the State of South Dakota, herein after referred to as the “City”.

SECTION 1. The City created Tax Increment District Number Five, by resolution on April, 15"
2013.

SECTION 2. The City approved the Project Plan for Tax Increment District Number Five on
May, 20" 2013.

SECTION 3. The purpose of this agreement is to allow the Developer to be reimbursed for the
improvement costs included in the project plan from the proceeds of the tax increment district. It
further establishes the procedures by which the Developer may assign its right to any proceeds
from the district in order to secure private financing for the project improvements. The City
reserves the right to terminate Tax Increment District Number Five if the Developer sells the
property or retires the outstanding debt.

SECTION 4. The estimated project costs to be paid by the district, as set forth in the project
plan, are as follows:

Based on a approximately 30.000 square foot office building:

Total Estimated Costs to be Paid by the TIF District

Capital Costs:
Storm Water Drainage $100,000
Site Work (Parking Lot — Sidewalk) $300,000
Water, Sanitary Sewer & Electrical Service $100,000
Private Structure — 30,000 sq. ft. Office Building $455,677
Professional Costs:
Engineering/Inspection/Testing $270,000
Financing Costs:
Interest $654,561
Contingency Costs: $250,000

Total Project Costs $2,130,238




SECTION 5. The cost of constructing the improvements contained in Section 4 of this
agreement is the responsibility of the Developer. The Developer agrees to construct the
improvements contained in Section 4 by Monday, June 30, 2014. If the Developer does not
complete the improvements in accordance with the above timeline, the City has the option to
terminate this agreement as to any improvements that have not been constructed or on which
construction has not been started. Prior to the City terminating the agreement, the City shall
provide at least seven days written notice to the Developer and/or any entity that has an
assignment interest in the proceeds of the tax increment funds of the date of the meeting at which
the City Council will consider terminating the agreement.

SECTION 6. The base value of the property located in Tax increment District Number Five has
been certified by the South Dakota Department of Revenue as $58,228.

SECTION 7. 1t is anticipated that the Developer will secure private financing to fund the
improvements contemplated in the approved Tax Increment District Number Five project plan.
This private financing is anticipated to be a bond or note, at an average interest rate over the life
of the loan not to exceed three point three six percent (3.36%) per annum. It is understood by the
parties that the financing amount included in the project plan is based on an interest rate of three
point three six percent (3.36%) per annum and that the Developer will not receive any
reimbursement for interest that it pays in excess of three point three six percent (3.36%) per
annum. It is further understood that should the Developer receive a loan with an interest rate of
less than three point three six percent (3.36%) per annum, that the City will only reimburse the
Developer for the actual amount of interest paid.

SECTION 8. Developer shall complete the improvements described in the approval project plan.
Upon completion, Developer shall certify to the City Finance Office that such improvements
have been completed and shall certify the amount of money disbursed therefore. Furthermore,
the Developer shall provide sufficient documentation to certify that the terms of Section 13 of
this agreement are complied with. The City shall have the right to require reasonable
documentation to establish that the amounts set forth in the Tax increment District Five Project
Plan have, in fact, been disbursed for the project.

SECTION 9. 1t is understood by the parties that the boundaries of Tax Increment District Five
may overlap the boundaries of other tax increment districts. Any increments generated from the
areas within overlapping districts will be used to pay for the improvements in the districts based
on the chronological order in which the districts were created. Only after the disbursements
required of the City in the project plans or developer’s agreements for any previously created
districts have been satisfied, will the City have a duty to disburse funds under this agreement.



SECTION 10. All positive tax increments received in Tax Increment District Number Five,
shall, upon receipt by the City, be deposited in a special fund to be known as the “Tax Increment
District Number Five Fund”, here after referred to as the “Fund”. Subject to Sections 8, 9, 12,
and 13 of this, agreement and the limitation that at no time shall the cumulative total of payments
made from the fund exceed the lesser of the total amount of disbursements certified pursuant to
Section 8 of this agreement or the total of the estimated project costs set forth in the Tax
Increment District Number Five Project Plan as well as any other limitations contained herein,
the City shall, within thirty (30) days after the receipt of each tax increment payment from the
Treasurer of Clay County, disburse all amounts in the fund to the Developer or their designee.

SECTION 11. It is contemplated by the parties that Developer may assign its interest under this
agreement as security for the note or loan agreement, or other financing described in Section 7
hereof. It is understood and agreed, by and between the parties; that any such assignment shall
be in writing and that if the City shall make disbursement pursuant to such assignment that it
shall, to the extent of such disbursement, relieve the City of the obligations to make such
disbursements to Developer. Any assignee shall agree to be bound by the terms and conditions
contained in this agreement.

SECTION 12. It is specifically a condition of this agreement and a condition of the City’s
obligation to pay that all sums payable shall be limited to the proceeds of the positive tax
increment from Tax Increment District Number Five, receipted in the “Fund” specified in
Section 10 hereof. The obligation of the City to pay pursuant to this agreement does not
constitute a general indebtedness of the City or a charge against the City’s general taxing power.
The provisions of SDCL 11-9-36 are specifically incorporated herein by reference. It is also
specifically agreed that the City has made no representation that the proceeds from such fund
shall be sufficient to retire the indebtedness incurred by the Developer under Section 7 hereof.
The parties further acknowledge that SDCL 11-9-25 limits the duration of allocability of the
positive tax increment payments to the fund created by Section 10 hereof. The provisions of
SDCIL 11-9-25 are specifically incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 13. It is a condition and of this agreement that all provisions of South Dakota law
regarding the expenditure of public funds are incorporated herein. The tax increment payments
(section 10) shall be considered a grant under SDCL 11-9-32.

SECTION 14. Developer agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Vermillion
from obligations and liability, including reasonable attorney’s fees arising out of this agreement
or the construction of the improvements contemplated by the Tax Increment District Five Project
Plan. Developer shall maintain a policy of liability insurance, acceptable by the City, with
liability limits of at least one million dollars. ($1,000,000.00) that names the City of Vermillion
as an additional insured.



SECTION 15. Developer agrees to immediately satisfy any and all mechanic’s liens or material
man’s liens that arise as a result of this project. This provision shall not prevent Developer form
subsequently seeking compensation from subcontractors or others who may be responsible for
such liens or for such payment.

SECTION 16. This document along with the Project Plan for Tax Increment District Five
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties. No other promises or consideration form a part of
this agreement. All prior discussions and negotiations are merged into these documents or
intentionally omitted. In the event of a conflict between the Project Plan and this Agreement, this
Agreement shall be controlling.

SECTION 17. This agreement shall be construed and the parties’ actions governed by the laws
of this State of South Dakota. Any dispute arising out of or related to this agreement shall be
litigated in the First Judicial Circuit Court for the State of South Dakota, located in Vermillion,
Clay County, South Dakota.

Dated this day of July, 2013.
City of Vermillion Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and
A Municipal Corporation Development Company
By: By:
John E. (Jack) Powell Gerry Tracy
Title: Title:
Mayor President, VCDC
ATTEST:

Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer



@Vé?lﬁ:illion 10. New Business; item h

SOUTH DAKOTA

Council Agenda Memo

From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer
Meeting:  July 1, 2013
Subject: Resolution Dissolving Tax Incremental District Number One

Presenter: Mike Carlson

Background: Tax Increment District number one was created in April 1994 to fund golf
course and housing development improvements in the Smith-Quam Addition. The tax
increment plan provided for the land acquisition, construction of the golf course and
facilities, and infrastructure for the first housing development, financed by the tax
increment bond of $4,215,000. The pledge for the bond was the tax increment and the
gross revenues of the golf course. The final bond payment was made February 1, 2013 in
the amount of $663,687.50.

Discussion: State law requires a resolution of the City Council to dissolve the district as
follows in SDCL 11-9-46 (2):

11-9-46. Termination of tax incremental district. The existence of a tax incremental district shall
terminate when:
(1) Positive tax increments are no longer allocable to a district under § 11-9-25; or
(2) The governing body, by resolution, dissolves the district, after payment or provision for
payment of all project costs, grants, and all tax incremental bonds of the district.

The taxable value of the district as of November 1, 2011 was $22,020,519, with projected
property tax revenue for 2013 of $498,281.82.

Financial Consideration: By dissolving the tax increment district the property tax
collections generated by the district will be spread to the school, county, water
development district and city starting in 2014.

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends adoption of the resolution
to dissolve Tax Incremental District Number One.




RESOLUTION DISSOLVING TAX INCREMENTAL
DISTRICT NUMBER ONE

WHEREAS, on April 4, 1994 the Vermillion City Council by resolution created Tax
Incremental District Number One; and

WHEREAS, tax incremental district number one consisted of the Smith-Quam Addition all in
Clay County, South Dakota; and

WHEREAS, on June 20, 1994 the Vermillion City Council adopted the project plan for the tax
incremental district number one that provided for improvements to the district and authorized the
issuance of tax incremental bonds to finance the improvements; and

WHEREAS, the final payment was made on the City issued Tax Incremental Revenue Bond on
February 1, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the 2012 taxes levied for collection in 2013 for tax increment district number one
was $498,282 which along with bond reserve, will fund the final bond payment on the tax
incremental revenue bonds thus liquidating all the debts of the district.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Vermillion that
Tax Incremental District Number One is hereby dissolved following the collection of the 2012
taxes payable in 2013.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that following the collection of the 2012 taxes payable in
2013 the City Council of the City of Vermillion authorizes the disbursement of any remaining
funds in the district as provided in SDCL 11-9-45.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 1** day of July, 2013.

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

By

John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:

Michael Carlson, Finance Officer



CITY OF VERMILLION
INVOICES PAYABLE-JULY 1, 2013

1 UNIVERSITY CLEANERS

2 3D SPECIALTIES INC
3 ADOLPH KIEFER & ASSOC LLC
4 AHEAD, INC
5 ALLEGIANT EMERGENCY SERVICE
6 ANGIE PETERSON
7 APPEARA
8 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
9 ARGUS LEADER
10 ARGUS LEADER MEDIA #1085
11 AUDIO GO
12 AVERA QUEEN OF PEACE HEALTH
13 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS
14 BANNER ASSOCIATES, INC
15 BARNES DISTRIBUTION
16 BENJAMIN NELSEN
17 BIERSCHBACH EQPT & SUPPLY
18 BORDER STATES ELEC SUPPLY
19 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
20 BOW CREEK METAL INC
21 BROADCASTER PRESS
22 BRUNICKS SERVICE INC
23 BSN SPORTS INC
24 BUTLER MACHINERY CO.
25 CAMPBELL SUPPLY
26 CASK & CORK
27 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC
28 CENTURY BUSINESS LEASING
29 CENTURY BUSINESS PRODUCTS
30 CENTURYLINK
31 CERTIFIED LABORATORIES
32 CERTIFIED TESTING SERVICES
33 CHANNING BETE COMPANY, INC
34 CHEMCO, INC
35 CHERRY STREET GRILLE
36 CHESTERMAN CO
37 CITY OF VERMILLION
38 CITY OF VERMILLION
39 CLAY CO REGISTER OF DEED
40 CLAY COUNTY AUDITOR
41 CLAY COUNTY EMS ASSOCIATION
42 CLAY RURAL WATER SYSTEM
43 CLEMET BOSTUCK

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS

REFUND REC FEES
SUPPLIES

UNIFORM CLEANING
ADVERTISING
SUBSCRIPTION
BOOKS

TESTING

BOOKS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PART

MEALS/BOOT REIMBURSEMENT

PARTS

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

POWDER COATING
ADVERTISING
PROPANE
RECREATION SUPPLIES
PARTS

SUPPLIES
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES

COPIER CONTRACT
COPIER CONTRACT
TELEPHONE
SUPPLIES

TESTING

SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

ROLLS
MERCHANDISE
COPIES/POSTAGE
UTILITY BILLS
FILING FEES
EMERGENCY MGMT
CPR CLASS

WATER USAGE
MOWING

20.00

2,364.33
199.80
448.18
377.05

25.00
295.28
163.52

40.54

47.58
190.00

69.90
734.78

5,373.45

85.78
184.00

5,203.80

2,245.90
381.06
150.00
507.12
209.00
284.82

2,297.11

1,868.31

1,103.94
329.37
138.25

84.26
737.49
141.87
372.00
424.01
112.56

21.00

1,423.60

1,264.48

36,653.55

90.00

1,200.00
135.00

37.10

1,189.75



44 CLIMATE SYSTEMS, INC

45 COBRA PUMA GOLF, INC

46 COFFEE KING, INC

47 COLONIAL LIFE ACC INS.

48 CONCRETE MATERIALS

49 COX AUTO SUPPLY

50 CRAIG DEAN

51 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES

52 CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER, LLC
53 CUSTOM TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC
54 D-P TOOLS

55 DAKOTA BEVERAGE

56 DAKOTA PC WAREHOUSE

57 DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT
58 DEAR READER.COM

59 DEBBY GRUHN

60 DELTA DENTAL PLAN

61 DEMCO

62 DENNIS MARTENS

63 DEPT OF REVENUE

64 DGR ENGINEERING

65 DIANE'S GREENHOUSE

66 DIESEL SPECIALTIES, INC

67 DUECO, INC

68 DUST TEX

69 E.A SWEEN COMPANY

70 EARTHGRAINS BAKING CO'S INC
71 EBERLE DESIGN INC

72 EBSCO

73 ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY

74 ED ROEHR SAFETY PRODUCTS

75 ELECTRONIC ENGINEERING

76 EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS
77 EMERGENCY SERVICES MARKETING
78 ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS

79 ETTERMAN ENTERPRISES

80 EZ-LINER INDUSTRIES

81 FARMER BROTHERS CO.

82 FLAGS UNLIMITED

83 FOOT-JOY

84 FOREMAN MEDIA

85 GALE

86 GARYS TREE SERVICE, INC

87 GEAR FOR SPORTS

88 GRAHAM TIRE CO.

89 GRAINGER

90 GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC

REPAIRS
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES

INSURANCE

GOLF SAND/CONCRETE
PARTS

ELECTRONICS DISPOSAL
CHEMICALS

PARTS

LIFT GATE

SUPPLIES
MERCHANDISE
TELEVISION/SUPPLIES
FIRE HELMETS/REPAIRS
SUBSCRIPTION
REFUND REC FEES
INSURANCE

SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE
TESTING
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PLANTS/FLOWERS
REPAIRS

REPAIRS

MATS

MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES

REPAIRS
SUBSCRIPTION
SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

BATTERIES

SUPPLIES
SUBSCRIPTION FEE
PARTS

SUPPLIES

PARTS

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES
MERCHANDISE
COUNCIL MTG
BOOKS

STUMP GRINDING
MERCHANDISE

TIRES

SUPPLIES

CHEMICALS

2,019.55
84.08
57.75

3,069.56

2,543.56

106.42
513.00
94.74
30.00

1,924.00

67.99

10,956.47
726.92
2,067.06
550.00
10.00
6,169.26
1,553.61
833.34
182.00
3,203.44
3,260.95
814.33
587.97
80.00
379.50
289.96
178.00
4,047.89
729.58
1,385.03
450.00
64.00
400.00
159.23
245.64
81.45
122.01
10.50
223.83
100.00
36.74
2,265.00
700.61

1,863.28

1,349.92

3,871.90



91 GREGG PETERS
92 GREGG PETERS
93 GUARANTEE OIL CO INC
94 GUMDROP BOOKS
95 HACH CO
96 HANSEN LOCKSMITHING
97 HARLAND TECHNOLOGY SERVICE
98 HARTINGTON TREE LLC
99 HAUGER YARD/SNOW SERVICE
100 HAWKINS INC
101 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS
102 HDR ENGINEERING, INC
103 HEATHER PETRINO
104 HELGET SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
105 HELMS & ASSOCIATES
106 HERREN-SCHEMPP BUILDING
107 HIGMAN SAND & GRAVEL
108 HILLYARD FLOOR CARE SUPPLY
109 HY VEE FOOD STORE
110 IN CONTROL, INC
111 INDEPENDENCE WASTE
112 INGRAM
113 INTELLI TRACK
114 INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CTR
115 JACKS UNIFORM & EQPT
116 JASON ANDERSON
117 JAY'S PLUMBING
118 JOHN A CONKLING DIST.
119 JOHN WALKER
120 JOHNSON BROTHERS FAMOUS BRANDS
121 JOHNSON CONTROLS
122 JOHNSON ELECTRIC
123 JOHNSTONE SUPPLY
124 JONATHAN WARNER
125 JONES FOOD CENTER
126 JONES LIBRARY SALES, INC
127 JOYCE MOORE
128 KALINS INDOOR COMFORT
129 KARSTEN MFG CORP
130 KIRBY BUILT QUALITY PRODUCTS
131 KNOLOGY
132 LAYNES WORLD
133 LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM
134 LEISURE LAWN CARE
135 LESSMAN ELEC. SUPPLY CO
136 LINCOLN MUTUAL LIFE & CASUALTY
137 LOCATORS AND SUPPLIES, INC

FREIGHT

RENT

PARTS

BOOKS

PARTS

REPAIRS

SUPPLIES

STUMP GRINDING/TREES
MOWING

PARTS

SUPPLIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
SUPPLIES-EARLY CHILDHOOD
SAFETY EQUIPMENT
AIRPORT TAXIWAY
SUPPLIES

GOLF SAND

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
WASTE HAULING

BOOKS

ANNUAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT
BATTERIES
UNIFORMS/SUPPLIES
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS
REPAIRS

MERCHANDISE

WATER HEATER REBATE
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS/SERVICE AGREEMENT
INSTALL LOAD MGMTS
PARTS

MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
SUPPLIES

LIBRARY FIXTURES
MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
REPAIRS

MERCHANDISE

SUPPLIES

911 CIRCUIT

BANNER

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
TREATMENT

SUPPLIES

INSURANCE

SUPPLIES

1,413.75
937.50
158.95
877.00

4,271.40
740.00
104.60

1,200.00

84.00
3,472.09
1,360.83

34,777.17
100.93
132.53
842.89
164.96
287.46
904.30
743.78
859.63

1,089.00
382.62
495.00
156.00

2,393.75
270.00

30.60

6,981.30

315.00
20,703.12

3,384.36
175.00
129.52

52.00

968.07

9,317.00
260.48
714.64
566.49
207.84

1,365.50
308.00

3,274.20

75.00
585.00
446.20
150.50



138 LONGS PROPANE tNC

139 LYLE SIGNS

140 MAGUIRE IRON, INC

141 MAINLAND ENGRAVING LLC
142 MANDY CHRISTIANSEN
143 MARKS MACHINERY

144 MART AUTO BODY

145 MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC
146 MCCULLOCH LAW OFFICE
147 MEAD LUMBER

148 MED-TECH RESOURCE, INC

149 MEDICAL WASTE TRANSPORT, INC

150 MENARDS

151 MICHAEL CARLSON
152 MICHELE MECHLING
153 MICHELLE EIDEM
154 MIDWEST ALARM CO

155 MIDWEST BUILDING MAINTENANCE
156 MIDWEST READY MIX & EQUIPMENT

157 MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION
158 MIDWEST WHEEL COMPANIES
159 MINITEX LIBRARY

160 MISSOURI VALLEY MAINTENANCE
161 MOORE WELDING & MFG

162 N B GOLF LLC

163 NCL OF WISCONSIN, INC

164 NEBRASKA JOURNAL-LEADER
165 NETSYS+

166 NEW YORK LIFE

167 NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS

168 NORTHLAND CHEMICAL CORP
169 NOVELTY MACHINE & SUPPLY
170 OFFICE SYSTEMS CO

171 OLSON SOD FARMS

172 OVERHEAD DOOR OF YANKTON
173 OXMOOR HOUSE

174 PAULS PLUMBING

175 PCC, INC

176 PEDERSEN MACHINE INC

177 PENWORTHY/AMERICAN MEDIA
178 PHYSIO-CONTROL CORP

179 PITNEY BOWES

180 PITNEY BOWES, INC

181 PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE

182 POMPS TIRE SERVICE, INC.

183 PRAIRIE BERRY WINERY

184 PRESTO-X-COMPANY

PROPANE
SUPPLIES

WATER TOWER CONTRACT

PLAQUES

REFUND REC FEES

PARTS

TOWING

OXYGEN

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

HAUL MEDICAL WASTE
SUPPLIES

MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
ALARM MONITORING
MAT SvC

FLOWABLE FILL

PARTS

PARTS

SUPPLIES

REPAIRS

REPAIRS

GOLF CARS/BEVERAGE UNIT RENTAL

FILTERS

ADVERTISING
PROCESSIONAL SERVICES
INSURANCE

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

PARTS

SUPPLIES

SOD

REPAIRS

BOOK

REPAIRS

MAY COMMISSION
REPAIRS

BOOKS

REPAIRS

POSTAGE METER RENTAL
SUPPLIES
DEFIBRILLATOR LEASE
TIRES

MERCHANDISE
INSPECTION/TREATMENT

527.50
572.88

27,000.00

415.75
40.00
619.02
75.00
85.07
1,377.60
137.21
432.54
256.58
125.51
18.00
150.61
18.00
141.75
844.85
100.75
743.70
762.34
162.00
942.30
227.00
7,648.92
744.00
137.00
170.00
94.02
147.60
306.89
175.25
496.00
1,040.00
1,153.20
36.91
176.82
2,096.77
245.26
541.73
320.00
242.49
25.48
741.27
2,777.72
969.00
142.24



185 PRINT SOURCE

186 PRO AUTO INC

187 PUMP N PAK

188 QINGGUO MENG

189 QUADSTATES FINISHING SYSTEM
190 QUEEN CITY WHOLESALE

191 QUILL

192 RACOM CORPORATION

193 RADIANT HEAT, INC

194 RANDOM HOUSE, INC

195 RANDY CRUM

196 RANDY ISAACSON

197 RECORDED BOOKS, INC

198 REINHART FOODSERVICE, LLC
199 REPUBLIC NATIONAL DISTRIBUTING
200 RESCO

201 RIVERSIDE HYDRAULICS & LAB
202 ROOSTER'S HARLEY DAVIDSON
203 ROSEWOOD GREENHOUSE

204 RUSTY JENSEN

205 RYAN HUSBY

206 SARAH WELLS

207 SCHAEFFER MFG. CO

208 SCHWEITZER ENGINEERING LAB
209 SD GOLF ASSOCIATION

210 SD HERITAGE STORE

211 SD PUBLIC ASSURANCE ALLIANCE
212 SD RETIREMENT SYSTEM

213 SDLA CONFERENCE

214 SENSUS METERING SYSTEMS
215 SERVALL TOWEL & LINEN

216 SHARE CORPORATION

217 SIOUX CITY FOUNDRY CO

218 SIOUX CITY JOURNAL

219 SIOUX FALLS TWO WAY RADIO
220 SIOUXLAND HUMANE SOCIETY
221 SIOUXLAND SCALE SERVICE

222 SIOUXLAND TOWING

223 SKARSHAUG TESTING LAB.

224 SOIL WORKS, LLC

225 SOOLAND BOBCAT

226 SOUTH DAKOTA OPEN

227 STANDARD READY MIX CONCRETE
228 STERN OIL CO.

229 STEVES COMFORT SYSTEM

230 STEWART OIL-TIRE CO

231 STURDEVANTS AUTO PARTS

SUPPLIES

SANDBLAST DROP BOX
FUEL

REFUND REC FEES
REPAIRS

MERCHANDISE

SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE CONTRACT
CO-RAY-VAC GAS HEATER
BOOKS

MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
SAFETY GLASSES REIMBURSEMENT
BOOKS

SUPPLIES

MERCHANDISE

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

REPAIRS

PLANTS

REIMBURSE PRINTER PURCHASE
FUEL REIMBURSEMENT
REFUND REC FEES
SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

HANDICAP

LIBRARY MATERIALS
INSURANCE
CONTRIBUTIONS
REGISTRATION
AUTOREAD SOFTWARE SUPPORT
SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

PARTS

ADVERTISING

REPAIRS

FEES

REPAIRS

TOWING

TESTING

SUPPLIES

PARTS

BRONZE SPONSORSHIP
CONCRETE

OIlL

REPAIRS

REPAIRS

PARTS

926.50
100.00
2,161.74
20.00
252.60
1,124.50
1,498.64
386.75
2,638.00
202.50
53.00
150.00
446.00
1,963.09
18,778.81
96.25
78.02
65.99
1,133.14
869.18
154.02
50.00
1,190.40
805.51
4,024.00
45.99
3,496.00
47,940.53
190.00
1,524.60
75.60
159.95
1,105.48
34.60
1,036.92
37.00
17,307.70
150.00
433.38
175.00
49.04
500.00
479.00
3,801.63
1,326.53
20.00
641.85



232 SUN MOUNTAIN

233 SUPERIOR TECH PRODUCTS
234 SUSAN DAVIS

235 T AND R ELECTRIC

236 TENDAIRE INDUSTRIES, INC
237 TENNANT SALES & SERVICES C
238 THATCHER COMPANY

239 THE EQUALIZER

240 THE KNOX COMPANY

241 THE NEW SIOUX CITY IRON CO
242 THE WALKING BILLBOARD
243 TITLEIST DRAWER CS

244 TRUCK-TRAILER SALES

245 TRUE VALUE

246 UNITED LABORATORIES

247 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

248 UNITED WAY

249 US GOLF ASSOCIATION

250 USA BLUEBOOK

251 VAN DIEST SUPPLY CO

252 VERIZON WIRELESS

253 VERMEER HIGH PLAINS

254 VERMILLION ACE HARDWARE
255 VERMILLION CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
256 VERMILLION FORD

257 VISA/FIRST BANK & TRUST
258 WADE MOUNT

259 WAL-MART COMMUNITY

260 WALKER CONSTRUCTION

261 WALT'S HOMESTYLE FOODS, INC
262 WESCO DISTRIBUTION, INC
263 WIGMAN CO

264 WINKLER ROOFING, INC

265 YANKTON AUTOMOTIVE MACHINE
266 YANKTON FIRE & SAFETY

267 YANKTON JANITORIAL SUPPLY
268 YANKTON WINNELSON CO
269 ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE

270 ZEP SALES & SERVICE

271 ZIMCO SUPPLY CO

272 JIANG CHAOYANG

MERCHANDISE

SUPPLIES

BOOKS

TESTING

PARTS

SUPPLIES

SODA ASH

ADVERTISING

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

UNIFORM SHIRTS
MERCHANDISE

PARTS

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

SHIPPING
CONTRIBUTIONS
MEMBERSHIP

PARTS

SUPPLIES

POLICE COMMUNICATIONS
SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

BBB FUND

PARTS
FUEL/LODGING/SUPPLIES
SAFETY BOOTS REIMBURSEMENT
SUPPLIES

CONCRETE WORK/DEBRIS REMOVAL
SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

ROOF INSPECTION
SUPPLIES

EXTINGUISHER RECHARGE
SUPPLIES

PARTS

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

SUPPLIES

BRIGHT ENERGY REBATE

GRAND TOTALS

265.00
309.00
15.00
230.00
538.50
308.60
13,675.20
256.50
1,563.00
172.48
695.95
4,383.93
18.50
1,261.25
292.58
50.27
365.20
110.00
1,384.31
2,177.96
212.07
2,407.57
2,269.11
46,350.00
177.82
8,744.88
79.99
1,246.06
483.50
263.00
1,309.46
952.64
175.00
528.90
132.50
1,814.71
456.17
198.44
259.74
8,719.54
100.00

$518,752.87



	Agenda 
	Special Agenda 
	Minutes June 17th, 2013
	Minutes June 24, 2013 
	7. item a Appts & Desig. 
	7. item b Appts & Desig. 
	7. item c Consolidated Board of Equal. 
	7. item d Rules of Order 
	10. item a Street Closure
	10. item b Final Plat French 
	10. item c Agreement & Covenants-French 
	10. item d Ordinance 1301
	10. item e Mill & Overlay Project 
	10. item f Audit report 
	10. item g Agreement Tif #5-VCDC 
	10. item h Resolution Tax Incremental Dist. # 1 
	Invoices Payable

